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IN THE JUDICIAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO ALLLEGATIONS OF STATE

CAPTURE, CORRUPTION AND FRAUD IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR
__—‘_—__—“_____ﬁ____

INCLUDINGORGANS OF STATE

AFFIDAVIT

[, the undersigned,
NELISWE MILDRED OLIPHANT

do hereby make the following statements under oath:
BACKGROUND
1. | am the former Minister of Labour between November 2010 to May 2019.

2. The facts to which | depose are true and correct and are within my personal

knowledge except where it is apparent from the context that they are not.

3. In or around 1994, | was clected as a member of the Legislature in Kwa-Zulu
Nata_! till 1999. From the years 1999 to 2004, | was a member of the National

Assembly. From the years 2004 to 2009, | was a member of the National Council

MAE
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of Provinces. In or around 2009, | was again a member of the National Assembly,

as the House Chair of International Relations, tilt 30 October 2010.

APPOINTMENT AS MINISTER

4.

On Saturday, 29 Qctober 2010, | returned home from a parliamentary visit to

China led by the Speaker of the National Assembly.

On Sunday morning, 30 October 201 0, while | was homs, | received a call from
the former President Zuma informing me that the ANC officials had taken a
decision to deploy me as the Minister of Labour and that | should come on the 15t

of November 2010 to be sworn in as Minister.

Shortly after my conversation with the former President, | was contacted by Ms
Lakela Kaunda, from the Presidency, who facilitated my travel arrangements from
Kwa-Zulu Natal to Johannesburg and back for the next day, being 1 November
2010. | informed Ms Kaunda that | would be returning to Kwa-Zulu Natal on the

same day.

On the moming of 1 November 2010, while | was at. Durban international Airport,
| received a call from the then Acting Director-General of the Department of
Labour, Mr Sam Morotoba, who congratulated me on my appointment and
infformed me that the Department was available to assist with any travel
arrangements, should | need them. Upon my arrival at Jan Smuts International

2

MAe
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Airport (now OR Tambo International Airport) | was transported to the Presidential
Guesthouse, now known as Sefako Makgato Guesthouse. | was received by
some officials from the Presidency where | was presented with an attendance
register reflecting names against which | had to append my signature$ as

confirmation of my presence.

On the same day, after having been sworn in, | was taken back to Jan Smuts
International Airport to return to Kwa-Zulu Natal in accordarnce with the
atrangements made with Ms Kaunda. | had wanted to return to Kwa-Zulu Natal
for the remainder of the week in order to reflect on my deployment as the Minister
of Labour, as | was enjoying my position as House Chair of International

Relations and expected to finalise the report on our parliamentary visit to China.

On Monday, 8 November 2010, | returned to the Department of Labour for the
briefing by senior officials, led by Mr Morotoba. | was briefed about the role of the
Department and the branches that the Department has. In that meeting it was
agreed that | would be briefed by the various Deputy Directors-General on a one-
on-one basis about the various roles and programmes that each branch was
concerned with. There was no handover process from former Minister, Mr
Mdladlana, apart from having received a text message from him advising me that
he was available to be calied at any time should | need any information regarding

the Department.

Che~
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The mestings with the various Deputy Directors-Generals lasted about two weeks

starting on Monday, 10 November 2010 till 19 November 2010.

CALL FROM MR JIMMY (MZWANELE) MANYI

11.

12.

The following week, | was contemplating approaching the then Director-General
in the Presidency, Mr Cassius Lubisi, about the Director-General in the
Department of Labour. The Director-General in the Presidency, as the head of
the Directors-General, was the person to approach for information about the
Director-General of the Department of Labour. | then received a call from Mr
Manyi who congratulated me on my appointment and informed me that he was
intending to appeal the decision to dismiss him or take the Department of Labour
to court over his dismissal. At that stage, | was not aware that Mr Manyi had
besn dismissed as Mr Morotaba had not informed me during the briefing process.
I 'told Mr Manyi that | did not have that information and that | was sl to be briefed
by the Department. | then called Mr Morotoba to brief me about the situation
regarding the Director-General. Mr Morotoba said that he would arrange a

meeting with Department’s Legal Services who were familiar with the issues,

Within two or three days, | met with the Department's Legal Services team, which
included external senior counsel who were led by Advocate Pasha. Advocate
Pasha confirmed that Mr Manyi had been dismissed. However, | was not given
the full details relating to the reasons for Mr Manyi’s dismissal apart from the fact

that Minister Mdladlana had dismissed him two or three days before my
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appointment. Advocate Dokota informed me that Mr Manyi was dismissed
because he did not respect the Minister, | was not shown any documentation

relating to Mr Manyi.

DISCUSSIONS WITH MINISTER RIGHARD BALOYI

13.  Around the first week of December 2010, befare the commencement of the
Cabinet Committee meeting, | informally approached and raised the issue of Mr
Manyi's dismissal with the then Minister of Public Service and Administration,
Minister Richard Baloyi, as the custodian of the Pubiic Service Act. | informed
him that the Legal Services team did not give me the full information relating Mr
Manyi's dismissal and I therefore asked him to procedurally assist with the matter
and he agreed. Minister Baloyi advised me to meet with Mr Manyi in order to
ascertain whether Mr Manyi intended to appeal the decision to dismiss him or

take the Department of Labour to court.

14. | was not aware of any appeal that Mr Manyi may have lodged. If he had in fact
lodged an appeal against his dismissal, he would have had to lodge it directly
with the Department of Public Service and Administration and not with the
Department Labour. According to my understanding, the dismissal was done by
the Minister in the Department of Labour and therefore an appeal would lie with
the custodian of the Public Service Act, being the Department of Public Service

and Administration,

MaO
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Shortly after my informal meeting with Minister Baloyi | called Mr Manyi and we
met at the Sheraton Hotel in Pretoria. | asked Mr Manyi for his reasons for
wanting to take the Department of Labour to court. Mr Manyi responded that it
was because of the former Minster's decision to have him dismissed. | then said
to Mr Manyi that, in rgspect of an appeal against the decision to dismiss him, |
believed he would have to lodge the appeal with Department of Public Service

and Administration. That is all we discussed at our meeting.

In December 2010, before the rising (recess), | met with Minster Baloyi. | cannot
recall whether it was at a full Cabinet meeting or at a Parliamentary session.
Minister Baloyi informed me that he had looked at the matter and that he was
going to commence the processes of determining whether proper procedures in
regard to Mr Manyi were followed. He then said he would take over the process

as the cusfodian of the Public Service Act.

In or around January 2011, Mr Baloyi informed me that he had finalised the
process regarding Mr Manyi. He further informed me that, in accordance with the
procedures, Mr Manyi would either have to return to the Department of Labour or
be transferred to another Department. Mr Baloyl did not inform me of what
procedures were followed nor of their outcomes. | then requested Mr Baloyi to
please transfer Mr Manyi to another Department for the following two reasons: (a)
the fact that he was dismissed by the Department of Labour and (b) because |
wanted to create stability within the Department. My experience was that Mr

Manyi's dismissal had created the instability within the Department, having
6

Mo
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received correspondence addressed to me from NEHAWU demanding that Mr

Manyi be reinstated.

WITHDRAWAL OF DISMISSAL AND PLACEMENT ON SPECIAL LEAVE

18.

19.

20.

Mr Baloyi advised me that, according to the procedures that ought to be followed
in the transfer of Mr Manyi, | must write a letter withdrawing Mr Manyi’s dismissal
in terms of Section 5(7) of the Public Services Act and place him on special
leave. | was also informed that the letter would correct Mr Manyi's dismissal and
would afford Mr Baloyi time to deal with the process of transferring Mr Manyi to
another Department within three months, failing which, Mr Manyi would then have

to retum to the Department of Labour.

| then discussed the advice that Mr Baloyi gave me with the Department's Legal
Services, including the Head of Departments Legal Services, Advocate Pasha.
The Legal Services team supported Mr Boloyi's advice and supported the

decision for me to write the letter.

On 31 January 2011, | wrote a letter, on the advice of Minister Baloyi and the
Department's Legal Services, informing Mr Manyi that | had decided to withdraw
his dismissal from Public Service in terms of Section 5(7) of Public Service Act of
1994 as amended with immediate effect and that he would be placed on special
leave until further notice. My understanding was that the withdrawal of the

dismissal would be of effect from 1 December 2010 because that was the date
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from which the dismissal became effective. Minister Baloyi was copied in the
letter and | assumed that he would make sure that Human Resources within the
Department of Labour would been appraised of both the withdrawal of Mr Manyi's
dismissal and his placement on special leave. Mr Manyi was also meant to
submit the letter io Human Resources in the Department of Labour. There is no
other paper work relating to the withdrawal of Mr Manyi's dismissal and his

placement on special leave that | filled out.

TRANSFER OF MR JIMMY MANYI

21.

22

| cannot recall whether Minister Baloyi informed me that Mr Manyi would be
transferred to another Department before or after | signed the letter withdrawing
his dismissal and placing on special leave. However, | was aware of Mr Manyi's
transfer to another Department before the pronouncement of his tranéfer to
Government Communication and Information System by the Cabinet's

spokesperson.

There was no need for me to take Mr Manyi off special leave since he was being
transferred to another Department and the processes were being dealt with by
Minister Baloyi and therefore he would be the one to take Mr Manyi off special

leave.
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23. Mr Morotoba remained on as Acting Director-General in the Department of
Labour until the post was subsequently filled in the same year by Mr Nathi Nhleko

after Cabinet approval.

Ao

DEPONENT

I hereby certify that the deponent has acknowledged that he knows and understands
the contents of this affidavit, which was signed and sworn to before me Commissioner
of Oaths, at ..V VEZ0YRG  on this the —7# day of CETEEER 2019 the
regulations contained in Government Notice No R1258 of 21 July 1972, as amended,
and Government Notice No R1648 of 19 August 1977, as amended, having been

complied with.
A U@g\%@?}r’m@

MMISSIONER OF OATHS

FULL NAMES:

ADDRESS:
EX OFFICIO:
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STATEMENT TO THE JUDICIAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO
ALLEGATIONS OF STATE CAPTURE, CORRUPTION AND FRAUD
IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR, INCLUDING ORGANS OF STATE

1. STATEMENT

1.1 |, the undersigned, MAKARINGE RI

oath as follows:

1.1.3 That | am currently unemployed and | fully deal with my work

history, experience and expertise below. T AFRIKAANSE POLISIEDIENSY

‘ STATION COMMANDER
~110CT 200

DETECTIVES
HILLBROW

s b b e

"§?’TGTH AFRIGAN POLICE SERVICE
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1.1.4 That, having been a political activist throughout my life, 1 continue
to be one to this date and also deal with my position in this aspect

below.

1.1.5 That It is because of my prior position as a Minister ten (10) years

ago in the National Executive of the Republic of South Africa that |

1.1.6 That the information contained in my-sta

hot exclusively, based in my memowm

Pretorius SC acting on the instructions and directives of the
Chairperson of the Judicial Commission of Inquiry on allegations of
State Capture, corruption and fraud in the Public Sector, including

Organs of State, herein also referred to as State ‘Capture
SUID-AFRIKA ARG o
AFHIMMQHQED

EDIENT.
STATION COMMANDER Mwi
1 10CT 2019 -2
DETEQ t\T"
ErEoTyes ~

%m‘“‘“——*—“ﬁ '
SOUTH AFRIEAN Barme SERVICF
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Commission’ or simply “the Commission”, Deputy Chief Justice
Raymond Zondo.

2.2 Inthis letter, Adv. Pretorius states, among others, that Mr. Maseko,

a former government employee, “testified that during February

2.3 he Ciliii:ajﬂ[person would like

1g and commenting on

pﬂ or discussion between you and any other

th Execltive Authority before the transfer took place?

h this connegtion the Chairperson would like to know whether you

ve knowledge of the facts and circumstances which gave rise to
the transfer of Mr. Maseko.
2.3.3 Did the then President of the Republic consult with you before the

transfer took place. If yes, are you able to state when, where and

how such consultation took place? If not, are you able to explain
SUID-AFRIKAANSE POLISIEDIENS

why such a consuitation djd ndt takg'HIGYEPMMANDER
| 1 10CT 2009

DETECTIVES
HILLBROW L ‘Q_»
SOUTH AFRICAN POLICE SERVICE T
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2.3.4 To your knowledge and recollection, what are the normal
requirements and practice or procedures to bring about a lawful
transfer of a Head of a National Department, having regards to the
provisions of section 12 and 12A of the Public Service Act?

2.4 | further respond to a directive by the Chairperso___n of the State

Capture Commission, issued in terms of Regulation“10(6) of the

Chairperson’s directive of the 04t September

asyper: Regulation 10(6) also asked me to provide the

;'fze'---jgbout Mr Mzwanele Manyi regarding:
2.5.1 Hi.é"-:gi:;bointment as the Director-General in the Department of
Labour in September 2009;

2.5.2 His dismissal from the Department of Labour;

2.5.3 His transfer to the Governmen{UomAiumieationsatIRformation

STATION COMMANDIER
Services (GCIS) as Director-General. 1 10CY 2019

DETECTIVES
HILLBROW

4
SOUTHAFRICAN POLIGESERVICE (. ¥
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3. The Chairperson emphasized by further stating that “when you
provide your account of the topics listed above, please ensure that
you provide full details of any and all meetings, discussions,
interactions or correspondence with other persons including, but

not [imited to, who they were with, when they occurred, who was

present, and where applicable provide copies of"":“ény relevant
documents.

MY RESPONSES TO THE TWO DOCUMENTS ABOVE ON Mr
MASEKO

4.1 My response to the:

d:6:March 2019 is as follows:
4.1.1 ADD PARAGRAEH 2.

Wheﬁ?{"aiid___j.gyt:)‘u become aware of the transfer of Mr. Maseko from
the GCIS to the DPSA?

SUID-AFRIKAANSE POLISIEDIENS!
STATION COMMANDER
1 10CT 2019 L_,'“
5
DETECTIVES

HILLEROW
SOUTH AFRICAN POLICE SERVIGE”
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ANSWER:

(a) | did not just become aware of the transfer of Mr Maseko from the
GCIS to the DPSA because | facilitated that transfer and that

happened during the period that his transfer took place, around

February 2011.

Authonty of the D“éﬁartment of Public Service and Administration

fEAIPSA]) far the management of such an exit.

d | was 'pproached on the matter concerning Mr Maseko by the

Execu ive Authority of Government Communications and
Information Services, the Minister in the Presidency responsible for

Performance Monitoring and Evaluation at the time.

(e) I, as the EADPSA, considera%pmmm%ﬂg‘g& annd there were

STATI
two of them available, i.e the re eter%ﬁé@ﬁgn "his cpntract on a

DETECTIVES

HILLBROW I L. A-

[SOUTH AFRICAN POLICE SF*
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severance package and allow him to exit or negotiating for a
possible transfer, because, based on information at my disposal,
the exit was not initiated by him and the exit had to happen.

(f) I preferred the option of transfer and began to negotiate for such to
happen and do so in a manner that he be trar]sferred to the

Department of Public Service and Administration as,at the time,

rvices w

digcussion | made it clear to him that |
was ready to even éxtend his contract at its expiry, provided that

each 'f:hé stage both of us still with the Department and

"":3"5-1__rr__1_eanil_]g that there would have been no negative development

Justlfymg non-renewal of his contract.

(j)"i.have to underscore the fact that | was not doing the transfer for

any special reason to him, but that it was the way | chose to

handle retention of DGs, WhiC'WﬁtM@“%iﬁﬁ;@@% DGs since

T
™
e

STATION COMMANDER

my turn as Minister for; Fublic %eirwzﬁfd Administration,

DEYECTIVES
HILLBROW

7
L
SOUTH AFRICAN POLICE SERVICE A
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recommending and bargaining with Ministers to consider a practice
where we use ‘transfer’ as an option rather than getting DGs
completely out of the system and in such humiliating
circumstances as if we found them guilty of any wrong doing.

(k) My arguments were always based on my observation that, even if

it was allowed to redetermine a DG’s contract 0 rounds of

the official would declare
case of constructive di

() | must state that for.

dispute and raise such a case of constructive dismissal.

do hot remember any Minister for Public Service and
Administration intervening to challenge the validity of any
Executive Authority’'s claim of irretrievable breakdown of trust,

meaning that whether material or imaginary, the Executive

Authority’s word wiguld-preveaieitrediEiehdllenge.
STATIOMN COMMANDER
1 10CY 2019
DETECTIVES
HILLBROW | 8
SOUTH AFRICAN POLICE SERVICE L v
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(n) | did not challenge that practice when | was a Minister for Public
Service and Administration for reasons of power relations with
other Executive Authorities because mine was not a super ministry
because that does not obtain in our dispensation.

(o) Even if that was to be the case that we have it as a super ministry,

prd é’bﬁly leverage on the adage “first among the equals’, because

of its location.
(q)Unfortunately, the implementation of that Presidential Review

Commission missed this point.

vt sl il i

LALE S HE

STATION COMMANDER ‘
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(r) Some of us also thought that the 2008 ‘National Micro
Organization of the State’' review project would correct this missed
point.

(s) Unfortunately, instead, the project introduced a Ministry in the

Presidency responsible for Performance Monitoring and Evaluation

whilst retaining the Ministry of Public Service and Administration

which has in its functional list such powers
evaluation— a possible costly duplicati

(t) Put the last point aside as debatably not directly linked to the

scope of the Commission_,—:aﬁfff%ﬁe point “I“am making is that the

Minister for Public -Servi \dministration would deal

decisively with isstes "rgélated to the employment, transfer and/or

dismissal situatio

 of theHeads of National Department, including

testing the-validly o .a_clairﬁ by any Executive Authority that there
breakdown of trust affecting and justifying the exit of

: N;iional Department, if the seniority question was

Ié, this was- and remains a miséing link today and most
Heads of National Department become victims of this missing link.
(v) Simitarly, the missing link deprives Executive Authorities of an
opportunity to provide the merits of their assumption of the

g POL 1._)“"1—)51"5\5
prevalence of irretrievable breakdeWﬁ'o?*mMgattfymg their moves
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to let go of Heads of National Department, exposing them to
second-guessing.

(w) Of course, it can be argued that Cabinet itself could manage
the situation and demand qualifications on a claim of breakdown of

trust as a reason for any transfer because all such cases need

obligatory procedure that

including the Presid

Public Service and

-- |ded to ._,_ake the option of transfer in order to avoid a situation

vhere Mr Maseko would have been a victim of the missing link he

did ot create and exit the Public Service with a cloud hanging
over his head.

(z)! do not regret to have done that.

(aa) | reflected on this aspect in detalls in the_sectign of this

- l-_'*_"“ - ( ;\l\ ‘“r T)OII BWDIE ud

Statement dealing with my back rdﬁnd A ON COMMANDER
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(bb) | would do it still if | were to get a second chance under
similar circumstances.

(cc) | could not see our Public Service winning in the delivery of
setvices unless we take care of senior officials beyond temptations
to release them, no matter how strongly we feel against them as

principals, of course they (DGs) also bringing____::_?;__t_hei?“ e and not

create reasons for the temptations.
(dd) | recall that Mr Maseko was veryclea ith“me about his
decision no longer to stay long i

options to pursue, as he said so

osition about public service by the time the

appreciating-that he'would have made a valuable contribution by

the me he cic?ed to leave.

(mgecaugg my offer was agreed to, | managed the transfer process,

and | think it should be in the records of DPSA and/or GCIS that

the due process was managed through, namely: The written

consent of the releasing Executive Authority, a Cabinet

bt oy,

F1OCT 201
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signed Cabinet Minute of the Minister of DPSA and the President,
as well as the appointment letter on transfer.

(9g) If my offer of transfer was not approved, the remaining
option was that of redetermining his contract in terms of the
applicable formula and procedure, including that he would have

been expected to give consent to the calculated severance

initiated by him and that it had to ki

contract was still valid.

pplicable rocedure dealing with resignations.

I 23“?}‘

(jj)Th.-e wérst case scenario would have been that Mr Maseko refused

to resign and the Executive Authority still insisted that the decision

for his exit should stand, in which cage-the.Executive_Authority

SUIL AFRIKAANSE POLISIEDIENE!
. o , STA '
could have invoked dismissal proceedirgs. = O COMMANDER
1 1OCT 201
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(kk) The alternative worst case situation could have been that Mr

Maseko could have refused to resign but declare a dispute.

4.1.2 ADD PARAGRAPH 2.2

QUESTION:

(b) It

~.and wa}j:.{:"iiﬁ?lf"""Maseko’s Principal.

as also in charge with matters relating to

div'”_e__:_r___nmeht}f;_th’lmunications and Information Services (GCIS)

in that discussion where | made a proposal for Mr.

Maseko's transfer to the Department of Public Service and

Administra

fisp-afterit.cameastetiol

t that there was a decision for

his exit.

_ STATION COMMANDER
110Ct 2049
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(c) | did not have knowledge of the facts and circumstances which
gave rise to a decision for Mr Maseko's exit from Government
Communications and Information Services (GCIS).

(d) The Minister was very clear to me that there was a decision for Mr
Maseko's exit and he was not approaching me for an advice about

that decision, but he was doing so for an adwce on exit

management only.

(f) 1 understood what it meant

(9) | did not ask further bedays

(h) I negotiated for

rance. the he would support the move to transfer him if he, Mr

(i) Weﬁ;ééreed that both of us should consult him (Maseko) about this

individually, the outcome of which | referred to earlier in this

Statement, that he gave consent to the transfer.

15
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(i) Yes, | know the facts and circumstances that gave rise to the
transfer of Mr Maseko to the Department of Public Service and
Administration.

(k) It came about as an option considered and introduced by the

Minister for Public Service and Administration of the time (1) after it

was reported (to me) that there was a decision takefi.for his (Mr

Maseko's) exit from GCIS.

4.1.3 AD PAGRAPH 2.3

16
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QUESTION:

Did the then President of the Republic consult with you before the
transfer took place? If so, please indicate where, when and how the
consultation took place. If not, are you able to explain why such a

consultation did not take place?

ANSWER:

" ]

5. ‘where”, “when” and

n of transfer to a point where the said Minister gave support
to the move and the necessary paper work done
(d) It was my understanding that the Minister in the Presidency duly |

represented the Office of the Presidengg,e.s@{q ishment, under the

oSO
ANRNOER
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personal leadership of the then President, and that was enough for
me.

(e) | did not have any doubt about that fact and it therefore did not
arise that 1 should demand the personal presence of the then
President to have a discussion with me, granted th:gt, anyway, he
was the only one who could approve such atransf r when he

signed the Presidential Minute after Cabinet. oncurreri

ADD PARAGRAPH 2.4

QUESTION

.To your knowledge and recollection, what are the normal requirements

and practice or procedures to bring about a lawful transfer of a Head of a

L—]’}\— 18
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National Department, having regards to the provisions of section 12 and

12A of the Public Service Act?

ANSWER

(a) REQUIREMENTS

A lawful transfer of a Head al Department is done

compel ncles of the Head of Department to be transferred,

is the functional scope of the targeted location.

(iii) It may be meant to strengthen the general Public Service,

more especially in a situation where the intended location of

el
-
P s

transfer serves a transvejs&‘l\hw&%%\lﬁa tituency and the
KPR MJ\NDER
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such strength, and this is what is considered as transfer at

public interest.

(iv) The transfer may be meant to combine the competencies of
the candidate with management of a crisis situation where

there exist a material irretrievable break n of trust

(vn) lf mltlated by the Executive Authority, the Head of a National

Department to be transferred must give consent.

(viii) The Executive Authority may overrule the Head of the

Department and transfer hlnypg_ﬁ@ﬁb’t consent if the

TR e
transfer is meant te& ddms@vg E%%%'nferes
1 10
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(ix)  The initiator must have negotiated for an alternative location.

(x) The alternative location must be the same in rank and

conditions or equivalent with the one being vacated so that

the transferred official is not worse-off due.to the:" ansfer.

The Executive Authority of the r tion. must concur

the recommending Minister for the transfer,

ir'réé.‘pg ve of whether the transfer was initiated by him/her
5

nd, having satisfied him-/herself of the above

eguirements.

(i)  The releasing Minister coordinates with the Minister for

Public Service and Administration in developlﬂ%—ﬁ%ﬂabmet
(DAL HIKAANSE PO

Memorandum seeking Cabin tAppP@@élPOMMmeER
1 10CT 208
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(if) The transfer can only be effected if Cabinet concurs with the

recommendation.

(iv) After Cabinet concurrence, the Executive Authority of the

Nationa! Executive signs a Presidentia Miri e for the

PROVIDE THE COMMISSION WITH ALL INFORMATION YOU HAVE

AND EVERYTHING YOU KNOW ABOUI,)’_% R  WORKING
,ﬁ-sé'péuleDlE
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RELATIONSHIP WITH Mr MASEKO WHEN HE WAS DIRECTOR

GENERAL IN THE DPSA

ANSWER

usual and nothing special in our
relationé"ﬁ'ﬁjrﬁith@ . would:justify a grave concern necessitating that |

.\ta’-w_hefhér any of my action/s in that relationship could

"‘é‘b_r_:_p_rqm'thing corruption and fraud, as it appears to be now.

(c) | indicated details of how | handled cases of DGs and all Members

of the Senior Management Service in the background section of

{;éy@-,c(ri‘"ﬁi“@méé‘ﬁfiir?-;!EDlEﬁ*s'"
STATION COMMANDER |
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this Statement, including those who would even go to the extent of

challenging my leadership.

(d) That articulation gives an illustration of what to me constituted a

normal working relationship.

(e) That is meant to cut across my relationshi

Themba Maseko.

(f) The summary of some of ‘ es about my experience in |

working with Members.“.offf‘-ét

(g An my: 'abécity as the Executive Authority of the Department |
kn;éw the cut-off points and points of convergence between the
responsibilities of a Minister and those of the Accounting Officer of

the Department and at no stage did | encroach into the protected
D- AFRH{ ------- e

Sy
areas of the DG as the Accoynti
ON CDMMANDEH
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(h) In fact, | worked also and at around the same time with the
Director General of Palama, formerly South African Management
Development Institute (SAMDI) and now School of Governance;
the Director General of Government Employees Medical Scheme
(GEMS); the Director General for the Public Serwce Commission;

.....

the Director General of the Centre for Public ._Serwc“ Innovation

(CPSI); the Chief Executive Officer of =

There could be no special dispensation for Mr Maseko and | never

tréa ed him with any difference.

(j) Of course, there was space for senior officials, including DGs to
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insubordination, as | recalled in details in the background section

of my statement.

(k) All other Members of the Senior Management Service of the

DPSA were assigned areas of responsibility and specialisation,

such as Governance, Corporate Services, Labour, Relations,

“:Executive Authority should in fact do so, for the realization of the
str.ateg}.c objectives of the Department in the realization of the
basic values of the Public Administration, as enshrined in the

Constitution, namely:

* Promoting and maintaining a high standard of profess;%{gﬁl ethics;
L — ()O’Qg?jﬁ,;"'
. - . ER w}*ﬁig"” JER
» Promoting efficient, economic and i %@Wé‘%urces;

i 1 OC aw 26
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¢ Ensuring a development-oriented public service;

¢ Providing services impartially, fairly and without bias;

* Responding to peoples’ needs and encouraging the public to
participate in policy-making;

e Ensure accountable public administration;

» Fostering transparency by providing the

accessible and accurate information;

- respecting each other.

(n) I would intervene in situations where certain members of the
SUID-AFRIKAANSE POLISIEDIENS!
senior management would shpow dittatotiakigndencies towards

110CT 201
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(o) | understand that Mr Maseko worked with us for a very short
period of time and that possibly he left before we really bonded
and possibly he left before he was fully accustomed to the intricate
situation in DPSA, judging from the statement he __made with the

Commission that he was badly treated by me and pogsibly being

me to answer.

(p) | also understand that hewas pr

_"_fficu situation on his encounters

(r) He is entitled to his own conclusions about me and | consider that

as normal.
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(s} All what [ can say is that for any observation that he may have
made about our relationship and which he disliked, it was all in the
course of duty and it is just that | sometimes feel strongly about
certain things and would like to see them handled in a particular

way and if, for the short period that we worked together, it was all

disappointment on his part, it was not intended and t+

Tegotiation period and much of

ding ‘the collective bargaining

i _wndaﬁng Committee of Ministers that |

g
ik
B

pd évlso interacting with leaders of Trade

|Srregard, | have to state that we did not have the luxury of
time and would have been counter-productive for keeping a long

chain of communications in labour relations and that, at the time,

we were already at an ad\[MEe@M@@J:i%:with established

eyt e

STATION COMMANDER
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collective bargaining at a political level, due consideration taken of
the sensitivities around this highly-regulated process of the Public

Service Sector Collective Bargaining Council (PSSCBC).

(v) At that stage, Mr Maseko was still new in the Department and we

would have compromised the negotiations in a bi

negative

way, had we introduced a new pracii

expectations and, of course, there was a nee for.:h__i_im to broadly

ction policy and established

und section of this Statement:

(x)} Unfortunately, his exit robbed us of an opportunity to do do

anything about perceptions.

1 Y0CT zonm
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4.2.2: ADD PARAGRAPH 1.1 {f)

QUESTION

PROVIDE THE COMMISION WITH ALL INFORM TION .YOU HAVE

AND EVERYTHING YOU KNOW. 2 BOUT I_:ERMII\IATION OF Mr

MASEKO'S APPOINTMENT AS-DIRECTOR GENERAL OF DPSA

ANSWER

(a)l ani: ttih piéces of information together to establish the facts

about the redetermination of Mr Maseko's contract and | am
readlng in his letter that there is reference to a meeting we held on
the 10" June and 15™ June 201 1, about 8 years ago and it would

appear that such is a meeting where his exit was discussed.

-----—-.-.‘.._\.
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(b) I cannot explain how much | wish | could have access to all those
records to be able to answer this question fully and to attach to this
Statement for the Commission’s convenience and ease of

reference, and how much frustrated | feel that these records,

available to all interested except me, are not acceSSIbIe to me and

this Statement.

(c) | want to refer the Commis__é@n to tion from a letter written

to me by Mr Maseko on the 1582 July 2011 and a copy of which

was given to me from t Ny tige;f rs of the Commission, and he

says: ‘| her byéx onfir indeed accepting the proposal for

bé‘;;;\_?\re-determined with effect from 1 July

2011 have‘how had the opportunity to study the proposal

made by Mr Rapea and hereby confirm that | accept paragraph 4.1
' it 'mechanlsms’ | believe that this is a fair and reasonable

\}véy to'exit the public service. | am grateful to you for making my

SE POLISIEDIEN:
exit to be as amicable as possibl @iw R

STATION COMMANDER
1 10CT 208
DETECEV[‘&;
,g__,_*ﬁmp hemba

(d) The contents of this letter sound to
GOLTH AV,

G

Maseko that | know, and not the one feflected in his concerns
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about our relationship, and these contents sound like
communicating what has been the essence of my engagement

with him right from the time | had to manage his exit from GCIS.

(e) | do not remember the details of our discussion that led to the

conclusion bringing about a dispensation on the bas of which this

(f) The recollecti
indicated: that |
<e a continuation of our discussion during his transfer

nd what | alluded to that he indicated to me during

{g) It could also have been that he did not like my style of leadership

and so what was to be an altgTElTERREINEr M PUBRLS

him seemed eluding which, i

it is true0(t WEId ha

DETECTIVES
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manifestation of some of the things | am alluding to in the
background section of this Statement about some officials

challenging my leadership, although in his case it would have been

a hasty conclusion.

-whatever could have

ar aging ‘his exit before the chapter of his

transfer was fi memory, the likelihood of which was

high, had | left the |

hg a short cut was the case, and viewed against the
background of the situation prior the transfer, the move was fair
and that can only be done by a principal who would not like to see

officials worse off even at the point of exit from service, for as long

. . AFRIKAANSE POLISIEDIENS
as a valid case exist. SUI>-A
STATION COMMANDER
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TTECTIVES _
ﬂfﬁL apow 1 (" *"i\
SR RER AR PHLICE SFAVICE




FP-JGZ-1942

(k) After all, redetermination of the contract was the option we would
have taken earlier if the transfer one did not materialize by the time

he left the GCIS.

() In whatever could have led to the circumstances g

1g_rise to Mr

r declare a dispute that would have been handled accordingly.

(n) | considered the implication of him resigning and the

consequences thereof, and | decided to treat the matter broadly

and voluntarily revoked the GGlS-exit situationste,metivate for a

' STATION COMMANDER
redetermination and), luckily nobody ca{lqcbaezb%order for that.
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(o) Although Mr Maseko has no space fo accommodate and
appreciate what | did, | do not regret to have facilitated his smooth
exit which, by the way, even then | tried to encourage him to stay

within DPSA.,

(p) My conscious is clear!

1 ADD PARAGRAPH 1.1 (a)

PROVIDE ALL THE INFORMATION YOU HAVE AND EVERYTHING

YOU KNOW ABOUT THE APPOINTMENT OF Mr MZWANELE MANY]

D T,

R S REp T AT

COMMANDER

AS DIRECTOR GENERAL OF LABO

Wy

| 1 10CT 201
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ANSWER

(@) | got to know about the appointment of Mr Manyi when | was

called upon to support the Minister of Labour during that time, as

he was negotiating a package with him, becauézé_;:,_he was an

: ﬁéﬁ?_ctable f-ff_rom-v;@him as a candidate and there was no special

at needed a special skill in the Department of Labour at

(d) Mr Manyi accepted to be appointed at the applicablesalany scale.
STATION COMMANDER
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(e) | do not remember as to the stage at which the Minister was in the
recruitment process at the time we had the discussing, | mean as

to whether at the time the selection interview was done or it was

before that.

(f) Thereafter he was appointed and this can be vc;r'if: d with the

Ministry of Labour.

5.1,26:ADD PARAGRAPH 1.1 (b)

THE QUESTION

PROVIDE ALL THE INFORMATION YOU HAVE AND EVERYTHING

YOU KNOW ABOUT THE DISMISSAL OF Mr MANYIL.EROM THE
sunnﬁﬁmwu

STATION COMMANDER

1 1 0CT 208
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ANSWER

(a) | recall only limited informatibn about this matter, refreshed
through a copy of a letter sent to me by the investigators of the

State Capture Commission.

. this question.

5.1.3: ADD PARAGRAPH 1.1 (c)

T A TIKAANGE POLISIEDIEL:
T STATION COMMANDER
1 10C1 2618

pETEC !'NES .
HILLQE’%DW_M:_‘WE--

e

SUTH AFRICAN POLICY

.



FP-JGZ-1947

QUESTION

PROVIDE ALL THE INFORMATION YOU HAVE AND EVERYTHING
YOU KNOW ABOUT THE TRANSFER OF Mr MANYl TO THE

GOVERNMENT COMMUNICATION AND INFORMATION:SERVICES

ANSWER

(a) Mr Manyi's transfer to the GC > happefied at the same time with

A

Mr Maseko's tra_n‘é-féfgz'frgm the to the DPSA, and it was

I the space that became vacant with

@Whe inisters of Labour and of Performance Monitoring and

% EvaIuafli_dﬁﬁih the Presidency, respectively, concurred with the
movée after Mr Manyi declared his consent to the transfer, and

thereafter the due process ensued.

(¢) A Cabinet Memorandum was submitted seeking concurrence and,

_ ' _ [SUID-AFRIKAANSE POLISIEDIENS
accordingly, the Cabinet Minute \was sighRadiph iz Iransfe
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6. MY RESPONSE TO A DIRECTIVE TO PROVIDE A PORTFOLIO

OF EVIDENCE

6.1.1 ADD PARAGRAPH

QUESTION

documents.:

meetings, discussions and interactions with other persons,
including those | mentioned in names and in titles of their

positions in this Statement, because it is almost ten years now

BUDALBIKARNSE POLISIEDIENS!
STATION COMMANDER
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since | left the Department and | have no access to such
records.

(b) | am afraid that even in situations where | could find assistance
to have access to such records from the Departments

concerned, whoever would provide such an assistance would

require authorization to do so, and | am also mmdul of the fact

approached by " _mm.is'___'ﬁlon; particularly such records as

Cabinet M residential Minutes, Cabinet Minutes,

that a record like that may e’ﬁ%{iﬁﬁﬂouﬁlw‘ﬁ’ﬁé‘ny f those |
‘ 1UL( ‘im‘d

=
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interacted with kept a record of some sort, though its

admissibility as concrete evidence will have fo be tested, if any.
(e)With a time lapse of almost ten years and a lot of things | did in

the interval, a lot of details found space in the cracks of oblivion

and [ cannot remember who attended which me_eting on which

date to discuss what issue producing what det fed outcome

with who else at what time, etc.

7. MY BACKGROUND

7.1.1 1, son of John Mantlanyi Baloyi ATV

50 (fifth) on Christmas Day in 1958, into a family of 16 (sixteen) {09 from

43
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my mother and 07 from my junior mother, my father's second wife}, born
and bred at the now-Shawela Village in the Mahumani Traditional

Community, Greater Giyani Municipality, in Limpopo).

eahlng for two years as an Unqualified Educator at
Maphusha High School at the Shikhumba Vilage of the
.I.\;I;ﬁumani Traditional Community in 1981 - 1982, | pursued my
College Studies at Tompi Seleka College of Agriculture at

Marble Hall in the Sekhukhune District of Limpopo in 1983 to

SUD-AERIKAANSE P POLISIEDIENS
SUID-AFRIKAANSE PN

STATION COMMANDER
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April 1984, reading for a Diploma in Agricultural Extension and

Rural Development.

7.1.5 My studies got interrupted when | was expelled from the
College, for my role as a Student Leader (President of the

SRC, there called Top Seven Students).

Ult South African is recorded

(b)A TransportAd ninistration Officer with the Giyani Depariment of

. Agriculture in 1984 — 1994;
(c)
(d)A Customer Service Manager with ESKOM in 1995 — 1997;

;ommunity Development Officer with ESKOM in 1994 — 1995;

(e)A Municipal Mayor (Part-time) for Greater Giyani Transitional Local

Council in 1997 - 1999;

. . . e pon og FDIEN _ .
(f) A Electrification Planning Maﬁ%ﬁ}@ﬁgﬁéﬁﬁ 97 — 1999;
y 10CT 2018 N
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(9) A Member of Parliament (National Assembly) in 1999 — 2013;

(h) A Minister for Public Service and Administration in 2008 — 2011;

(1) A Minister for Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs in
2011 - 2013;

(i) A Diplomat representing South Aftica as an Ambassador in the

Republic of Congo — Brazzaville in 2014 — 2018__;

7.2.1 Notwithstanding my broad background information as to the

A RIS Pou;;iébgié"ﬁé
STATION COMM N

decided that | should giye mord If#6in{&tlon oni
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turn in the public service locally at Legislative and Executive
levels in the National sphere of the State and externally as a
Diplomat, singling out certain responsibilities to give meaning
to the command of consciousness about what makes the

practice of administration tick, and confine my personal

contribution and take about how | got thi

needed to be done.

id verythlng | know

public management,

7.3 MY EXPERIENCE AT THE LEGISLATURE LEVEL

7.3.1 RESPECT TO ORGANS OF STATE

(@) | was a Member of Parliament of the Republic of South Africa
SUID-ATRIKAANSE POLISIEDIENS
during the 2™ up to the fourth termrof Badiament, sworn in as a
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Member of the National Assembly for the 1%t time in 1999, the
second time in 2004 and the third time in 2009.

(b) At all these opportunities | took an Oath of Office in terms of the
Constitution, stating that “I swear that | will be faithful to the

Republic of South Africa and will obey, respect and uphold the

Constitution and all other law of the Republic; and:| solemnly

promise to perform my functions as a M

(e) The cénnecting dot for a Member of Parliament in this regard has

to do with internalizing the obligations to respect the notion and

___“_,_.....u

o
bR 1

TRIKAANSE
'%Pq} R%Mwwf'th‘:ﬂ reqliisite  power
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(f) I served with that consciousness, to the best of my ability, and
would make it a point that my corner of responsibility remained
bright as a team player part of the whole establishment of the

Legislative Organ of State.

7.3.2 SERVED WITH NO RESERVATION

would harm it, as well: as

interests would be don

always availed myself to live up to the fulfililment of the Qath

f‘“_ ook” and to discharge my duties without reservations,
includtng where | had to go extra miles, though at all such
times leaving room for correction and continual self-renewal,
peer-influence and organizational discipline.

(d) Itis worth considering that at the time, the country was still at
(SUID-AF RIKAANSE POLISIEDIENS

her early years of experemcimgngich |a  democratic
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(9)

FP-JGZ-1957

dispensation and that there was little to inherit from those
who were part of the intra-parliamentary politics from the old
order.

From a practical point of view it sometimes looked like a walk

in a thick jungle with sometimes complicated inhabitants,

had no historical legacy.

It is also a fact, the World-over

_rg'éfh;;;__of Sta%@g into the other's

for encroachment of one .

domain remains comr

emacy of the Constitution.

ime to time there would be mumblings when the

Judiciary would pronounce on the unconstitutionality of a

- :'Biece of legislation and direct the Legislature to review same,

(i)

arguing that the latter was in fact legislating through the back
door.

There would also be situations where_the Executive would
SUID-AFRIKAANSE POLISIEDIENS

feel like there should be certainl ared¥ tRATLHENRF not be
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legislated and where the powers of Parliament should be
curtailed, such as whether Parliament should effectively pass

the Budget Bill or it should just flow like a formality of debate

and the Executive just continue to implement the Budget.

tamentarians had to soldier on.

~ensu g%ﬁat the voice of Parliament was heard and in a

manner that it played its role in perfect alignment with the

efined relationship with the other Organs of State.

(c) One natural character is that | do not subscribe to the notion
of grandstanding and egocentrism and as such would handle

issues as they came and work in consonance with

colleagues,

v

agREGimgathetposition of my principals and

STATION COMMANDE R
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adhering to the policy standpoint of my Government of the
day.

(d) In situations where | would be duty bound to make a
contribution to insist on the right things to be done and the

right decision to be taken whenever divergence would rear

its ugly head, | would not “pass the buc and would not

TY PARLIAMENTARY ORGAN LEADERSHIP ROLE

(@) | served in a number of Whippery positions, such as on

Constituency work, digGiplrgik@istormatiom|of Parliament
STATION COMMANDER
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and participated at all instances that my involvement would
be required.

(b) In so doing | contributed in strengthening the hand of
Parliament because in a Democracy with a proper notion and
practice of the separation of powers betws_;_en Organs of

State, there is a compelling obligation for each"’rgan to pull

realm.
(c) | had to strengthen.

Caucus of the ruling

My exposure as a Member of Parliament enjoined me to
cc%meto terms with policy and other regulatory instruments
involved in the interphase between the Executive Organ of
the State and the Legislative one, as well as the role and

responsibilities of the structures in the Executive Organ and

SUID-AFRIKAANSE POLISIEDIENS!
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the three spheres of Government, i.e Local, Provincial and
National Government spheres.

This had to be so because Parliament has an oversight
function over the Executive and in the manner that for such
to happen, Parliamentarians ought to be equal to the tasks

and fully understand what the Executive Organ owers and

functions, as well as associated limitations, are

It is therefore required that P n:': should know

their respective Departments.
The overall responsibility of the Executive Authority to initiate
and implement the policies of the Government of the day is

SUID-AFRIG A7
thus the mandate given| to s’&hﬁ‘o;\,
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implementation led by the Ministers at a micro-level and by
the President at a macro level.

(h) Itis an implied course in the accountability regime therefore
that, under normal circumstances, Ministers’ first line of
accountability is with the Head of the National__Executive, the

coordinator of State Departments and

. Executive

)

i ts--"”th*rough debates in Parliament, and the

Pres éntﬂglso having to appear at given times to do so
W|th|n the confines of his Executive Authority.

(k)As a Member, | generally participated as and when it

emerged that | should raise issues.

PN AT AANSE POLISIEDIENS
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7.3.6 PARLIAMENT COMMITTEES

(a) | served in several Committees of Parliament at different levels, as
indicated in the table below, and would from time to time raise

issues as part of the collective, calling on Ministers to account as

well as leaders of other organs of the democratic g vernment in

ra

their line-function focus.

COMMITTEE

VEL%GF PARTICIPATION

Member, Whip, Chairperson

: Aséembly Rules | Member

Committé:'a

Joint Rules Committee Member

Joint Committee on Ethics and | Member

Members' Interests SUID AR ARNSE S e e

STATION CQpgns s
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Ad. hoc Committee on one Public

Protector's Report

Whip

Reference Group on the
remunerative packages of
Members of Parliament and other

organs of State

Participant

The Ad hoc Committee on the

African Peer Review Mechanism

thISf‘eld at University level, as well as having had several

exposures in matters that had to do with related activities.

SUID-AFRIKAANSE POLISIEDIENS

STATION COMMANDER

1 10CT 209

DETECTIVES
HILLBROW

SOUTH AFRIGAN POLIGE SERVICE

Loy

57



FP-JGZ-1965

7.3.7 FOCUS ON REGULATORY INSTRUMENTS
(a) | managed the process to implement applicable legislation
and policies as an enabling mechanism of a Constitutional
instruction that the Public Adrninistr‘ation of the Republic of
South Africa should embrace the values as enshrined in

Section 195 of the Constitution, putting peo

irst in that

regard and the successful realizationof which uesand

5

Public

Service

ation, my role entailed coordinating the

the Department of Public Service and Administration and all

other organs of State whose primary responsibilities would
be the promotion of the values of administration enshrined in
the Constitution.

(c) The Department and gther.._organs, including the

prfm&ééaOLfSaﬁﬁm
independent Public Servide Coffifiiésisnmusgd 0] appear
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before the Portfolio Committee and deal with those robust
questions that would seek to respond to issues of
goverhance at the behest of Parliament.

(d) The relationship was always professional; meaning that

different role players had to understand that we could only be

complementary to each other if we knew the? ent of our

respective functions and powers:.and . always

We wo Id alw:ays rise above such differences and look at a bigger

pinGré around which we would shape a way forward, reminding

each other of the inherent functions and powers of the institutions
we represented and how we should forge a common

understanding, even if to refer tojrea@h»%bﬁt*aﬁoﬁeceﬁsww evils in

___________________ SEDIEN
STATION (..OMM:*\ND[_H
11007 201
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a State with a profound separation of powers as a cornerstone of

our democratic dispensation.

7.3.8 TEAMWORK
(a) There would be situations where the officials of ’tﬁ'@ Department

and other organs would have different takes on differei

pr é_‘;_gs;onal relationships there is bound to be instances where
people see things differently.
(d)The mantle of astuteness in this regard and a s leader is in

trying to understand why one differs with the standpoints of

T R Mt et it bt

others and feel so strongly abou
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their differences and let them not pull rank or cry victim without

) due engagement.

7.4 MY EXPERIENCE AT THE NATIONAL EXECUTIVE

741MINISTER  FOR  PUBLIC  SERVICE  AND

ADMINISTRATION

Portfolio of Public Service and Administration as a

(d) At both such appointments | took an Oath and said “I
swear that | will be faithful to the Republic of South Africa

and will obey, respect and uphold the Constitution and all
SUID-AFRIKAANSE P

other law of thg 1v10) (oM< 1ATe
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office as Minister with honor and dignity; to be a true and
faithful counsellor; not to divulge directly and indirectly
any secret matter entrusted to me; and to perform the
functions of my office conscientiously and to the best of

my ability. So help me God".

7.4.2 EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY OF DP .

(a)

i | understood that it meant that | assumed the position

W|th distinct line-functions assigned to me as per the
specific Portfolio establishment gazette.

(c) | understood that | had become the Executive Authority of

the Department of Public Service and Administration and

BU 2 can,
accordingly meant to enslre ﬁratmi}h:éfbamc values and
110U L0y
Utpr.,,
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principles of our public administration had to be promoted,
that the Public Service Commission must be supported to
perform its functions as a watch-dog body for our value-

laden administration and that the career incidents of the

public service must be well guided through policies,

(d)

ensuring that it i

functionally

7.4.3 MANAGING IN A TRANSITION

(a) It was a difficult moment ]ﬁl}gﬁfmgr__the reins after the

KAANSE POLISIEDIE
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predecessor and also coming inte the picture few months
before the national elections that was to bring about a
new dispensation of leadership of the administration.

(b) It was like managing a transition, but doing so in an
environment business-as-usual with full agcountability to

as the

Parliament as an individual and collectivel

government leadership of the time

(c)

ould ot spare the public

Y

S

‘who believe too much in themselves, are so

ébﬁ%dent and complacent with dispensations and would
be so suspicious about a change of leaders
(f) 1 also understood that there would be those officials who

are so unpredictable and wg.&)eag&fgl!oyy__thiynds of

i Mm@éfﬁt (EDIENS]
| change or tty to block the srhootiP Ho@MPsoiDes
- 110CT 209
o DETECTIVE :
l‘@'ﬁﬁ?mrwm'“““wﬁsﬁ A
e HATHICAN POLICESERVIE] 64




(g)

(h)

FP-JGZ-1972

All these tendencies are prone of entrenching themselves
throughout terms of assignments/employment and have
the ability to mutate into different forms, thus
characterizing the work environment as perfectly dynamic.

Even some of those officials that get appointed by leaders

on accumulated merits observed through the:recruitment

‘was not naive about the reality of change and general

work-place dynamics and would thus not expect anything

to the contrary, and | was ready to treat such as a normal

situation.
SO -AERIKAANSE POLISIEDIENS]
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(b) This was so because of the experience | had in dealing
with different manifestations in leading people and in
being led by other principals before.

{c) I understood that some could argue that the type of

change that took place in South Africa at the time was

leed some of those negative tendencies confronted me

in my position as a Minister for Public Service and
Administration, manifesting in different ways and at all
such times | treated those as normal, confronted them

and found solutions on a case-hy-case that ultimately kept
%?J%E’XHMMNSE POLISIEQIENS] yHeP
us going without elevating® HESE M8 FEncies into
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insurmountable problems warranting a review ten years or
more down the line.

(@) | recall that at one of the Strategic Planning Sessions a

member of the Senior Management Service (SMS) of the

and in a manner that left the sa

of the SMS worried about such

s of the Strategic Planning Session

ing-such:.observations about our perceived level of

ndihg and | enhcouraged participants to respect

R
such: a view and to take that on a positive note as a

éuggestion that we were duty-bound to all rise to a point
of using the work-place as a platform to correct each other
and leam from one another without stressing on
differences.

(i) The situation calmed down and we continued business-

SUID-AFRIKAANSE POLISIEDIENS
STATION COMMANDER
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(j)  For me it was a normal situation and work came first.

(k) | recall a situation where one of the associated organs of
government attached to the Department, the State
Information Technology Agency (SITA} was almost
dysfunctional because of infighting and div_i_sions that had

been going on for sometimes before [@bgacame the

Minister in charge.
(I) The divisions existed eve
Chairperson of the Po
and Administration
me and the Pgtffélip, Ct __mittgg%ra solution.

d:'”é{:?Tum-around Strategy for the

the various groupings and

. worked together through the whole SITA transformation
' programme.

(0) It was not a small matter but | soldiered on, guided by my

resolve to look at a bigger picture and deal with issues in
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(p) One of the highlights in this case was that at the point
that | was to become the Minister, there was a
recommendation from the SITA Board that a certain
candidate be appointed as the Chief Executive Officer,

and there was a view that such a move would introduce a

new dispensation and be a solution
challenges that were there.

() After | became a Ministe ormed from

different angles in the_;.___broé'ae;;_PubI' > Service picture, |

decided against mg .5?5'p_ointment as | thought

| did not hav

0 apply my mind fully on the

I recall having identified a need to strengthen the

::'Hu'r;;tioning of the Department through swapping two

| Deputy Directors General of the Department in an internal
managed horizontal cross-transfer.

(s} The driving point was that | had identified their respective

strengths and pondered %%rDAFHIKAENV%g%ﬁm%j%QP e In

STATION COMMANDER
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their new assignments, all with the intention to bolster our
operations.

(t}  As the Public Service Act dictated, | approached the two
officials, but one refused.

(u) | engaged the said official, canvassing my views as to

how | thought such would be in the best rest of the

public.

(@) | recall situations where issues would be raised for my

hands-on attitude towards work and for developing

intimate taste to quality |SPIMIRIHACRRYLSERBNS principal

STATION COMMANDER
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(b)
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would like to do, particularly with political advisers,
researchers, speech writers, members of the Senior
Management Setvice and officials whose functiona! scope
would place a responsibility to generate submissions that

would require my final attention, to approve or not

approve.
Experience about the latter situation is“whe
would generate a submissi Ql;lng-,.__fo a particular

o+ that he/she would

nd send that through

expectation would be that when such a
e ches the desk of the Minister, having gone
' rougha number of officials in the processing chain, the

said Miﬁister would simply signh in the spaces provided,

« having only glanced the submission through selected

reading only.
| would instead peruse the whole submission, sentence to

sentence, and quite often | would pick up some issues

with some of those submissjoHEARANREREPLERNE well

STATION COMMANDER
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with the recommendations and the type of action | should
sanction with my signature.

(e) | would draw the attention of such an official or the last
one who would have signed the submission before me.

(f) That caused embarrassment to some officials, as they

would view that as a negative reflection on their aleriness

{9)

““incorrect insertions in several

meetlngs, drawing their attention to the significance of

iji'\?ing due attention to written submissions and together
we found a solution that the submissions should be
written as short as possible, straight to the point and

simple language used with no jargon, so that we help

each other to support |Eger recommendations through
SUID-AF
D-AFRIKAANSE PO ISTEDIENS
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reading the texts later or when our attention would be
drawn to such.

| would at times also be accused of second-guessing
officials, a perception that | would predict an official's
intentions from a position of relative ignoraljce and yet pull

rank to enforce .my stance, risking pos ; negative

impact of the moves | was authorizi

T

1ld, introduce different to

at times having been exposed to the limitations of their

o line of thinking.

[ would walk an extra mile, however, give such officials

space to engage me, premising our engagements on the

notion that the correcthess or otherwise of a viewpoint




(n)

FP-JGZ-1981

standpoints themselves and not narrowly on time-driven
subjective experience or rank.
Where those engagements would point to limitations on

my side, | would admit, change my thinking and adopt

theirs, and would always request them to do the same in

such engagements and we

tackled the issues befope us

uncompromising on.the stangs

| would er ga

agree to disagree on the fundamentals of

Wi,
b
G

and To:n_,ts and find no issue to be detrimental in the
plementation of my thinking, or theirs if they enjoy a

be éjﬁt of doubt.

There were issues raised from time to time by some

officials in the field of advisory, research, speechwriting

and representations to Parliament's Portfolio Committee

on Public Service and Administration.

Contrary to somewhat argheigmeRme Mipeakwsdom

_ ) STATION COMMANDER
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| there as spoon-feeders of facts and positions, and that
| they always give correct versions about things and that
they will always cater for the advised completely, requiring
the advised to make no effort at all and for the advised to

accept the advised facts and positions at face value; my

experience was that of receiving advis
intervention on the things that
thoroughly engaged on.

(s) The advisors would th

(t)

doing things, arguing that | was not taking

iews nd thus generating a sense that they were

. no 'f_aiﬁ?ully employed.

5, There would be those who viewed my stance as mutually

beneficial, nonetheless.

(v)  Similar positions would be held by some speechwriters in
response to me correcting their speeches almost to a

point of re-writing, making same arguments_about them
SGE POL TISIEDIENS

e

not being fully utilized.



(w)

(2a)

FP-JGZ-1983

On engagements, we developed an approach where we
would sit and discuss what would be in the speech,
including quotations to be made, after which | would use
those facts to develop the speech mysel_f.

| admit that this might not be encouraglng to go about

doing things and my experience is that th:j

who

speechwriter seriously {hr

- nevertheless.

This is not the issue because such situations would arise
and we had to act in a particular way, with final
instructions having to be taken.

The reality is that evenyj ~i§unh situations, | never took
R“KAAN ff’O ;ﬁ

‘-.\..\.‘)
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interests and/or to undermine the interests of the State or
cause same to be undermined.

{bb) Whenever my word prevailed, it was for best serving
public interests and not at the expense of the State.

(cc) It was just that any team has a Ieade__r__ whose voice

the voice

should prevail after all else is done

happened to be mine at the time inr‘_;;quesh

7.4.6 MANAGING WAGE NEGO

ISt dealing with issues related to the determinations
a_qg'_;f'adjjl..lstments of the salaries of public servants and
W|th the responsibility to provide a mandate for the

Government's angle of negotiations in the collective

bargaining processes.

(b) This was also one area where there would be sharp and

robust engagements MMQQ:U}%“%MMSIQE, as my

STATION COMMANDER
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- where the workers had determined a balloted position with

FP-JGZ-1985

responsibility would always be to lead negotiations for
dealing with a difficult matter of drawing a balance
between what the Government would afford and what

organized [abour would demand through the bargaining

processes.

and colleagues in the Mandating

mindful about budget constraints.

| demands put forward, already rejecting the budgeted

figures as per the determined budget.
The whole process would thus start on a negative footing.

There would always be difficult sessions more especially

with the Mandatint EAEMMSSERnaIdEERg proposals for
STATION COMMANDEH
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moves upward to meet the demands from labour, the
arguments always being constraints due to the financial
situation, whereas labour would always stress about the
burdensome cost-of-living as a factor determining their
demands and they always sharpened th_;_air weapon of

influence, i.e strike action.

(h) Government as an employer also

Government do not reach

nmdenng%hat |t was decisions taken at meetings of
S i

the: ’Mandatlng Committee and Union Federation houses
ould tell as to whether the country would be facing

nfrontations between the Government as the employer

" and organized labour or not, with sometimes far-reaching
implications including the collapse of essential services
like health and education, a lot of work had to be done to

ensure that less-risky decisions are taken in the

a\jﬁﬁgﬁ%@é‘ﬁ@@both on the side of

MMANDER
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members of the Mandating Committee and the top
leadership of the Trade Union federations.

(k) 1 introduced a practice where key officials of two central
Departments in the bargaining process, i.e the DPSA and

the Department of Finance were organized into a team

supporting the Minister for P

decision-making by the Mand -I-HQ%COm’.

On the DPSA side the.lead officia uld be the Deputy

_ uch responsibilities,
ent Chief Negotiator.

the hecessary advice on the basis
epresentations to the Mandating

my assessment of the socio-

i Thifﬁs’__:;needed so concentrated a process that, at all times,
myclose hands-on attention was a necessity.

On the other hand, | negotiated with the leadership of the
union federations to establish a structure we referred to as

the Political Committee, where we would discuss issues

related to questions thatSeouidiRNiRS: abithe;pegotiating

STATION COMMANDER
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table and try to establish principles of engagements when
the negotiators finally engage on those issues.

(p) Given that these federations were ideologically and/or
politically affiliated, they had to be consulted separately
and such consultations had to be done cogfidentially, lest

the collective bargaining processes get ompromised.

(@)

tual negotiations and

ngttl:me—introduced multi-term

hanism to align the negotiation

tructure operated more like a Caucus platform and

ealt with issues whenever there was a breakdown in
' fUéi negotiations and, quite often, we managed to bring

o the process back on track.
(t) 1 remember during one negotiation season, | think the first
one of my turn as a Minister, where we discussed issues

around accommdéitingss--sal increase base th
n com %wmmmc based on the

. SE POy Igu*—ww._
]| 1Y)
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-principle of catch-up for a reportedly lost bargaining period
before, because of circumstances beyond control.
(u) The issue was thoroughly addressed at the Political

Committee level and taken forward at the negotiations

platform.

| eff it of the increment quantum on the outer years of the

-n élotiating calendar, in that a school of thought emerged
to argue that whereas the negotiatéd dispensation was
fine for the first year, it carried with it a burdensome
picture on the years going forward, a point that did not

arise during the in—house business efforts of the DPSA

e

-\-«_____‘__O: ;bﬂ-"{)”_.N
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and Finance officials, and it came to light after the final
negotiated agreement was signed.
(yY) We were left with a position having to decide either to

claw back and renegotiate or find a cushion with the outer

year negotiations, and we opted for the latter, canvassing

position as well, .and"

pUShed _OrM“ ]

¥ would have been plunged into a serious

pregicament with a stand-off between organized labour

_and Government as an employer.
It happened that such deadlocks took place from time to
time; with serious consequences including loss of human

lives and untold amount of destruction of properties,

injuries and the d P#éiﬂ*r'ﬁr%f’ SHICSEOE! but it would

i
ION COMMANDER
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have been more haunting if such happened under
conditions that could have been avoided.

It was always heartbreaking to see the public defenseless
and exposed to more often violent labour action by

employees of the Government that also has a

responsibility to protect such people,______a_nd - for that

strﬂg@ aﬂcgtion, only to move after they acted and caused all

. manner of suffering to innocent citizens.

~ As sometimes people contest positions for egoistic

considerations or for any reason as long as what is done
was not done by them, whether justified or not, the

negotiated position reoeiv%ﬁlﬁim%ﬁ% _ d{i} :E%%e was a
et - _4:;\1

TATION COMMANDER

better option they could di:;penge.
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7.4.7 IMPROVING CONDITIONS OF SERVICE
(a) The pasition of Minister for Public Service and

Administration carries with it the responsibility to make

efforts for performance enhancement"qf the Public

of sétvicgiand

Service through betterment of condit

alignment of career incide

ks, if any, and make

be removed, as well as to

| :__.af he Directors General in the Public Service should
"bt; appointed for a period of not less than five years,
renewable for not less than five years at a time, there
was a Cabinet decision that they be appointed for a

period of three years, renewable.

[SUIDAFRIAANSE POLISIEDIENS
STATION COMMANDER

1 10CT 2019

DETECTIVES
Lo HLEROW 85
SOUTHAFRICAN POLICE SERVICET

A



FP-JGZ-1993

(d) [ noted that, although this was not illegal and that it
was obviously the case after certain observations,
possibly the high tumn-over rate of such officials, |

thought we could do better with the dispensation as

expressly contained in the Act.

_._....-,.an--m""‘""“
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7.4.8 DEALING WITH A HIGH RATE OF DGs’ EXIT FROM THE
PUBLIC SERICE

(a) | was more concerned about what | considered as lack of
stability in the Public Service due to the short term of Office of

the most senior Administrative officials of State Departments

‘people: would rather look for more stable opportunities

_else_xjgg-heré and we thus had to contend with what remains in the

' SUADAL FIAANSE POLISIEDIENS
market. STATION COMMANDER

1 10CT 2018
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(d) | could imagine a frustrating situation wh%En&C ok qi of
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a DG's first year in Office would be devoted to him/her

customizing {o the new work environment, well established in
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the second year but beginning to look for an alternative
employment during the early months of the third year, for in case

the contract would not be renewed.

(e) | remember taking the issue up with one Minister who was there

since the dawn of the new dispensation and he said that during

er of contract redetermination in the five year

d|Spensat1@nrenewabIe | could only draw understanding from

é;sumptions, as follows:

(1) The fi;'st assumption | had was that it was the effect of the
negotiated sunset clauses at the Convention for a Democratic
South Africa, the impact of which being that there were probably

old-order carry-through senior officials that got absorbed into DG
SUD-AFRIKAANSE POLISIEDIENG.

positions but who would have gifficSMESNRPEMBHting the policies
1 10CT 2019 "
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of the Government of the day, thus causing friction between them

and their political principals.

(2) The second assumption | had was that the recruitment nets for
DGs were cast widely among former palitical activists, the impact

of which being a stalemate on “who’s who® with heir political

he "sfﬁ'fnption was that politics-administration dichotomy

of the Executive Authority versus the Amounting
Authorlty dispensation was a complex environment to manage,

such that tendencies were prone to show,

.......
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(g9) These assumptions helped me understand possibilities in the
whole scheme of things, strengthening my position to continue

working for stability in the Public Service.

(h)My first call to handle a case of separation between a Minister

and a DG was on the first day it was announced that | was to be

appointed as a Minister.

(i} The announcement was done in ent uring a Session,

DG hadbroken down irretrievably that they had to part ways.

ew that in a situation like that the immediate route was the

exit énd decided to continue in my resolve to work for stability

and manage the situation differently.

(m) Infact| started disliking a practice where DGs would be sent

packing at a slightest opportunitysial SMIHISIER Fid ¥4 (eason
STATION COMMANDER
110CT 2089
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for such when | was a Member and Chairperson of the Portfolio
Committee on Public Service and Administration. So, this was

my time to make a difference.

(n)l negotiated with the Minister to support a move that | try find an

alternative space for the said DG so that the official remain in

ilar circumstances and also in situations of

Itual consent and arising out of interests.

and influencing decision-making.

(r} The responsibility for recruitment, appointment and transfer

remained the competency _and—-areregativaEn
SUAD-AF RIS

< TATION COMMANDER
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(s)It would be helpful to understand power relations between the
Minister for Public Service and Administration with any other
Minister, in that there is no inference that the assigned functions

to the former would suggest any form of seniority to the latter.

exerting

(t) Any intervention in the form of support, negatiation a

the accountability thereof remai

Minister.

. secunty'elearanoe;
(2) diﬁé’liﬁgaﬁons requirements in that the candidate should meet the
minimum qualifications requirements;

(3) Selection procedure requirements in that the candidate should

have been subjected to an mtemeﬁwmmc :

Panel;

o
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(4)Salary dispensation requirements in the sense that the candidate
should have given consent to be paid within the prescribed salary
scale or that there is a strong motivation for deviation which
Cabinet should consider simultaneously.

(v) When full compliance is realized with the abovg requirements,

the Minister for Public Service and Admini tatigrii vgpuld then

Executive Authority of th Department(the Minister of Cabinet

appointment minute.

pc;int that the recommending

7.4.9 SPECIAL CASES IN APPOINTMENTS AND EXIT

(a) There were situations that demanded a different

approach in handling maters of appointments and

I syl i BTENS
WANSE POLISIEL
SUID-AFRIKAARES
STATION COMMANDER
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transfers due to the distinctiveness of the
circumstances.
(b) There were DGs for instance that would be appointed

on a higher salary scale than the one for everybody

and that happened in situations where such officials

’pa r’tl

people were earning.more:at the ‘places we recruited

(c)

Minister recommending the appointment,

Whlch should be handled simultaneously with the

:::.;’gbnsideration of the recommendations for the
appointment of the said candidate by Cabinet.

(d)There would also be situations where my negotiations

and influence would not yield. the: e
50 Tﬁ%‘“&@wwmmﬂ

within the broader Publjc Séﬁﬁ’i‘é%x pommKit from hiis/her
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Department and where we had to manage exit through
redetermination of contracts or resignations.
{e)The case of redetermining a contract would be

considered in a situation where the DG’s exit is initiated

by the Executive Authority where there is material

and Administration I maintained my conviction to the
Oath of Office | took and handled issues to the extent

of my ability.
SUID-AFTY AANSE POLISIEDIENS
STATION COMMANDER
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8. CONCLUSSION

8.1 In Conclusion, | bring a note addressing a general but related
scenario analysis about the call for me to appear before the

Commission and answer questions in a private-person capacity,

he. Minister and

ublic Service and

exi\sti___g_ African National Congress'-led Government of the

epubli__g.:%:'afi:South Africa, acting truly and within the scope of my

ma\nda’;e at the time;

9.1.1 Whereas it is my understanding that the said
Government-employer ought to have an interest in the

answers to the questions raised with-me..in the spirit of
4 SUB-A Rf!{AANSEPOUSiEbrE% P

the doctrine of ultralvires Vera %?:Mn Dﬁﬁ'es, and where
1 10CT 2018
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| as an official of the said Government at the time has
to account for my actions taken in the course of the
discharge of my valid duties;

8.1.2 Whereas | am called upon to provide in details all information |

have and everything | know on things some of which happened

aware, of the P cﬁ{patwe nature of the public service and the

inherenf*i’-ﬁ?intqfdejpe nce of officials in executing their tasks such

esta |;shed protocol as stated in 2.4 above, either for reasons of-

defending themselves or advancing their self-identified interests
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8.1.5 Whereas | am called upon to respond and nonetheless provide all
information | have and everything | know relying on recollection, to
the extent that | can remember, when such information is readily
available in Government records and through which an informed

solid case could be formulated, thus warranting proper sanctions;

8.1.6 Whereas the chosen platform to handle this m tter i he one that

conducts its affairs in public;

8.1.7 Whereas this Statement may be.%

8.1.8
ks Public :Opinion, with the same accusations or as a witness in a
case with the same elements, and where there are myriad judges
formulating opinions and making conclusive standpoints with
possible reputational consequences too ghastly to contemplate, as

[ have to submit to the he process, @it sifthere are face value facts

1_,_,_..._..—

DER
suggesting that ndee"ﬂ“ﬂ’?é‘ré |82§émeth|n wrong [ did or there is

TEGTIVES %8
i
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somebody | know who héve done so, through availing myself,

without recourse and assistance, to feed into the more-often-

vindictive caprice of the Court of Public Opinion, as they may

apparently feast on my reputation as if | am a criminal or unreliable

withess;

8.1.11 Whereas | give answers to the questions raised in this

Statement mindful_ of the fact that this is a call for me to account in

as far as how | interpreted and applied the contents of the oaths of

office | subscribed to when holding those positions, the due

injunction of the assigned indivigta le 'Agrs:r;’\ HSibIN e ERER e

ATION COMMANDER
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scope of my work as a public official, the requisite collective effort
for the shared outcomes and joint accountability mechanism in the
know that | was just part of the complete whole picture duly
expected to act in unison and conscious to do so within the

expectations of the values of our public administration as

enshrined in Section 197 of the Constitution f t.He
South Africa;

8.1.12 Whereas submitting this
appearance before the Commission earlngmay put me on the
public’'s radar screen for peOpIe

find issues to

follow up eactions and possible reprisal either by those who will
IlketOJust contest my views and/or thoée in authority who may
dislike my angle;

8.1.14 Whereas, to the extent that | can remember what happened

and provide all information | have ang-evarything ;lg;;q@wam%lt the
, .  GTATION COMMANBER
Issues raised with me and for which answ?rmlg?%igtatmg nder
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oath as correct in that context, | am strongly convinced that
perusing documents at the disposal of Government — my employer
at the time of my exposure to the situation around which the
questions are raised — as well as making a little effort to examine

existing appropriate Government instruments or mere

)

response to the questions the Commission

ins_‘tr'l;.l:bte me:to do, as indicated above.

Cc.;mmission addressed to me with contempt by either ignoring or

refusing to attend to them, I only got the documents around August
2019, and officials of the Commission later acknowledged that

their correspondence did not reach me in B EikAANSE POLISIEDIENE
STATION COMMANDER

DETECTIVES 10
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SIGNATTURE OF DEPONENT

WMo SRS

Sworn to before me at on this the -!—!-——day of

October 2019, the deponent having acknowledged thqp: |

1. He knows and understands the contents qf_ffh' afﬁd

STy "31
SO O
oUID AR RII(AANSE POLISIEDIENS]

GTATION COMMANDER
1 10CT 201

DETECTIVES
HILLBROW

[ SOUTHT AFRICAN POLICE SEHVICE

102




EXHIBIT GG (f).3

YASMIN DUARTE



FP-JGZ-2010

AFFIDAVIT

I, the unciersigned,
YASMIN DUARTE
do hereby make oath and say:-

1. T am an adult female of full legal capacity and the facts contained herein
are within my personal knowledge and belief, both true and correct. I am
also known as Jessie Duarte.

2. 1 am the Deputy Secretary General of the African National Congress
(ANC), a voluntary political organisation, having been elected to that
position for a period of 5 (five) years at the 54% National Conference of the
ANC in December 2017.

3. In March 2017 I was the Deputy General Secretary of the ANC, pursuant
to a national elective conference in December 2012,

4. In my capacity as Deputy Secretary General, I am designated as
one of the Officials in terms of the ANC Constitution.

5. Together with the President, Deputy President, National Chairperson,
Secretary General and Treasurer General, we are collectively known as
the National Officials and colloquially referred to as the Top 6”.

6. In addition to the specific constitutional responsibilities allocated to the
Officials, a practice has evolved over the years in terms of which the
Officials meet as a collective on a regular basis to discuss issues of
importance to the country and the organisation.

7. At its 52nd National Conference in 2007, the ANC resolved that with
regard to deployment of cadres at national level, the prerogative of the
President to appoint and release members of Cabinet, should be exercised
after consultation with the leadership of the organisation,

8. In a letter addressed to Jessie Duarte dated 13 September 2019, T have
been directed by the Chairperson of the Judicial Commission of Inquiry
into allegations of State Capture, Corruption and Fraud in the Public
Sector including Organs of State to furnish the Commission on or before
3 October 2019 with an affidavit or affirmed declaration and to share
my knowledge of a discussion between former President Mr JG Zuma
and Mr Pravin Gordhan on 27 March 2017 regarding the removal or

T
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possible removal of Mr Gordhan as finance minister.

9. At one of the meetings of the Officials in the last quarter of 2016, former
President Zuma told us that his relationship with minister Gordhan was
progressively deteriorating, He related a number of incidents when
minister Gordhan showed disrespect towards him and undermined
his authority in Cabinet meetings. He also made reference to a letter that
minister Gordhan had written to him which, he said, was not collegiate.
He did not show us the letter,

10. At a meeting of the Officials on 27 March 2017, former President Zuma
informed the Officials of an intelligence report which made reference to a
meeting that minister Gordhan had attended in London. He did not
produce the report but said that contents gave him great discomfort. He
told the Officials that his relationship with Mr Gordhan had irretrievably
broken down and he could no longer work with him.

11. Former President Zuma also told the Officials that he and Mr Gordhan
had a long standing political relationship which went back to the 1970s.
For that reason he would prefer if Mr Gordhan resigned on his own
accord instead of him having to fire Mr Gordhan as a minister.

12. At the meeting, former President Zuma proposed Mr Brian Molefe as Mr
Gordhan’s replacement. All the Officials objected and requested the
former President to review his decision which he undertook to do.

13. Prior to his public announcement on 31 March 2017, when he
reshuffled his Cabinet, former President Zuma informed the Officials
telephonically that evening of the changes he was making. In the case of
the finance portfolio, former President Zuma appointed Mr Malusi

Gigaba as finance minister.

DEPONENT

THUS DONE AND SWORN TO before me at EWM@E% on this
C@'day of October 2019, the Deponent having acknowledged that she
knows and understands the contents of this affidavit, has no objection to
taking the prescribed oath and considers the said oath to be binding on her
conscience, the regulations contained in Government, Notice No. 1648 dated

19 August 1977 (as amended) having been complied yith.
AJAY CHAGAN
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AFFIDAVIT

I, the undersigned,
YASMIN DUARTE
do hereby make oath and say:-

1. I am an adult female of full legal capacity and the facts contained herein
are within my personal knowledge and belief, both true and correct. [ am
also known as Jessie Duarte.

2. I am the Deputy Secretary General of the African National Congress
(ANC}, a voluntary political organisation, having been elected to that
position for a period of 5 (five) years at the 54t National Conference of the
ANC in December 2017,

3. In December 2015 I was the Deputy Secretary General of the ANC,
pursuant te a national elective conference in December 2012.

4. In my capactly as Deputy Secretary General, I am designated as
one of the Officials in terms of the ANC Constitution.

5. Together with the President, Deputy President, National Chairperson,
Secretary General and Treasurer General, we are collectively known as
the National Officials and colloquially referred to as the ‘Top 6”.

6. In addition to the specific constitutional responsibilities allocated to the
Officials, a practice has evolved over the years in terms of which the
Officials meet as a collective on a regular basis to discuss issues of
importance to the country and the organisation. :

7. At its 521d National Conference in 2007, the ANC resolved that with
regard to deployment of cadres at national level, the prerogative of the
President to appoint and release members of Cabinet, should be exercised
after consultation with the leadership of the organisation.

8. In a letter addressed to Jessie Duarte dated 9 September 2019, I have
been directed by the Chairperson of the Judicial Commission of Inquiry
into allegations of State Capture, Corruption and Fraud in the Public
Sector including Organs of State to furnish the Comimission with an
affidavit or affirmed declaration and to share my knowledge of a
discussion between former President Mr JG Zuma and Mr Nhlanhla Nene,
former finance minister, on 9 December 2015 regarding Mr Nene's

1 |
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removal from Cabinet and his deployment to a senior, high ranking

position in the African Regional Centre of the BRICS New Development
Bank. ' '

9. More specifically, [ have been directed to comment on Mr Nene’s
evidence that the Top Six met and agreed that Mr Nene should be
removed from Cabinet and so deployed.

10. On the assumption that such decisions were taken at a meeting of the
Top Six, I have been directed to state who was in attendance; what
decision or agreement was reached, if any; if Mr Nene was to be moved
out of the Ministry of Finance and where was Mr Nene going to be
deployed if there was any plan to deploy him.

11. I have been requested to give as full an account as [ can so that the
Commission can understand the reasons for and circumstances
surrounding Mr Nene’s removal.

12. The Officials have always held the view that as a relatively young
democracy and cne of the founding members of the BRICS Bank, it
would be in South Africa’s interest to have South Africans in positions of
influence in the structures of the Bank.

13. During a meeting of the Top 8ix in August 2015, former President Zuma
informed the Officials that he had canvassed with Mr Xi Jinping,
President of the Peoples Republic of China, the possibility of placing a
South African in a senior position in the African Regional Centre of the
BRICS new Development Bank and that President Jinping was
amenable to supporting such a proposal. The Officials supported former
President Zuma’s suggestion because it was in line with its view and
long held position. No potential deployees were discussed.

14. Nothing further was discussed by the Officials about the secondment to
the BRICS Bank. -

15, On Wednesday 9 Decembpr' 2015 former President Zuma informed me
telephonically that he was about to announce the appointment of Mr
van Rooyen as finance minister,

16. 1 watched the announcement on television. The actual text of the
statement from the Presidency on behalf of former President Zuma
read as follows:-

‘I would like to announce changes to the finance portfolio in Cabinet.

I have decided to remove Mr Nhlanhla Nene as Minister of Finance,
ahead of his deployment to another strategic position. Mr Nene has
done well since his appointment as Minister of Finance during a
difficult economic climate. Mr Nene enjoys a lot of respect in the sector,
locally and abroad, having also served as a deputy minister of finance

2 f@
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19,
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21.

22,

23.

24.
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previously.

I have decided to appoint a Member of Parliament, Mr David van
Rooyen, as the new Minister of Finance. Mr van Rooyen serves as a
whip of the Standing Committee on Finance and as whip of the
Economic Transformation Cluster. He is a former Executive Mayor of
Merafong Murucipality and a former North West provincial chairperson
of the South African Local Government Association.

I'wish Mr van Rooyen all the best in this new appoiniment. The new
deployment of Mr Nene will be announced in due course.”

I am aware that the former President also communicated to the other
Officials because I had a telephonic discussion with Deputy President,
Cyril Ramaphosa, who confirmed that former President Zuma was in
communication with him.

This was the first time [ became aware that Mr Nhlanhla Nene was the
person the former President had in mind when he spoke to the Officials
a few months earlier in August.

In a communique to the media on Friday 11 December 2015, former
President Zuma explained his decision in the following terms:-

‘the urgency of the changes in the leadership of the National Treasury
was because nominations needed to be sent to Shanghai in terms of the
Head of the African Regional Centre of the New Development/BRICS
Bank which will be based in Johannesburg.”

1 supported former President Zuma’s decision to appoint Mr van Rooyen
as finance minister on the grounds that he was exercising his
presidential prerogative.

However, I had received many phone calls from ANC members and other
financial stakeholders who were concerned about the appointment of Mr
van Rooyen and the negative impact on the rand/dollar exchange rate.
The general view was that Mr van Rooyen was a relatively unknown
backbencher and his appointment was received very negatively by the
financial markets and the key final decisionmakers in the country.

Dr Zweli Mkhize also called me from China to express his concerns
about the appointment of Mr van Rooyen.

On Saturday 12 December 2015, Deputy President Ramaphosa and I
went to see former President Zuma at his home in Pretoria to express
our apprehension.

On Sunday 13 December 2015 former President Zuma publicly
announced that he had decided to move Mr van Rooyen to the

3 | ,@
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ministry of co-operative governance and install Mr Pravin Gordhan, who
was the minister of co-operative governance at the time, as the minister
of finance,

25. The removal of Mr Nene as minister of finance and his prospective

deployment to the African Regional Centre of the BRICS Bank was not
discussed by the Officials in any meeting.

it

DEPONENT

Vie &
THUS DO]?E AND SWORN TO before me at Z OH ANWESENE &
on this :} day of October 2019, the Deponent having acknowledged that

she knows and understands the contents of this affidavit, has no cbjection
to taking the prescribed oath and considers the said oath to be binding on
her conscierice, the regulations contained in Government Notice No. 1648

dated 19 August 1977 (as amended) having been comfplied with.
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AFFIDAVIT

I, the undersigned,
SAMSON GWEDE MANTASHE
do hereby make oath and say:-

1.1 am an adult male and the facts contained herein are within my personal
knowledge and belief, both true and correct.

2.1 am the National Chairperson of the African National Congress (ANC), a
voluntary political organisation, having been elected to that position for a
period of 5 {five) years at the 54t National Conference of the ANC in
December 2017,

3. In March 2017 I was the Secretary General of the ANC.

4. In my capacity and National Chairperson and previously as Secretary
General, [ am designated as one of the Officials in terms of the ANC
Constitution,

5. Together with the President, Deputy President, Secretary General, Deputy
Secretary General and Treasurer General, we are collectively known as
the National Officials and colloquially referred to as the Top 6”.

6. In addition to the specific constitutional responsibilities allocated to the
Officials, a practice has evolved over the years in terms of which the
Officials meet as a collective on a regular basis to discuss issues of
importance to the country and the organisation,

7. At its 52rd National Conference in 2007, the ANC resolved that with
regard to deployment of cadres at national level, the prerogative of the
President to appoint and release members of Cabinet, should be exercised
after consultation with the leadership of the organisation.

8. I have been directed by the Chairperson of the Judicial Commission of
Inquiry into allegations of State Capture, Corruption and Fraud in the
Public Sector including Organs of State to furnish the Commission with
an affidavit or affirmed declaration and share my knowledge of a
discussion between former President Mr JG Zuma and Mr Pravin
Gardhan on 27 March 2017 regarding the removal or possible removal of

Mr Gordhan as finance minister. g _ :
. 1 ‘ \k
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9. At one of the meetings of the Officials in the last quarter of 2016, former
President Zuma told us that his relationship with minister Gordhan was
progressively deteriorating. He related a number of incidents when
minister Gordhan showed disrespect towards him and undermined
his authority in Cabinet meetings. He also made reference to a letter that
minister Gordhan had written to him which, he said, was not collegiate.
He did not show us the letter.

10. At a meeting of the Officials on 27 March 2017, former President Zuma
informed the Officials of an intelligence report which made reference to a
meeting that minister Gordhan had attended in London. He did not
produce the report but said it gave him great discomfort. He told the
Officials that his relationship with Mr Gordhan had Hrctrlevably broken
down and he could no longer work with him,

11. Former President Zuma also told the Officials that he and Mr Gordhan
had a long standing political relationship which went back to the 1970s.
For that reason he would prefer if Mr Gordhan resigned on his own
accord instead of him having to fire Mr Gordhan as a minister.

12. At the meeting, former President Zuma proposed Mr Brian Molefe as Mr
Gordhan’s replacement. All the Officials objected and requested the
former President to review his decision which he undertook to do.

13. Prior to his public announcement on 31 March 2017, when he
reshuffled his Cabinet, former President Zuma informed the Officials
telephonically that evening of the changes he was making. In the case of
the finance portfolio, former President Zuma appointed Mr Malusi
Gigaba as finance minister.

14. On 28 March 2017, Mr Gordhan, accompanied by deputy minister
Mcebisi Jonas and Director General of finance, Fuzile Fezeka, came to
see me at my office in Luthuli House in Johannesburg. The essence of
our discussion was the following:-

14,1 I reiterated to him that what I have stated above was discussed.

14.2.1 told him that the former President indicated that the relationship had
irretrievably broken down. For that reason alone, [ said the
relationship going forward would not work.

14.3 I did not comment on the verbal intelligence reports given by the former
President. In fact the view I expressed is that if the relationship had
broken down, any discussion about reliance on intelligence reports
would be immaterial.
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%s DONE AND SWORN TO before me at j - 041\)/‘/2 gﬁu&{ on this

ENT

day of October 2019, the Deponent having acknowledged that he knows and
understands the contents of this affidavit, has no objection to taking the
prescribed oath and considers the said oath to be binding on his conscience,
the regulations contained in Government Notice No. 1648 dated 19 August

1977 (as amended) having been complied with. %
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25 Owl Street, Buckfand Park
Tal: 011 834 2233
Practising Attomey - RSA
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AFFIDAVIT

I, the undersigned,
' SAMSON GWEDE MANTASHE
do hereby make cath and say:-

1. T am an adult male and the facts contained herein are within my personal
knowledge and belief, both true and correct.

2. 1 am the National Chairperson of the African National Congress (ANC),
a voluntary political organisation, having been elected to that position for
a period of 5 (five) years at the 54t National Conference of the ANC in
December 2017.

3. In December 2015 I was the Secretary General of the ANC,
4. 1 am designated as one of the Officials in terms of the ANC Constitution.

5. Togéther with the President, Deputy President, Secretary General, D'eputy
Secretary General and Treasurer General, we are collectively known as
the National Officials and colloquially referred to as the Top 6%,

6. In addition to the specific constitutional responsibilities allocated to the
Officials, a practice has evolved over the years in terms of which the
Officials meet as a collective on a regular basis to discuss issues of
importance to the country and the organisation,

7. At its 52rd National Conference in 2007, the ANC resolved that with
regard to deployment of cadres at national level, the prerogative of the
President to appoint and release members of Cabinet, should be exercised
after consultation with the leadership of the organisation.

8. I have been directed by the Chairperson of the Judicial Commission of
Inquiry into allegations of State Capture, Corruption and Fraud in the
Public Sector including Organs of State to furnish the Commission with
an affidavit or affirmed declaration and to share my knowledge of a
discussion between former President Mr JG& Ziima and Mr Nhlanhla
Nene, former finance minister, on 9 December 2015 regarding Mr Nene'’s
removal from Cabinet and his deployment to a senior, high ranking
posmon in the African Reglonal Centre of the BRICS New Development

U
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9. More specifically, I have been directed to comment on Mr Nene’s evidence
that the Top Six met and agreed that Mr Nene should be removed from
Cabinet and so deployed.

10. On the assumption that such decisions were taken at a meeting of the
Top Six, I have been directed to state who was in attendance; what
decision or agreement was reached, if any; if Mr Nene was to be moved
out of the Ministry of Finance and where was Mr Nene going to be
deployed if there was any plan to deploy him.

11. I have been requested to give as full an account as I can so that the
Commission can understand the reasons for and circumstances
surrounding Mr Nene’s removal.

12. The Officials have always held the view that as a relatively young
democracy and one of the founding members of the BRICS Bank, it
would be in South Africa’s interest to have South Africans in positions of
influence in the structures of the Bank.

13. During a meetirng of the Top Six in August 2015, former President Zuma
informed the Officials that he had canvassed with Mr Xi Jinping,
President of the Peoples Republic of China, the possibility of placing a
South African in a senior position in the African Regional Centre of the
BRICS new Development Bank and that President Jinping was
amenable to supporting such a proposal. The Officials supported former
President Zuma’s suggestion because it was in line with its view and
long held position, No potential deployces were discussed.

14. Nothing further was discussed by the Officials about the secondment to
the BRICS Bank until Wednesday 9 December 2015 when former
President Zuma publicly announced that he had decided to remove Mr
Nhlanhla Nene as minister of finance, ahead of his deployment to
another position. In the same announcement former President Zuma
stated that he had decided to appoint Mr Des van Rooyen, a member of
the National Assembly, as minister of finance. )

15. The statement by the Presidency on behalf of former President Zuma
read as follows:~

“I'would like to announce changes to the finance portfolio in Cabinet,

I have decided to remove Mr Nhlanhla Nene as Minister of Finance,
ahead of his deployment to another strategic position. Mr Nene has
done well since his appointment as Minister of Finance during a
difficult economic climate. Mr Nene enjoys a lot of respect in the sector,
locally and abroad, having also served as a deputy minister of finance
previously.

I have decided to appoint a Member of Parliament, Mr David van
Rooyen, as the new Minister of Finance. Mr van Rooyen serves as a

L
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whip of the Standing Committee on Finance and as whip of the
Economic Transformation Cluster. He is a former Executive Mayor of
Merafong Municipality and a former North West provincial chairperson
of the South African Local Government Association.

I'wish Mr van Rooyen all the best in this new appointment. The new
deployment of Mr Nene will be announced in due course.”

A few hours before the public announcement, the former President
informed me telephonically of his decision to appoint Mr van Rooyen as
the Minister of Finance and to recommend Mr Nene, the incumbent
Minister of Finance, to take up a position in the African Regional Centre
of the BRICS Bank.

I am aware that the former President also communicated his decision to
the other Officials because we spoke to each other thereafter.

This was the first time I became aware that Mr Nhlanhla Nene was the
person the former President had in mind when he spoke fo the Officials
a few months earlier in August.

In a communique to the media on Friday 11 December 2015, former
President Zuma cxplained his decision in the following terms:-

“the urgency of the changes in the leadership of the National Treasury
was because nominations needed to be sent to Shanghai in terms of the
Head of the African Regional Cenire of the New Development/BRICS
Bank which will be based in Johannesburg.”

I did not support Mr van Rooyen’s appointment because he was a :
relatively unknown backbencher and I did not believe that the financial
markets would respond positively to his appointment.

Pursuant to the communication among the Officials, the former
President undertook to take counsel,

On Sunday 13 December 2015, former President Zuma publicly
announced that he had decided to move Mr van Rooven to the

ministry of co-operative governance and install Mr Pravin Gordhan, who
was the minister of co-operative governance at the time, as the minister
of finance.

The removal of Mr Nene as minister of finance and his prospective

deployment to the African Regional Centre of the BRICS B was not
discussed by the Officials in any meeting.

r A e
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THUS DONE AND SWORN TO before me at ‘:(é?fé"ddéﬁg@ﬁg on this

day of October 2019, the Deponent having acknowledged that he knows and
understands the contents of this affidavit, has no objection to taking the
prescribed oath and considers the said oath to be binding on his conscience,
the regulations contained in Government Notice No. 1648 dated 19 August
1977 (as amended) having been complied with. {\
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CONMMISSIONER OF OATHS

 AJAY CHAGAN
12™ Flagr, Metal Box Buiiding
o5 Owl Siroet, Auckiand Park
Tel: 041 834 mansa
actising Attomey -
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AFFIDAVIT TO THE JUDICIAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO ALLEGATIONS
OF STATE CAPTURE, CORRUPTION AND FRAUD IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR

INCLUDING ORGANS OF STATE

|, the undersigned,

ZWELINI LAWRENCE MKHIZE

do hereby make oath and say:-

;

| am an adult male polilician and the facits contained herein are within my
personal knowledge and belief, both true and correct.

In December 2015 | was the Treasurer General of the African National
Congress (ANC), having been elected to that position in December 2012, for a
period of 5 (five) years.

! have been requested by the commission to provide an affidavit stating my
knowledge with regards to the removal of Mr Nhilanhia Nene as Minister of
Finance on 9 December 2015 and/for the Top Six's plans for his deployment
after such removal.

On the 9th December 2015, while | was in China, | was advised that former
President Zuma had made a public announcement that he had decided to
remove Mr Nhianhia Nene as Minister of Finance and replace him with Mr Des
van Rooyen.

I had not been aware of these changes prior to this announcement being made
and it was not discussed at any of our National Officials meetings.

It was upon becoming aware of this announcement that | engaged with the then
Secretary General, Mr Gwede Mantashe and the Deputy Secretary General
Jessie Duarte who both indicated their concerns as well as the general negative
mood developing in the country because of this reshuffle.

| also telephonically contacted President Zuma to share with him the negative
feedback | had received from various stakehoiders, both in the public and
private sector. | further proposed to him that there should be a strategy to
respond to this event which had resulted in a negative impact on the country's

1 /i‘;in m\ﬁ
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economy, as it was clear that it would not self-correct. | am also aware that
other Top Six Officials were engaging him.

8. President Zuma subseguently announced that he had decided to move Mr van
Rooyen to the Ministry of Co-operative Governance and appoint Mr Pravin

DEPONENT |
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NOTARIAL REGISTER SiDE |
AL RECISTE VALID OUT SIDE INDIA
Datod 25704/ fGag.bo. Affidavit

1 Rajesh Sundaram son of' K C Sundafam ;ﬁd resident of B'QISO‘I Sa'tyém

stated as under
2.

L arrived in South Africa on the 3rd of June 2013 and stayed here tif
September 2, 2013. During this time I worked with the Gupta family owned
Infinity media and worked as ‘Editor' to set up 24/7 television news station
called ANN7.

3.
An account of my interactions with the Gupta brothers, former South African
president. Zuma and my éxperience setting up the television station have been
given in the book 'Ihdentured, Behind the Scenes at Gupta TV.
_ : 4. _
I hereby affirm that the contents of this book and events described in it are

true to the best of my knowledge.’

After 1 arrived in South Africa I got to know that the then president Jacob
Zuma's.son Duduzane was a 30 percent shareholder in Infinity media.

However, it was president Zuma ‘who was more involved in the project-and its
setting up than his son.

I was part of a delegation from Infinity media that had three meetings with
president Zuma at his official residence in Pretoria to review progreéss of the
television news channel ANN7.

The delegation comprised Ajay Gupta, Atul Gupta, Nazeem Howa, Moegsien
Williams . Ashu Chawtla and me. - -

These meetings comprised of two parts. The first hour and a half was spent telling
president Zuma about the progress in the television project. Here he was brief about
the progress in the construction of the studios, hiring and technical purchases. He
would aiso give feedback on various aspects of branding. For instance he would give

feedback on the iogo designs.

_ _ [ _
He alsc had a keen interest in the investments being made for the projects, Major
expense heads were narrated {o.him.

He would also discuss at length about the editorial policy he would want the station
to follow. This included instructions to ensure that the station does not end up being
“an 'out and out propaganda station for the ANC". He wanted.the editorial team to
- cover news items related to his rivals within and cutside the ANC, but wanted to

' éubtly show them in a negative light

O~
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8.
Duduzane Zuma was hever part of these meetings.

The second part of these meetings were about businesses other thain the proposed
television pro;ect | was asked to move out of the room during this time..

9.
But from my conversations with Atul Gupta, Nazeem Howa and Ajay Gupta it was
clear this time was utilized to seek Zuma's hel p to overcome challenges in their other

businesses.

After one such meefing | was told by Ajaylcgijpta that they had compiained to
president Zuma about how the Indepéndent Election Commission, IEC was not
giving the Gupta owned newspaper. The New Age’ any advertising from its multi
miflion Rand adverlising budget. He said rival newspapers were being paid. He told
me that at the end of the meeting the president assured them that he would Inok into

the matter.

11.
The second half of the meetings were aisc used to inform president Zuma about his

cabinet colleagues who were refuctant to attend the ‘New Age Breakfast Briefings’
organised by the Gupta owned newspaper and aired on SABC.

12.
| was told by Nazeem Howa that these 'Breakfast briefings' were 'insanely profitable’
for them as the entire cost of broadcast was borne by the SABC. The New Age had
to invest in just the flimsy permanent props and the cost of the venue and hospitality
The earned by selling table at these events. He told me that often times the cost of
the venue and hospitality was aiso picked up by the department or ministry that the

dignitary cane from.

13.
He also told me that tables too were sometimes booked by the departments and

ministries from the budget.

_ 14 5
| was told president Zuma helped not only in convincing the ministers and officials to
attend these events and would also persuade them 1o use tax payers money [0 pay
for the venue and hospitality and ask stakeholders to buty tables at these events.

15.
As Duduzane Zuma was a shareholder in the Gupta's media venture at that time, he.
would be a direct beneficiary of these 'insane profits’.

- 16. .
These meetings happened after what is now known as the ‘Waterkloof scandal’. The
scandal and it faltout in the media had made fittie impact on the refationship between
the Gupia brothers and president Zuma.
17.
Zuma met the brothers warmiy and extended all courtesies and’ hospitality to the

brothers and took to them as close confidants.

The SABC archive deal

18. _
During my stay in South Africa | got to know about a deal to buy 100 hours of
achieve video footage from ihe state broadeaster SABC. | was told by their indian
joint venture pariner Mr, Laxmi Goel that the company had an agreement with SABC

—
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to buy a 100 hours of archival video footage from the SABC for what he called
‘peanuts’

The actual market value of this footage sholtgovar decades and including pricefess
footage of Nelson Mandela would be worth miflions of dollars. However, | was told
that the SABC officials were persuaded to sell this footage for far less than the
market value. | was told by Mr. Nazeem Howa that given the close refations between
the Guptas and president Zuma no one at SABC would dare to question this deal.

: o 20.
As per the agreement a (Indian national) librarian from ANN7 would go fo the
SABC office and transfer footage from taped using a mini DV recorder. He would
then digitize and meta tag the footage at the ANN7 office at Midrand. Close to a 100

hours of footage was transferred,

SABC had no way to monitor the use of the footage on ANNY. 1 was told that ANN7
had agreed to also pay SABC every time the footage was played,

Visa / Labot law violations

| 22.

} found during our recruitment process that there were more than, enolgh sufficiently
qualified South African candidates available for hiring across all departments and
functions at the news station.

23.
However Atul Gupta and his Indian joint venture partner Laxmi Goel were keen {o

get a large number of staff from India. This was because of two reasons,

1. The staif from india could be compelled to long hours without the fear of them
complaining to the authorities.

2. The amount of salary and perks they paid Indian staff was much lesser than what
they had to pay by law to the South African staff for the same work.

3. Atul Gupta has told me that he would arrange to get as many work visas for
indian employees as required as he has been assured by the president that

the 'Home Department would issue any number of visas without fussinig about the
Hfough norms for issuing such visas.

4. Atul Gupta also told me that a large number of these employees would be brought
in on 'Tourist Visas' and made fo work for a few months. If they are not found
suitable they could be dismissed and sent back. Work permits would be issued later
{o those who proved their worth,

5. When | questioned Atul Gupta about the legality of making people work on tourist
visas he said 1 havethe govemment in my pocket, you don't worry about what is
legal and what is ilfegal.”.

6. Even iaborers ( skilled and unskilled), used-for coristructing the studio were .
brought from India and made tc live on the premises at Midrand in sub-human’
conditions and work around the clock. They were paid in Indian Rupees in India.
Ajay Gupta told me that South African iaborers were lazy, unichized, expensive and
lacked skills. He said he could bring any number of workers from India on tourist
visas to work at the sites without fearing anyone. Ashu Chawia at his office
coordinated with the president's office and the hamé depariment to ensure that these

visas were issued very quickiy.

= e .
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7. Many of these people over stayed their tourist visas. They were told to pay a small
fine at passport control on their way out. This money was reimbursed to them,
8.Many of tha people who overstayed their visas were issued work permits within

weeks,
24.

fhad made a formal complaint about this to the Home Department tmmediately on
my return via email, marking copies to prominent Scuth African journalists. It has
been over § years and | have not been approached by any official for.an inquest.

. . 25. .
Jounalist Barry Bateman investigated my compilaints and found them to be true.
A copy of his report from that time is attached, .

26.
I have attached a copy of my communication with the home department with.
this affidavit. '
i would also fike to report that | saw physical and verbal abuse of staff at ANN7 by
Atuf Gupta. He used racial slurs and abuses during conversations about South
African staff.

27.
Many expenses for the setting up the station were paid in cash, in Indian rupees by
Laxmi Goel, This include the payments made to the studio designed, the consultant
who woerked on the Graphical elements and look and feel’ of the channel and also
many independent engineers and consultants whe worked on the project. Tax for
these payments were not paid in South Africa or in India. _ |

. 28.
I know that apart from Laxmi Goel, Atul Gupta and Ajay Gupta knew about these
payments. | believe this is a violation of indian and South African law.

The above are true 1o the best of my knowiedge.

CATest SunNpARIA
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CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT
{BCEA)
BETWEEN:

NAME OF EMPLOYER: INFINITY MEDIA NETWORKS (PTY) LTD
ADDRESS: 62 LECHWE AVENUE,

CORPORATE PARK SOUTH,

MIDRAND
{Mere after referred to as "THE EMPLOYER") :

and

NAME OF EMPLOYEE: RAJESH SUNDARAM -
EMPLOYEE CODE:
ADDRESS: B-2/ 301, SATYAM APARTMENTS

VASUNDHARA ENCLAVE, DELHI, INDIA - 110006
1D NO:
OCCUPATION:

{Here after referred to as "THE EMPLOYEE")

VALID OUT SiDE INDIA N

RS-06
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"B2"

The parties hereby agres that the Employee will be employed subject to the following conditions:
1. COMMENCEMENT DATE

1.1 Fixed ferm contract -
—

This contract will commence on 01.05.2013 and will be terminated on 30.04.2015
(period of 24 months), allernatively will be terminated on completion of the following

project:

The employer reserves the right to prematurely terminate this contract in accordance
with the notice periods set out in clause 15 and the statutory procedures in the case
of conduct, incapacity, or the employer's aperational requirements.

It is expressly agreed that this is not a permanent position and you should not have
any percepti on or expectation of ongoing or permanent employment.

The termination of this contract shall also not be construed as termination or dismissal
on grounds of operational requirements.

Signing of this agreement after commencement of service doesn’t negate any service period
or bensfits obtalned prior to entering into this agreement. The employse’s date of
appointment is 01.05.2013. s

2. VALIDITY OF CONTRACT
2.1. This confract is subject to the Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997 ("The Act').

2.2, Should any ternn of this conlract be in conflict with any existing or future Law, Sectoral
Determination or Collective Agresmient, such Law, Determination of Agreement, shall be
binding In respect of the said provision oniy and all other terms of this contract shall remain

valid and binding upon the parties.
2.3. No indulgence of condonation by the employer of any breach of any term of this coniract by

the employee shall constitute a waiver of any of the employer's rights in terms of this
agreement and no amendment of this contract shall be valid unless reduced to wriling and

signed by both parties.
2.4, Jurisdiction of any dispule will be at Johannesburg, South Africa.

3. FOREIGN EMPLOYEES EMPLOYED BY THE COMPANY

3.1 In the event that employment is offered to a person who is not a citizen or permanent
resident of South Africa, the employer will provide the following assistance:

311 Air Tickets (one way) for the employee and all members of histher direct family
by eligible class as determined and approved in writing by the Company.

_\c“/



Derick de Beer
Typewritten text
"B2".


FP-1GZ-2032 RS-08

’ ' ' | "83"_

4. APPOINTMENT AND JOB DESCRIPTION

4.1. The employee is appointed as: Editor to render services generally associated with this
position.

4.2, The employes expressly agrees that he/ she may be transferred tommy other company in
the group with same the terms and conditions as set out in this. Contract. Upon such
transfer this Centract shal stand transferred to the new company.

4.3. The employee will be responsible for the tasks as set out in their KRA’s and anyother
tasks as may be provided by management from time to time.

44 The Employer shall have periodic feedback discussions with the Employee for the ongoing
evaluation of the Employee’s performance.

4.5 The Employer expecis from the Employee and ¥ is the Employee’s responsibility lo acquire
and maintain the required levels of knowledge and skills to enable ‘him to consistently
comply with the operational requirements of the job description and key performance areas
(KPAS) as determined from time to time.

4.6 The company shall make avaitable to all employees that may be responsible for content and
broadcast, the services of atforneys that will guide the employee on the legalf compliance
issues relaling to such content and/or broadcast material. It is the employee’s responsibility
to ensure that all legal matters are cleared prior o the use and/or disseminating of any
content and/or broadcast material.

4.7 Empioyee will report {o the Management under whose line of aumomﬁlyﬂﬂs position falls. In
terms of this specific appointment your current working hours will be subject to the
operational requirements of the division that the employee wilt be working in.

5. PLACE OF WORK

§.1. Although the nature of the position may require you to work outside of the offices, your
official place of work will be at Midrand. You may, from time to time be directed to conduct
business at locations and/ or to travel to focations other than your usual place of work
depending on the operational requirements of the company. The employee may also be
transferred during the course of his/her employment to one of the other companies in the
group, based on operationai requirements,

5.2, The employes Is responsible for amiving at the placeof work and/or agsignmenton time.

6. HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME : _

6.1 The employee agrees to work overtimg, if 30 required by the enibloyer.

B
x

) : :
- \\ 6.2 The employee acknowledges and appreclates that the nature of the Industry in which
- the company operates and functions in, runs around the clock on a 2477 hour basis.
. The employee agrees and undertakes to be avajlable telephonically and personally at
!t all times of the day and night on any given day of the week If so required by the
" employer, based on the operational requirements of the business. The employee
agrees to work such overtime if the nature of the business requiras such overtime.

3
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6.3 The normal working hours will be 45 hours per week excluding the lunch break as per
the work schedule determined by the employer from time to time. Due to operational
requirements you may be required to change your wotking hours and working days.
The employee agrees and undertakes to work in excess of the agreed working hours
andlor days, if so required by the employer. Hours in excess of 45 hours per week will
be deemed as overtimeonly if the employee was required by the employer o work
such overlime. The company agrees to comply with the relevant legislation and
agreements governing time off given for any overtime that may arise, which overtime
is pre-approved in writing by head of Human Resources/ péfson aulhorised by
him/her in advance.The paid time off shall be granted within two monthe of the
employee becoming entitied to i, after which period it will expire if not claimed. The
employee will not be entilled to anremuneration for overtime if his/ her gross
remuneration package exceeds the earnings threshold as set out in The Basic
Conditions of Employment Act 1997, as amended from time to time,

7. SUNDAY WORK

The employee undertakes to work on Sundays, if so required by.the employer,

8. PUBLI: LID,

The employee undertakes to work on Public Holidays, if so required by the employer.The
company agress to comply with the relevant legislation and agreements governing time off given
for working on public holidays. The time off shall be granted within two manths of the employee
becoming entitied to #, after which period it will expire if not claimed.

9, RE| TIO
9.1, The employer shall pay the employse R 104200/- (Rand One Lakh Four Thousand
Two Hundred onty) per month CTC.

9.2, The employee hereby authorises the employer to deduct from the wages, all staiutory
deductions as well as amounts due for goods bought, money borrowed, clothing,
medical benifits and saving schemes, as may be applicable.

9.3. Payment will be made In arrears and will be deposited directly into your personal
bani/buliding soclety account on the 26th of each month or pald via a cheque. Should
the employee be demoted as a result of disciplinary steps, the employee's wages wil
be adjusted accordingly. The company’s payroll cycle runs from the 26™ of each month
to the 26" of the following month, therefore should the employee commence his service
outside of the payroll cycie, the employee’s salary will be caloulated on a pro rata basis.

9.4, New employees and empioyses with & months’ service or less will not be considered in
the current financial year for an increase.

9.5, The employee shail not be remunerated for any period of unauthorised absence,
Including industrial action or during a valid iockout. The principle of no work no pay,

shall apply.

Statutory contrlbu;ions’

If applicable, these will be made by the company, strictly in accordance with current legislation,
Any pait of such payment that is or becomes your responsibility wilf be deducted from your
earnings and remitted to the reievant authority.

4
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FP-JGZ-2034

10. OUTSIDE APPO ENTS

All employees of the Company are prohibited from accepting appointments of directorships or
appointments {o outside commercial enterprises without the written consent of the Company.,
If the Company does agree (o such appointments they will be on the basis that no fees or
other compensation is received in respect of such appointment,

The only exception to this policy relates to individuals who are requested by the
Company/Group {o serve on subsidiary or associate Company Boards, d%on industry bodies.
In such cases, any fees due are, as a matter of policy, required to be paid over to the

Employer.

In addition, when on annual, deferred or overseas leave, no employee may undertake regular
or parf-time work for any other employer, whatever his business, or for any other office In the

Group.

It is also a conditlon of employment that employees may not work on their days off or in their

spare time for any other employer.

11. ANNU VE

1.1 You will be entiflad to annual leave days per annual ieave cycle. The cycle currently runs
for the calendar year and is accrued at a rate of 1,5 days per month (18 working days per
annum) for a six (6) day work week and 1.25 days per month (15 working days per
annum) for a five (5) day work week. Leave will not rofé over from one year to the next,
and leave days not used will expire at the end of the financial year, on a use it or lose it

basis. e
1.2 Alternatively, at the discretion of the employer, the annuai leave can be calcutated at the
rate of ane day of paid leave for every seventeen days the employee had worked, or was
entitled to be paid.
11.3 Any request for annual léave will be submitted fo the employer in writing, & minimum of

14 days in advance and in turn be agreed upon or refused in writing by both Line
Manager and Head of HR. The leave shalf be granted and be taken at a time to be fixed
by the employer, with-consideration of the operational requirements of the businsss.

1.4 Upon termination of employment, the employee will be entitied to be paki out in Tespect
of any accrued leave not yet taken prior to the fermination of employment. An employer
may not require or permit an employee to take annual leave during—any period of notice

of termination of employment.
11.5 The employes is obliged to take feave during any period of closure of business,
12. SICK LEAVE

124 During each sick leave cycle of 36 (thirty-six) months' employmept with the employer,
the employee shall be entiled to an amount of paid sick leave equal 1o the number of
days the employee would normally work during a-period of six weeks. This sick leave Js
caiculated as follows: 30 {thirly) days in the case of a 5 (five) day workweek and 36
(thirty-six) days in case of a longer workweek.

5
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12.2 Puring the first 6 (six) months of employment, the employee shall be entitled to 1 {one)
day's pald sick leave for every 26 (twenty-six) days worked., '

123  The company requires that the employse produces a medical certificate, signed by a
registered medical practitioner for the time off work, due to lliness, The employer will not
accept hack-dated doclor’s certificates as proof of iliness which will result in such an off
period to be regarded as unauthorised absence.The employee must personally inform
Iheir immediate Line Manager and Human Resources Manager before 08h00 on the day
hefshe was supposed fo have reported for duty of such absence and expected date of
returning to work. The employee must also ensure that their personal and contact details
are updated on their employee fils, in case of any changes to such details, shouwld the
company heed to contact the employee.

13 MATERNITY LEAVE (if applicable)

131  Female employees shall be eniiled {o four consecutive months maternily leave,
commencing 4 (four} weeks before the expected date of birth or such ather date as a
medicai practifioner or midwife may deem necessary. .

—

132  The empioyee shall notify the employer in writing of the date of commencement of
maternily leave and the dale of return to wark after maternity leave at least four weeks
in advance. _

13.3 Sl'_nbutd the employes, fail to return to work on the return date specified by her or agreed
with the employer, without a valid reason, her absence will be freated as unauthorised
and may result in the termination of her service.

134 The employee will not be entitied to remuneration during her maternity leave period, but
may claim matemily benefils as lald down in the provisions of the Unemployment
(nsurance Act. 30 of 1866, '

14 FAMILY RESPONSIBILITY LEAVE

14.1 The employee wili only be entitled fo family responsibility leave after 4 (four) months of
senvice with the employer, .

14.2 The employee shall be entitled to 3 (three) days paid leave during each cycle of 12
(twelve) months of employment with the employerin tenms of the provisions of section
27 of the basic Condilions of Employment Act.. This could be taken with the birth or
illness of a child or in the event of the death of the employee’s spouse, life pariner,
parent, adoptive parents, grandparenis, child, adopted child, grandchild or sibling.

14.3 The employee shall notify the employer of the event, which necessitates the employee's
absence, as soon as possible.

144 The employee shall not be entitied to payment for the absence unfess the employes
furmishes the employer with proof of the circumstances necessitating the absence.

14.6 Unused family responsibllity leave wilt lapse at the end of each oycle of 12 (twelve)
months' service.

15 TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

If the employer or the employee intends to terminate this contract, the relevant party shall give the
other party notice in wriling and the following nolice perlods wid apply: ™

(S
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15.1 During the first 6 {six)months of employment, not less than 1 (one) week.
152  Longer than 8 (six) months but not yet one year; 2 (two) weeks.

16.3 After 1 (one) year of employment. 1 (one)calender month nofice.
15.4 The periods of notice set out above, shall not be applicable:

156.4.1 In the case of summary dismissal in the event of disciplinary procedure.
15.4.2 In the case of desertion or unauthorised absence for more than § (five)
working days.
1543 In case of Expats from India.
-

15.5 The employer shall have the right to pay the employee in fieu of notice,

16.6 An employee will be obliged to relire upon reaching the age of 60 {sixty), upon which
this contract will automatically expire.

16.  TRADEUNIONS

Should the employee join a trade union, hefshe will notify the employer within 7 (seven) days of
such membership. The employer will only recognise this union once it reaches the majority 50
(fifty) plus t{one) of the fill time employees.

17. DISIPLINARY PROCEDURE

Undertaking:

Both parties agree that strict adherence to this procedure will ensure that discipline be
maintained and that the employes is treated fairy.

Offences an es;
o
The schedule of offences and possible sanctions is set out in Annexure "A" herelo.
Procedure:

Should the empioyes commit serlous misconduct as ouflined In annexure "A", the
employee shall be glven a Notice to appear before a disciplinary hearing. A person
appointed by the employer will act as chairperson. The Chalrperson shall determine
the date, 1ime and place of the disciplinary hearing. The employee shall have the right
to be represented by a Shop Steward (Union representative} or co-employee and to
present evidence. i

Should the employee refuse or fall to appear before the disciplinary hearing, the hearing
may proceed in the employea's absence.

Written Warning:

If the employee commils non-serlous misconduct as oullined in Annexure
"A" that merils a wiitten warning, the employer or his aulhorised
representative shall complete such wiitten waming and be handed to the
employee for signing therecf, The employee is entilied to respond, which
response, if any, will be taken into consideration belore the issueing of a

7
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waming. Each written warning shall be valid for a period of 6 {six) months,
after which it will expire,

Final Written Warning:

Should the employee commit misconduct, which merits a final written
warning, the same procedure as for a wiilten warning, as set out above,
must be followed. The employee shall also be informed that a further
contravention may result in dismissal. A final written warning will be valid for
12 months.

Suspension as Sanction:

If an employee is convicted of serious misconduct, hefshe may be
suspended without pay for a maximum period of 1 (one) week. The
employes consents not to be remunerated for the peri8& of suspension.

Suspension in Anticipation of & Hearlng:

Shoukd the employee commit a dismissible offence, the employer may
suspend the employee's employment on full pay with immediate effect and
the employse shall appear before a disciplinary committee as soon as
possible.

Demotion:

Should the Chairperson upon completion of a disciplinary hearing decide
that the employee should be demoted, the employee's salaryfwages shall
be adjusted accordingly with immediate effect.

If a disciplinary enquity is held in the absence of the employee due o the empleyes's
unavailabillly or refusalffallure to appear, the smployer shall hand a copy of the
disciplinary report to the employee or send a copy per registered post to hisfher last
known address. ' e

The employee agrees to undergo any medical examination or examinatlon by means of
apparatus especially designed for this purpose of testing under the influenice of liguor or
a narcofic substance In the event of any suspicion by the employer or supervisor of
such employee being influenced or effected, .

The employee accepts the admissibility of such testing and result of such testing, and
the submission of such report or result of testing wil! be sufficient proof of the state of
infiuencing of such an employee on time of testing.

18.DISMISSAL FOR INCAPACITY

Shouid the employee be or become incapable of performing his/her duties as expected due 1o il
health or injury or because of poor work performance, the emplayer shall foliow the guidelines set
outin ule he Labour Re Act, 1995,

19.RETRENCHMENT

The employer shall have the right fo terminate this contract for reasons dhased on operational
requirements, economic, technological, structurai or other simifar needs,

8
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Should the employer contemplate the termination of this contract for these reasons, the
employer shall follow the guidelines contained in Section r ns
1985

Shouid the employee’s services be terminated as a result of these reasons, the employee
shall be paid severance pay equal to one week's remuneration for each completed year of
service with the employer or according to the minimum benefits as stipulated in Section 189 of

the Labour Relations Act, 1995

20, DESERTION

An employee shall ba regarded as having deserted from his émployers service after a continuous
absence of five working days without notification to his smployer of his whereabouts, provided
that;

20.1.  The employer attempts o contact the employee in writing at ih'a-l'a"st-known address
supplied by the employee, informing the employee of his absence and of a discipfinary
hearing to be held at the work place;

202 The employes be given a fair opportunity 1o state a case in response upon her arrival;

20,3 After the aforementioned five days has iapsed, a nolice of desertion and for a
disciplinary hearing will be send to the employee by registered mall to hisfher fast.
known postal address or such notice will be handed to the employee or to a parson
over the age of 16 years at the employes's last known address. In the event of the
smployee fafing fo submit acceptable reasons for histher absence andfor fals to atiend
the hearing, the employes will be deemed to have deserted and his servicas be
terminated. The employer will serve a nofice on the employee as prescribed ahove,

21.GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

The empiloyee shall lodge any grievance with the employee's immediate supervisor ahd Human
Resources Manager. Should the supervisor not be able to solve the problem to the satisfaction of
the employes, it will be referred to the employer whose decision on the matter will be final. The
employee will only resort to an external dispute resolution mechanism if the employer has falled
to resolve the grievancs,

22 EQUIPMENT AND TOOLS

221 Shouid the employer issus the employee with any equipment, electronic equipment
or tools for the purpose of the employeé's work, such:items shail at alf time remain the
property of the employsr. The employee shall be responsible for the safe custody,
maintenance and cleaning thereof and shall return such items in good condition, given
fair wear and tear, on the employers’ request. If the employee falls or refuses to return
it, he/she authorises the employer fo with hold such reasonable amount representing
the value thereof from any monies due to the employee.

22,2 Should the employee damage or lose any property of the employer due to negligence
or wilfulness, the employer may deduct such damage or loss from the employes's wage/
salary, providing that such deduclion may not exceed 25% (twenly five) of the
employee’s wage / salary at a time, and only after a inquiry into the circumstances of the

incident was held.

W
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231 The employee hereby consents fo hisher person, property and vehicle being searched
while on the premises of the employer and during work hours, by the employer or
his’her nominated representative, provided that female employees shall be searched by
female persons and male employees by male persons.

232 The employae acknowledges and associates him/erself wilh the fact that close circuit
television and other camera- survelllance equipment will be used in the workplace to
monitor and control theft and other losses. The employee also agrees that visual
material obtained in this fashion could be used as exhibits,

24,CONFIDENTIALITY AND CONFLICT OF INTEREST

By vitue of this position and function within the Group the employee will be exposed to
confidential information regarding the organisation and lis staff. =

The employee may not during his employment or at any time thereafter disclose to any person,
firm or organisation, (save as may be required by reasonable exercise of your duties) any
knowledge, information or documentation which the employee may be exposed to concerning the
company or any of its staff, its financial affairs, business dealings, correspondence, connections

or othenwise.

All books papers, correspondence, documents, records or other possessions of the company
which may come into the employees possession during the currency of his employment shall be
and remain the company’s proparty and shall be returned to the Group after termination of the
employment coniract. The employee will refrain from any conflict of interests with the employer
and will not engage himherself in a similar business than that of the employer whilst employed by
the emplayer and which causes a conflict of interest, unless the employer consents in writing.

25, ESTRAINT OF TRADE

251 The employee undertakes not to be engaged in any other business, in competition with the
employers business, be it direct or indirect, or as a sharsholder, partner, member of a Close
Corporation, director of a company or In any other capacity, within one yeasafter termination of

this agreement, unless agreed fo by employer.

252 The employee acknowledges and agrees that the aforesald sestraint is fair, reasonable and
neo::g:r{h for the protection of his employer, his employer's frade name and the goodwill
alta erefo. ;

26.3  Without prejudice to any other rights which the employer may have in law, the employes
acknowledges that the agreed damages due to hisfher employer will be an amount of RS 000-00
maximumin respact of each calendar month during which any breach of the aforesald restraint
continues, and that the employer shall be entitled to recover such amount, and any associated

recovery costs, from the employee in respect of such breach.
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The employee will strictly adhere to all safely measures announced from fime to time by the
employer. Non-compifance will be considered to be serious misconduct, and the employer is
hereby indemnified by the employee towards any liability resulting from an injury or #liness as a
resuit of non-compliance with safety measures.

27.  BUSINESS VEHICLES

271 Should the employee as driver of a business vehicle be responsible for any fraffic offences,
the employee will be responsible for all fines as a result of such fraffic offences. Except i the
fine relates {o the maintenance of or defects on the vehicle, on condition that the driver
inspected the said vehicle and reporfed the defect, prior to utilising the vehicle.

L " FP-JGZ-2040
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26.SAFETY MEASURES

272 Should the employee &s driver of the busiess vehicle be involved in an accident causad by
the negiigent, wilfd or uniawful conduct of the employee, hefshe will be responsible for all
damage caused,

273 Business vehicles may under no circumstances be used for private purposes, and under no
circumstances may any privale persons be transported in or on such vehicle. The employer
is indemnified against any aciion due to an employee's failure to complwith this provision,

274 it the vehicla is fitted with a gear lock or alarm it must at all times be activated whenever the
vehicle is not in use.

28 EMPLOYEE COMMUNICATION

The employee is not entitled to use business equipment, inter alia, telephones, cell phones,
Fax machines and computers, for private purposes without the employer's prior permission,
uniess an emergency or & policy, to the contrary existe, :

The employer reserves the right to access, monitor, record, read, fiiter, block, delete, use and
act on any incoming or outgoing telephone calls / emait messages send or received by the
employee, aitachments to such emails, hyperlinks in such email messages or attachments,
websites visited by the employee and files or records saved automatically, or by the employee,
on the employer's equipment

20.  TRAINING

The employer will accepl responsibliity for the costs of applicable training which the employee is
unable to provide ilself, provided that costs that have been incurred with regards to the said

training will be recovered from the employes in the event of him leaving tws-employer’s service
within the period of two years afier having completed the said training from any amount due to the

employes,
30.  Smoking

The company complies with the Anti-Tobacco Legislation and as such employees are expected
to make use of the designated smoking areas that are provided.

31. E C LICIES

The schedule annexures, company policles and procedures are available any time- in
HumanResourcasDapartment for employee’s reference. ‘
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It is a condition of employment that the empl - |

Ak r oyee is subject to and

Etias:ggnzry Cod:ﬁgo!lcies and procedures, rules and regullations, safebl;i:?l ]I?lyoul:: rggmgt?nor{s

stand egmplrdersoyee ne gr;:lueastrshalas[j:l:gggd pg]r ic?Iram:)!ifi_ed from time to time, which shall be avaﬂablse'
) - " s i y il

will form an integral part of this agreement. announced from fime to time by the employer

. FP-JGZ-2041

SIGNED AT ONTHIS ___ DAYOF 20

WITNESSES: EMPLOYEE

1.

2 i Yo
EMPLOYER

05 APR 208

PREM LAL
Hotary Public —
Chambar No. 137, Lawysr's Block,
Disit. Couil Saket, Hew Daihi-110017
Ph. 9512017870
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By Barry Bateman « 16 September 2013
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(World class newsroom, v suow SRS cree: 440
studios & presentation)

1 @annriv ann? (T

€ 2 Reactions
| Subscribe [116k
Barry Bateman
° N i igation h
An Eyewitness News investigation has [LFO"DH[ n Sa\,e]

uncovered blatant disregard for
immigration laws by the Gupta-
owned Infinity Media, parent
company of the newly launched Africa =~~~
News Network 7. Seven Indian e
employees have been confirmed as | DISPLAY ADVERTS (on o)
being in South Africa on visitor e
permits, but it's alleged that all the

imported labour are working at the

station illegally. By BARRY

BATEMAN.

& More:
(https:/www dailymaverick co.za/author/barrybateman/)
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ANN?7 has been dogged by controversy from day one,
mostly for its embarrassing live bloopers. But two
weeks ago former consulting editor, Rajesh
Sundaram, left the station making dramatic claims
about editorial interference from Atul Gupta,
meetings with President Jacob Zuma and pledges by
the group to be sympathetic to the African National
Congress in the run-up to next year’s elections.

Infinity Media management branded Sundaram as a
lving, disgruntled employee who had tried to extort
money from management. Sundaram maintains that
the company owes him money for overtime.

Sundaram made numerous allegations at the time,
including that there were widespread immigration
irregularities related to the visas used to get the large
Indian contingent of employees into South Africa.

From the Archives

This article belongs to cur archives of over 30,000 pieces of
work over the past decade. You can access our entire
archivas with one of the following options:
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Questioned about these allegations, Infinity Media
chief executive, Nazeem Howa, said, “We are fully
compliant with all labour legislation. Given the ultra-
modern equipment we have installed at the channel,
we have some colleagues from our Indian shareholder
helping with the launch and setting up the channel.”

While Howa referred to Sundaram’s claims as “wild
allegations”, Eyewitness News has independently
verified immigration records which show that Anand
Prakash Lal, Deepak Kaushik, Sanjay Pandey

and Vishnu Shankar all entered SA stating that the
purpose of their visit was for a holiday.

Prakash Lal was the production control! rcom
head, Kaushik was employed as a vision

mixer, Pandey was involved in production

and Shankar was employed as an output editor.
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Eight names, including these four, were submitted to
Home Affairs to confirm their visa status.

Home Affairs director general, Mkhuseli Aplieni, said
of the list of eight names Eyewitness News supplied to
the department, seven had entered the country on
visitor permits, and one on an inter-company transfer

visa.

Aplieni said this permit would allow the person
multiple entries to the country over a set period of
time, but employment is prohibited.

Immigration attorney Julian Pockroy said an Indian
national on a visitor permit as envisaged by Section 11
of the Immigration Act 13 would only be allowed into
the country on either a holiday, business
appointments or to attend a short course or lecture.

“This means that they may not take up employment
nor may they conduct work-related activities and may
only conduct holiday activities,” said Pockroy.

He added that this type of visitor permit does not
allow a change of status to that of a work or other
permit under current Department of Homes Affairs

policy.

Penalties for contravening the legislation include
deportation for the employee as well as being
blacklisted, while fines of up to R30,000 may be
issued to the employer for each non-compliant
employee.

Two weeks ago Jackie McKay, Deputy Director
General Immigration Services, told Eyewitness News
that the department would only investigate
Sundaram’s allegations if a formal complaint were
lodged.

A day after the comment, Sundaram lodged the
complaint, sending it to McKay, Aplieni and several
other senior officials. Aplieni claims to have no
knowledge of the complaint, despite being one of the
recipients.
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“We will act on any complaint which is submitted to
the department. As you know this department is
promoting zero-tolerance to corruption, fraud or
anything which goes against our laws,” he said.

Sundaram further alleges that all visas issued to
Indian nationals were routed through the office of
Sahara Computers chief executive, Ashu Chawla.

This is the same Chawla identified in the Waterkloof
Air Force Base investigation as playing a key role in
arranging for the unauthorised landing of an aircraft
carrying more than 200 Gupta wedding guests in
April.

The investigation found that Chawla, assisted by an
unnamed official at the Indian High Commission, had
misled government officials into thinking that the
Gupta plane was carrying four Indian government
ministers.

“The collusion between Chawla and an individual in
the Indian High Commission to abuse diplomatic
channels to request flight clearance is of concern and
improper,” the report stated.

Said Sundaram, “I believe he used his influence in the
South African president’s office to get these visas
issued in a matter of days without the proper process
being followed.”

“I know that political pressure from the highest level
was exerted on officials at the South African High
Commission in Delhi to expedite these visas,”
Sundaram added.

All attempts at contacting Howa yesterday were
fruitless. DM

Want to watch Richard Popiak’s U

audition for SA’s Got Talent? MAVERICK
INSIDER

Who doesn't? Alas, it was removed by the

hast site for prolific swearing*... Now that we've got
your attention, we thought we'd take the opportunity to
talk to you about the small matter of book burning and
freedom of speech.
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EWTE L TV EH ) Rajesh Sundaram {craj'esﬁs-'undaram'OS'cDaiaam> .

Urgent action : Formal complaint # 3 against destruction of ewdencebyM!SGupta
and Goel

Rajesh Sundaram <rajeshsundaram05@gmail.com> _ 9 October 2013 at 11:31
To: mkuseli.apteni@dha.gov.za, jackie.mckay@dha.gov.za, castro.khwela@dha.gov.za, rudzani.rasikhinya@dha.gov.za,

avrilwilllamson@dha.gov.za, ronnie.mamoepa@dha.gov.za
_Bcc: Sarah Evans <sarahE@mg.co.za>, Naledi Mailula <mailulanaledi@gmail.com>, Glyninis Underhil)
'<GlynnisU@mg.cq.za>, ‘Charl Blignaut <Charl.Blignaut@citypress.co.za>, Barry Bateman <barryb@ewn .co.za>

Dear Mr Apleni,
This has o the two formal complaints fled through email to your office dated the 4ih ang 6th of September related to the
mass visa rule violations and attempts to destroy evidence at the Gupta Family managed television station ANN7.

| read with dismay a written repy by the Hon. Naledi Pandor, minister of home affairs in Partiament yesterday.
Incorrect facts are part of the reply and this will dilute the charges against the accused and help them avoid
harsh punishment.. These are =

1. That only 8 employees violated visa laws. The number is much higher and only a full transparent probe
involving whistle lowers like me will unearth the full extent

2..All 4 empioyees who have been asked {o leave SA were employees and not trainers as erroneously

mentioned in the reply. _ .
‘They were working at vatious editorial and technical positions at ANN7. The same can easily be verified if ANN7

employees arg assured anonymity and asked to describe the job profile of these individuals

" 3. lwas the editor at ANN7 can can affirm that there the staff at ANN7 were nevr put through-a structared training -
involving expert trainers. Any member of the ANN7 newsroom will vouch for this. -

4. These émployees were paid a salary advance in cash in India in Indian rupees and were:
given accommodation and food in SA, | was informed that payment was made to them at the office of Mr Lami
Goel at New Delhi by his personal assistant Laly Thomas in cash. Laxmi Goel is a difrector at Infinity Media.

5. All the visa violators have been assured that they will be given 'Intra Company transfer’ visas on their return to
india despite their status as wiliful violators of visa conditions at the first insiance.

6. Some of these people have already applied for visas again at the South African ‘High Commission in New
Deihi.

7. They have been asked to pay a fine of Rand 1000, before they apply again for a visa. Drafis for this amount
are being given by the office of Mr Laxmi Goel, Director, Infinity Media.

© 8, After | filed my first formai complaint with your office, Atul Gupta and the management at ANN7 arraniged for
~many of their employees working without the required visas to leave SA at the earliest. This amounts to
“manipulation and criminal destruction of evidence and should be investigated as-such. | had written a format

.complaint in this regard on the 6th of September.
9. These personnel are heing hired for positions which need skilis abundantty available in South Africa. They are
taking up jobs that belong to young South Africans,

I-am ready to give evidence on an affidavit whenever required by you and am willing to assist with a fresh probe,
if you wish to reopen some of the issues.

'acknowledg'e_d any of the 2 mails | have sent you, can you please acknowledge this mail,
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*Warrf regards
Rajesh Sundaram [} | D 2 e
+919873713008 , _
+911142401763 _

‘On 6 September 2013 08.33, Rajesh Sundaram <rajeshsundaram5@gmail.com> wrote:
. Dear Mr Apleni,
Director General
Department of Home Affairs
Government of South Africa

. Dear Sir,
| am pained to note that despite my formal compiaint-to you a few-days ago;, | have not got an acknowledgement from
. you..

| would also like to report that Infinity Media shareholders Atul Gupta and Laxmi Goel have started a large scale cover
up operation to hide the tracks of the visa fraud they were perpetrating. .

. While a bulk of the dozens of Indian laborers have quickly left South Africa, many Indian hationals who had come on-
- business visas are being asked to stop reporting to work after | made my compliant to you public.

| fear they will be sent back to India as a mmeans to destroy evidence.

You can still probe the issue by discreetly seeking details from the editorial staff about the work dene by the Indian
nationals who came in on business visas.

These include Sanjay.Pandey, Vishnu Shankar, Anand Prakash Laf, Shamin among others.

The delay in probing the matter has already given time to Mr. Gupta and Mr Goel to destroy evidence and cover their
tracks.

| hope you will acknowlédge my mail and start a probe at the earliest,

Rajesh Sundaram

On4 September 2013 16:30, Rajesh Sundaram <rajeshsundaram05@gmail.com> wrote:

. Dear Mr Apleni

 Directer Generat
Department of Home Affiars,
Government of South Africa

Sir,
This is to bring to your notice that | was serving as Consulting Editor at ANN7, patt of Infinity Media.
During this time Infinity Media issued various visas to indian nationals. These-could be broadly classified as follows

1. Intra Company transfer related “Temporary Residence Permits”
;. 2. Business Visas

I would like to bring o your notice that there has been large scale abuse of ‘busiriess visas’ issued for Infinity Media.

Indian nationals who have been issued business visas have actually been employed at various editoriai and
al posifions at ANN7 television news station.

N
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This was done willfully and deliberately by Mr Atul Gupta chairman and Laxmi Goel director of the compa

Also Indian nationals with skills abundantly available in SA have been issued permits and visas without propér
scrutiny,

Skills like ‘cameraman’, ‘video editor’ * Playout technician ' panel producers'and various-other positions in the
production control room and positions like ‘rundown producer'’ copy desk producers’ etc. on the output desk are
easily available in SA.

I was part of the hiring process and can say on record that these skifled personnel are available in SA. However, they
are more expensive in SA and tend 1o work lesser hours in a week. This is the reason why positions mentioned
above were filled with Indian nationals. Some of these Indian nationals are working at ANN7 right now.

Also dozens of Indian masons, carperiters, laborers and workers were involved in the construction of the studio and
newsroom. These were working around the clock to ensure timely completion of the project. | have found out now
that these too did not have the required permit to work in SA,

The working conditions for these masons, carpenters, laborers and workers was poor and violated minimum
conditions and pay scales stipulated for construction workers as per South African law.

All visas issued to Indian nationals were routed through the office of Mr Ashu Chawia, CEO of Sahara Computers, |

-believe he used his influence in the South African president's office to get these visas issued in a matter of days

without the proper process being followed. | know that political pressure from the highest level was exerted on
officials at the South African High Commission in Delhi to expedite these visas,

I request you tq Kindly investigate the issue of these visas which have been done without following the due process, |
wottld also request you to investigate violation of visa conditions and restrictions.

| fear Mr Atul Gupta and Mr Laxmi Goel have already started the process of destroying evidence and covering their
tracks. Timely action by your office is most urgently required.

| have been an employee of Infinity media and can help you identify and probe these violations. | am willing to travel
to SA to assist with the probe if required subject to my safety being guaranteed.

 As you are aware | have been subject to intimidation and coercive tactics by Mr Gupta and Mr.Gosl since [ resigned.

| hope you will acknowledge my email and start the probe soon.

Rajesh Sundaram

‘New Delhi

41912013 '
NN
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REGISTRATION
JAN CITIZENS RESIDENT ABROAD ARE ADVISED TO REGISTER
LVERS AT THE NEANEST INDIAN MISSIOM/POET,
CaAUTION
THIS P'ASSPORT IS THE FROPEATY OF THE GOVERNMENT OF
INDLIA, ANY COMMUNICATION RELCEIVED BY THE HOLDER FROMA
MIRT AUTHORITY RECOARDING THIS PASSPORT. INCLUDING
N FOR T8 SURNKENGER SEUULD. OR COMBLTED witTh

INE
THEM
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 IMMEDIATELY, REPORTED. TO THE KEAREST FASSPORT AUTHORITY
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MISEFONPOET ANTY VO THE LOCAL POLICE, DRLY AFTRER EXHAUSTIVE

F\Ttu TRIES SHALL A DUPLICATE PASSPORT BE 185UED,

firm ¢ mﬂﬁm = AT/ Name of Father ) Legal Guardian
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van d-elé('Merwe

Associates Incorporated. _
Aftorneys ® Notaries ® Conveyancers ® Prokureurs ® Notarisse. ® Akié\kérvaard'i'gers

Ourref : MR, P. VAN DER MERWE/yg/INFO003
Your ref: MR RAJESH SUNDARAM

04.10.2013

MR. RAJESH SUNDARAM

BY E-MAIL: rajeshsundaram05

Dear Sirs,

_INRE: YOURSELF / INFINITY MEDIA NETWORKS (PTY) LTD

We confirm that we act on behalf of our client, Infinity Media Networks (Pfy) Lid

(“our client”).
It is our instructions to place the following on record:

1. You entered into a wiitten contract of employment with. our client on or
about 1 May 2013. In terms of this agreement you were employed as a
consulting editor. You were responsible for, amongst others, the acquisition
and maintaining of ‘the required levels of -knowledg-e ond skills to be
enabled to consistently comply with the operational réq'uirem-ents of the
job description and key performance areas as rmay be determined from
fime to time.

2. On or about 27 August 2013 you tendered your imrmediate resignation in
writing. In this letter you stated the following:

2.1 The three months you've been working with our clieff has been “by
far the best phase” in your career:

s "‘"‘*‘-w\\
: Q ; /’_"\\J-%-:'\‘\ D[rectors ! Dlrekleqre, Gertvan der. Merwe (BLC LLB), Pletgr va‘n_:der Merwe (LLB)_
V4 . VAL N '._,g:;\ \ Assisted by /. Bygestaan dour: lize van der Merwe (LLB), Marike Pienaar (B.Com, LLB)
::..* w t:& \ A'-'%l‘-‘g *llanie Loots (LLB), “Johanin Schalkwyk {LLB) (*Midrand)
SR Y Reg no: 2006/015906/21
e lj Street & Postal address / Straai- & Posadres:
29 [ [ ‘Ivystraat 41 Ivy Street, Clydesdale, Pretoria, 0002
: Tel: (012) 343 5432 @ Fax/Faks: (012) 343 5435 —
Weo

2
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Derick de Beer
Typewritten text
"F1".


FP-1GZ-2054 RS-30

| "F2"

2.2 Working for our client was an honor and privilege;

2.3 You have gained a lot from the wonderful mandagement team,
both as & journalist as well as a manager;

2.4 The passion and determination you have experienced will remain
with you throughout your life;

2.5 You wish to resign as o result of the fact that you want to spend time
with your giling mother;

26  You have the highest love, regard and respect for cur client's
representatives,

3. After you resigned, our client was astonished by various media articles in
which different unfounded and defamatory statements were made by
yourself. = You. unfortunately went as far as to divulge confidential
information which is sirictly prohibited in terms of clause 24 of your

employment contract.

4. You entered into a valid wiritten employment agreement and are bound
by the aforementioned confidentiality clause..

5. It is common cause that you did not develop your skiljs to fulfill your duties
as consulting editor and that you could not cope with the pressure required
by this portfolio.

6. Your lack of competency is confirmed by your actions after your
resignation. Your attempts to discredit our client is nothing more than an
attempt to sidestep civil action which will be instituted against you as a
result of your failure to comply with your contractual obligations.

7. The initial hick-ups affer the launch of ANN7 were directly a result of your
failure to fulfill your duties. You knew that you were responsible for these
hick-ups. as consulting editor, As a result of your failure to fulfill your duties,
ANN7 suffered daomages which will be claimed from you.

Directors / Ditekteure: Gert van der Merwe (BLC LLB), Pieter van der Merwe (LLEY
Assisted by / Bygestaan deur: lize van der Merwe {LLB}, Maiike Pienaar {8.Com, LLE)
*Itanie Loots {LLB), *Johann Schalkwyk (LLB) (*Midrand)

Reg no: 2006/015908/21
Street & Postal address / Straal- & Posadies:

Ivystraat 41 lvy Strest, Clydesdale, Pretoria, 0002

“Tel: {012) 343 5432 @ Fax/Faks: {012) 343 5435
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8. Our client did not publicly publish your absolute incompetence as fhey
believed that, it would not only be embarrassing for you and your family,

but also unethical in the light of the confidential relationship which existed
between yourse!f a nd our client,

9. Qur client remains committed in honoring the .confidential nature of the
relationship. It is however unfortunate that you have resorted to devious
and ruthless tactics which clearly displays your lack of integrity as a senior
journalist.

10. We urge you to refrain from publishing any further comments in regards to
your employment with our client.

1. It seems that you might be of the opinion that, if you flee from your
responsibilities in a country, that you do not have fo adhere to your
contractual obligations. This stance will not be tolerated by our client. we
will take legal action against you in South Africa as well as in India.

12, Your smear campaign agdinst our client contains not only dishonest and
untrue allegations but also divulge information which you were exposed to
during your time of employment. If you continue to divuige this information
we will proceed to apply for an interdict. We assume that it wil be
unnecessary to inform you that you will be held liable for these costs.

13. Despite the damages suffered as « result of your incompetence (whilst stil
in the employment of our client), our client also suffered damages as a

result of your defamatory allegations.

14. We have instructions. to issue summons against you and therefore requires
the details of the address where papers can be served. We assume thot
you will accept the invitation to openly and publically, in a court of law,
substantiate your allegations and that you will therefore provide us with
your address for accepting ¢courl papers.

15. it will be disqppointihg if you refrain from providing us with your details and
if you continue with your vindictive smearing campaign in the media
(where it is not necessary to prove the allegations as true).

‘Directors / Direkteure: Gert van der Merws (BLC LLB), Pieter van der Merwe (LLB)
Assisted by / Bygestaan deur: lize van der Merwe (LLB), Marike Pienaar (B.Com, LLE)
’ltanie Loots (LLB), “Johann Schalkwyk {LLB) (*Midrand)
i Reg no: 2006/015508/21
Street & Postal address / Straal- & Posadres:;
Ivystraat 41 Ivy Street, Clydesdale, Pretoria, 0002
Tet; (012) 343 5432 & Fax/Faks: {012) 343 5435
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It is cledr from the wording of your resignation letter and the statements made in
the media that you blow both hot and cold, depending on your circumstances.
We reiterate that our client is not going to entertain your spurious dctions and that
our client will maintain the confidential nature of the relationship.

Kindly provide us w_ifh your reply within 4 days after date hereof. If we do not
receive your reply we will proceed to serve documents at your last known address
you provided in your employment contract.

Yours faithfully,
VAN DER MERWE & ASSOCIATES

Per : PIETER VAN DER MERWE
ieter@vdmas ZCO

05 APR 2019

MPREM LAL
olary Publie
Chamber pln 137, Layw
_ 2. 127, Lawyer's By
Distt. Count Sakat!, Haw Defhi-m.‘ﬁ]cik?’
F£h, 8818017970

\N\_L \_/’/

Directors / Direkteure: Gert van der Merwe (BLC LLB), Pister van der Merwe. (LLB)
Assisted by / Bygestaan deur: llze van der Merwe (LLB), Marike Pienaar (B.Com, LLB)
*flanie Loots (LLB), *Johann Schalkwyk {LLB} {"Midrand)

Reg no: 2006/015908/21 ’

Street & Postal address / Straat- & Posadres:
ivystraat 41 Ivy Street, Ciydesdale, Pretoria, 0002
Tel: {012) 343 5432 @ Fax/Faks: (012) 343 5435
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EXHIBIT CC 1(b)

SUPPLEMENTARY
AFFIDAVIT

OF

RAJESH SUNDARAM



FP-JGZ-2058

JUDICIAL COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO ALLEGATIONS OF STATE CAPTURE,
CORRUPTION AND FRAUD IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR INCLUDING ORGANS OF STATE

2nd floor, Hillside House

17 Empire Road,

Parktown

Johannesburg

2193

Tel: (010) 214-0651

Email:

inquiries@sastatecapture.org.za
Website: www.sastatecapture.org.za

INDEX: EXHIBIT CC 1(b)

Description

Supplementary affidavit of Rajesh Sundaram
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IN THE COMMISSION OF INQUIRY INTO ALLEGATIONS OF STATE
CAPTURE, CORRUPTION AND FRAUD IN THE PUBLIC SECTOR INCLUDING
ORGANS OF STATE (“THE COMMISSION")

AN INVESTIGATION INTO THE SOUTH AFRICAN BROADCASTING
CORPORATION: SALE OF ARCHIVES TO INFINITY MEDIAJANN7

l SWORN SUPPLEMENTARY AFFIDAVIT

S

T | am the son of K C Sundaram and resident of B2/301, Satyam

Apartments, Vasundara Enclave, New Delhi- 100086; India solemnly

affirm and stated as under.

2. | have been approached by investigators associated to the Commission of

Inquiry into State Capture (“the Commission”) and have been requested to

2

e content of this affidavit is true and correct and falls within my own
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personal knowledge, unless the contrary clearly appears from the context

or is otherwise stated.

MY ARRIVAL IN SOUTH AFRICA

4. | arrived in South Africa on the 3rd of June 2013 and stayed here until
September 2, 2013, During this time | worked with the Gupta family owned

Infinity media and warked as 'Editor’ to set up 24/7 television news station

called ANN7Y.

5. During this period. | was part of four meetings between former South
African President Jacob Zuma and the top management team at ANN7 /

The New Age. Mr Jacob- Zuma was the president of South Africa during

this time.

6. Three of these meetings ook place at Mr Jacob Zuma’s official residence

at Pretoria. The fourth meeting took place at the Midrand office of ANN7.

he first meeting took place at then President Jacob Zuma's official -
residence at Pretoria on the 22nd of June, 2013. Just a few days after my
arrival in South Africa. The team had an appointment for 9 : 30.am. Mr Atul

Gupta called me on phone late the previous evening to inform mé abo’ut
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this meeting and that | had to attend.

9. I had earfier been told by Mr Atul Gupta to prepare a detailed presentation
about all aspects of the TV project for the president. Three copies of this
report were printed and bound by Mr Aslam Kamal an employee of ‘The

New Age’ and close confidant of the Gupta brothers.

10. The presentation was a status report on the TV project. It contained details
of the channel logo (designed by a designer in Delhi), A summary of how
the content and presentation on the channel would be different from other
channels, A detailed summary of the studio design, broadcast equipment

and an update an the progress of all aspects of the station.

11. This presentation gave out a lot of confidential details. Details that most

stations would reveal only to stakeholders at such an early stage in the

project.

12. After | arrived in South Afiica | got to know that the then President Jacob

Zuma's son Mr Duduzane Zuma was a 30 percent shareholder in Infinity

Media,

“before the first meeting took place. The meeting could not happen earlier

MEST—

o——
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as Mr Jacob Zuma had been traveling and was out of Pretoria.

15. | was asked by Mr Atul Gupta to keep the meeting confidential and that
while discussing with the senior management feam in office, | should refer

to President Zuma as ‘Number 9’ and not by his name.

16. The meeting was ceordinated by Mr Ashu Chawla, a close and trusted

Gupta family employee who | was told worked with Sahara Computers.

17. | was told by Mr Atul Gupta that Mr Chawla was the point person for the
family at the president’s office, and that he coordinated and tied up ajl
meetings with the President, senior ministers and ANC leaders. He was

also the person who ensured that anyone the Gupta brothers wanted were

issued visas for travel to Scuth Africa.

18. The first meeting with Mr Jacob Zuma was attended by Mr Ajay Gupta. Mr

Atul Gupta, Mr Nazeem Howa, Mr Moegsien Williams, Mr Ashu Chawla,

—===—___Mr Arun Aggarwal and me.

&
a Ly T is an excerpt from pages 94 to 104— of my book ‘Indentured,

Q' jd the Scenes at Guplia TV .about the first meeting. | hereby solemnly —

Essel Media the joint venture pariner with the Guptas in Infinity Media.
‘Uday' is Mr Uday Kumar an employee of the Human Resources

department at Infinity media. Mr Uday was hired in India and sent to South

-3

/
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Africa. 'Arun’ is Mr Arun Aggarwal, the Business Head at ANN7. Mr

Aggarwal too was hired in India and sent to South Africa,

191 Two days had gone by since we had been told about the meeling with
Number 9, and there was still no talk of when we would meet with the
president. Then, on one Saturday, 21 June at gbout 11 pm, when we had
Jjust returmed home from office, I got a call from Atul informing me that
President Zuma would retumn the following morning, and we had an

appointment with him at 9:30 am.

19.2 [ had moved out of the guest house by then and info an apartment that |
shared with Arun. | woke up early and made tea. Artun came out of his
room in a smart green suit. ‘So we are meeting the big man today,’ he
sald, almost taunting me fo come up with a humorous retort ‘Yes, we are
meeling the big man for two hours today,” | said. ‘Le¥'s finish our feg and
get to the office quickly. | don’t want us to be responsible for delaying thé
meeting.’ | took the apartment keys out of my pocket and pointed them

towards the door. ‘The driver is waiting downstairs.’

19.3  We reached the Midrand headquarters of The New Age in about 15

/x// o | , "\m*es. We worked for a couple of hours before Aslam’ called to fell us

al ¥\car from the Gupta fleet had arrived to take Arun and me to Pretoria,

leave immediately and take the three copies of the presentation

\o REGD. No.1555 /.
0

Chawla, he will be waiting for you at the president’s residence.’

\/\’C'\—'f‘——“‘
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19.4  Ashu was the CEOQ of the Gupta-owned Sahara Computers. He had lived
in South Africa for many years and was the Guptas’ point man for any
coordination with the president and the South African government. He was

particutarly close fo President Zuma's son Duduzane.

19.5 | had heard his hame mentioned for the first fime when | was asked to
apply for my temporary residence permit under the intracompany transfer
process before | left india for South Africa. ‘It can take months to get a
South African work permit. lf is a cumbersome process. We have to
advertise the position in South African newspapers and then wait for six

months, after which we provide evidence that we have not found a suitable

focal candidate.

19.6  Only then can we starl the process of getting a work permit. Even so, if
there is an official who does not agree, the request for a work permit can
still be rejected,’” Laxmi had told me right after | signed the contract io work
for Infinity Media. ‘But Ashu ji is a genius, and he has found & way around

it. We will show the visas of peopie going fo work in South Africa as intra-

company iransfer.

18.7  Just fill in the visa form, get police and medical clearance and get back fo
my office. My office will isstie papers certifying that you are an employee
of Essel Media being transferred fo South Africa,’ Laxmi added. ‘But all the
people | have recruited to be the core team fo launch ANN7 have got
coniracts from Infinily. Media and not Essel Media. They have never

W ——

L
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worked for Esse! Media.

19.8 [ hope this is not illegal?’ | asked. ‘Absolutely legal, Rajesh. \What rubbish
are you thinking? Trust me, Ashu Chawla will lelf Shakeel at the South
African High Commission to accept your application forms. Shakeel and
his bosses at the visa section have a message from the South African
president's office to expedite the visas. Do you think the president would
do something illegal?’ Uday Kumar from HR went to the High Commission
directly without informing Ashu a day later. The High Commission refused
him entry, the reception connected him io the visa section, and the guy

who picked up the phone fold him, ‘There is no Shakeel at the visa

section.’

19.89  Laxmi was very upset when he found out. He sat Uday down and read out
the rules for applying for a visa in the future. ‘Look Uday, | am upsst that
you would make such a stupid mistake. You should inform Ashu ji, and
only when he ftelis you the appointed date and time should you go or send

anyone to the High Commission. ‘It is not simple. They have to speak with

the most senior people in government, and only after that is a message

could pull strings in the government. He was close o the president and

had a reputation for getting the foughest jobs done expeditiously for the
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Guptas. When Arun and [ went to the car, we heard 'Ram Ram’, a greefing
popular in North India’s small fowns and villages, curiously from one of the

Guptas’ whife drivers.

19.11  An overwhelming majority of the personal employees that the Guptas had
were white. This always: baffled me a bit. For ail the talk Aiul gave us
about his ‘objective’ to empower the ‘poor and suffering black poputation’
that was still ‘being crushed under economic apartheid, | did not see a

single black employee during my various visits to their residernce.

19.12 The chefs were Indian nationals, the bodyguards were mostly white, and
so were the people who served food fo the guests. The driver politely

changed the radio station fo Lofus FM, which played music in varous

Indian languages.

19.13 There was a Gujarati Hindu prayer on. 1 am not religiously inclined and
asked him fo change fo any radio stafion he preferred. It was an easy
Joumey from Midrand to Preforia that Sunday moming, as the road was
free of weekday traffic. Ashu kept calling every few minutes to find out

where we were, and the driver would give him our exact coordinates.

alist in the United States, UK, India, Afghanistan and even post-

ict Sri Lanka, the security at President Zuma’s official residence was

WS

-
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19.15 Ashu had conveyed the car's registration number, and the driver was
waved In without any fuss. The securily personnel did peer into the car as
we passed by, but they did not ask us for any identification, although Arun
and | were carrying our Indian passports just in case. The car drove fo the
front stoep of the main building and dropped us at the entrance. The driver
then parked right in front of the stoep among about a dozen other cars.

‘The presidsnt must be having a busy Sunday,’ Arun whispered fo me.

19.16 We were ushered into a well-appointed room to the extreme right of the
entrance. There was no frisking, we were not asked fo pass through metal
deleciors and were nof required fo give our names and defails to any of

the security personnel. We just waiked in.

19.17 I was carrying my celiphone and my lapfop as well as the three copies of
the spiral-bound presentation that Aful had wanted to be printed and
bound: one for President Zuma, one for Ajay and one for me to keep in my

hand while | made the presentation.

19.18 Electronic devices are generally notf allowed to be caried for such

meetings and even when they are allowed they are thoroughly screened

o

. ecurity personnel. | could not see any X-ray machines at the"venue. i:

i

not figure out if this was special treatment for the Gupta delegatiof,
e security was generally of a low standard, Ashu was waiting in the

fm-when we entered. This was Arun and my first meeting with him.

< _ s —
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19.19  Ashu was a reticent man in his mid-forties. He was not very outgoing and
seemed very preoccupied. He gave us a limp handshake and went back to
the corner of the room opposite the door at the far end. His phone was
charging, and he was consfantly sending and receiving messages. 'When
are the others joining us?’ | asked him by way of making polite

conversation. He gave me a bit of a smile and continued fo fiddle with his

phone.

18.20 The room had a sheif with a neat coliection of leather-bound books; there
was a lelevision set mounted on the wall af the far end’ a coffee table in
the middls with couches around it and ornate chairs in each cormner. Ashu
seemed worried. While the place seemed like a waiting room, there was
no one else there, only the delegation from the Guptas. | had seen many

cars parked oulside; surely there were more visitors?

19.21 It soon became clear to me that we were not packed into a general
visifors’ room’ and that this was a space specially reserved for us. There
was a knock on the door. Ashu jumped up. It was a member of staff from

the president’s office who came in to ask if we would like ‘water, tea or

ed paolitely in agreement. | was wondering why the others were- pot” -

};’f we had an appointment at 8:30. It was already 10.

another half hour passed, the door opened, and the remaining members of

the delegation entered. Atul entered first, dressed in a dark suit followed

ARk —
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by Ajay in casual trousers and jacket. Nazeem and Moegsien appeared in

their usual smart suits and fies.

19.23 Ashu sprang {o his feet and rushed towards the door, bowing to touch
Ajay's feel. He then moved quickly and fouched Atul's feet Ajay
acknowledged this gesture of respect like any North indian feudal lord
would; he made a half-hearied atfempt to stop him. ‘There are a ot of

visitors today, sir, but we have been told he will come and meet us soon.

Please sit, sir,” Ashu told Ajay.

19.24 The two chairs closest lo the enirance were reserved, | was told by
Nazeem, for the president and the head of our delegation, Moegsien.
Nazeem sat on the couch near the enirance, facing the chair reserved for
the president, and Afay sat beside him. Arun and | sat on the couch
opposite them, with me next to Moegsien. Atul sat on the chair near the

television. Ashu sat in the corner opposite Atul, fiddling with his phone,

which was slili charging.

19.25 The staff member from the president's office came in again and asked if

we nesded any drinks. We asked for various beverages, which were.soon

-
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19.26 Ajay ji has a philosaphy about taxes. When God has given us so much
wealth, why should we do something as pelly as not pay taxes and always
be scared of being caught?’ he replied. He looked at Arun and said, You
are a chartered accountant. You know how it is in India. All the
respectable companies maintain two books. One for infernal use, and one
for the tax department. We have never done that.’ It was now about 20

minutes since Ajay had come in, and he was gefting visibly impatient.

19.27  He tumed fo Ashu and made a gesture. Immediately Ashu left his phone
and went out. He came back a few minutes later. ‘Ajay Ji, there will be a
further delay. | am told he is in some long meetings with ministers. We
have been asked fo wail," Ashu said. “You know ! hate to wait Ashu Ji.
Please fell them we will have to leave if he doss not have time for us

today,’ he said. | could tell Ajay was not his calm self now.

19.28 Ashu again leff the room and did not come back for quite a while. While he
was out of the room, Ajay started explaining the origin of the channel
name. ‘President Zuma suggested we name the news channel “Africa
News Network” in the last meeling we had with him on the issue. The

name was already faken; so we decided to call it “Africa News Network 7.

We must make the president feel imporiant, and fell him that we are taking

jestions given by him seriously. He will like it if we seek suggestions
a@ im on how fto run the news channel. He would like to see us as his
Jgp hannel. We do not have to implement all his suggestions, but he

Id like it if we ask him for advice.” Atul then took out the TV remote and

WS
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swifched lo the Indian news channel New Delhi Television, NDTV. ‘We

want all the graphics on our channel like NDTV.

19.30 We should have the graphics at the fop and the bottom of the screen.
There should be many layers. The people of South Africa want a screen
that keeps moving and updating. They do not get that with eNCA.’ | tried
explaining fo him how it was considered less sophisticated o have too
many graphic bands and elements on the screen, how it would be befter to
have a cleaner screen with a graphic band only in the lower third of the
screen. This was not what fie wantfed fo hear. ‘| want the screen fo be
clulfered; we must dazzle our viewers with as many elemenis as we can.’

It was past noon now, and Atul-was getfing very impatient

19.31 Ashu, who had came back, was sent out again fo inform the president’s
peaple that we would be leaving. ‘We will come back another day for the
presentation,’ Atul said. Ashu left the room and returned within a few
minutes. ‘Ajay ji, President Zuma has sent word that he will come out of
the meeting and see us for a while, He wants us to wait’ Ashu foid Ajay.

Even as he was speaking, President Zuma entered the room.

/m T am very sorry about the delay. | was away from Pretorfag-an'd there are

N
N ny issues my ministers want to discuss with me,’” President Zuma said
Moy v

)-he came inlo the room, alone, with a broad smile on his face. He was -

t as falf as / thought he would be. | could sense from his informal

v/ |
O n\iO}f_ 7 demeanour that he knew the brothers quife well.

< OF e < e
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19.33 Ajay introduced me and Arun. ‘This is Rajesh Sundaram. He is the editor
of the television project, and this is Arun Aggarwal. Arun ji is the business
head. They have both come from India recently and have many years of
experience working with large international networks. You know the other
gentlemen.’ ‘I soon have to go back to the mesting | left behind. | know
there are a lot of things lo discuss, but like they say in Zulu we will just
skin the animal today. We must Jeave the rest for later,’ President Zuma
said. ‘Sir, | will ask Rajesh fo give you a quick overview of the project. He
will answer any questions you may have, and then we will ask the TV
team to leave, and we can discuss issues related to the newspeper,’ Ajay

said, pointing fo me. | handed President Zuma a copy of the presentation.

19.34  ‘See the logo on the presentation, sir, it is ANN7. Like you said we are
calfing the channel Africa News Network. We are following all the things

you fold us, sir,” Ajay told President Zuma, and pointed fo the fogo. The

president seemed impressed.

19.35 He smiled at Ajay in acknowledgement 'This will be the most

technologically advanced television news station in South Africa. The

19.36 We will also have a network of correspondents across major African and

world capitals. Our newsgathering team will be predominantly female and

s
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young. We will ifrain our journalists and technicel staff fo the best
infernational standards,” | said as President Zuma flipped through the
bound pages of the presentation, sfopping occasionally to read. |
explained the programming mix and the emphasis on provincial news
through two provincial news bulletins a day, the daily Africa bulletin and
hal-hour builletins on sports, entertainment and lifestyle. He listened

intently and did not seem impatient lo get back to the meeting he had left

midway.

19.37 1 explained to him how the integration of the newsroom and main studio,
and placing the main anchors’ desk on a revolving plafform, would give
every bulletin and fime band a different look. | told him about the various
visual elements on the news floor, the robotic cameras and the state-of-
the-art PCR. ‘Please leave a copy of the preseniation with me. I will study
it in detail and will get back fo you with input in a couple of weeks after
President Obama’s visit when we meet again. it looks good now. | think

you should keep the funny shows out. Lampooning politicians for cheap

humour is not news.

19.38 [ hate the one they have on eNCA,” Zuma told me. ‘The news on eNCA is

\(epeated a lot, and that iritates the-audience. You seem to :have a broad
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19.39 As we rose (o leave, President Zuma got up loo and warmly shock our
hands. He then walked us fo the door and shook hands again before we
left. All three meelings | had with President Zuma ended this way.
Nazeem, Moegsien, Ajay and Atul stayed on. | was fold later by a member
of The New Age’s markeling team that these discussions were crucial for
the paper fo get government advertising and bring hard-to-convince

ministers and officials in as guests on The New Age Business Briefing.

19.40 After the Walerkicof scandal, some ministers and officials seemed
refuctant to be seen in public with Atuf or on a plaiform hosted by his
newspaper. These ministers and officials were convinced after a nudge
from the president, Atul told me. The bad press and public outery fo}!owing
the incident did not seem fo have made any difference to the relationship
belween President Zuma and the Gupla brothers. In the three meetings
with President Zuma that | was & part of, the two brothers bonded well with

the president and joked occasionally about the scandal. If was like nothing

had happened.

19.41 The brothers had fairly free access to the president’s residence, and Zuma

left his ministers waiting for hours to attend meetings with the Guptas. Atul

'Nce showed me newspaper clippings of President Zuma defending his

Rdship with the Gupta family in parliament. 'Zuma, who was forced :‘o

Lty defend his relations with the Guptas for the first time since the
-landing scandal, dismissed all allegations against him in relation to

Guptas as “rumours”,’ he said. ‘See, | told you the bond that we have

with the president is deep.

\l\ >L'-(\.
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19.42 The media and the DA will iry its best to creafe a rift betwsen us, but he
will stand by us like a rock. The president will defend us always,” he said,
showing me the newspaper clippings. | found the discussions of
commercial issues of The New Age and ANN?7 intriguing. There had been
a lot of noise abouf The New Age and the way the government supported

it and it seemed to me thaf these discussions were probably around a

simifar kind of support for ANNY. ‘

SECOND MEETING

20. The second meeting happened in the month of July 2013. | do not
remember the exact date, but | do remember it was a Sunday. The

meeting took place at President Zuma's official residence at Pretoria, in

the same room as the first meeting.

21. The meeting was attended by exactly all those who attended the first
meeting. This meeting too was coordinated by Mr Ashu Chawla, and
unlike the first time, he was deputed to piCk Arun and me from the Midrand
office and drive us to the president’s residence.

i Y
e

‘Nmis ‘meeting reviewed the progress of various aspects of the project, like -

constructlon of the studio, the arrival of broadcast equ:pment etc. But

W/
»‘?é" QQ Urzf@,, lfh*e primary focus was on ‘Editorial policy’. Mr Jacob Zuma wanted to

Y ;&.4,, . qh re his vision of what the editorial content should be like.
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23. President Zuma came to the meeting armed with the presentation we had

given him in the last meeting and with some questions about its content.
24, This meeting too was more of a shareholder review of the project.

25, Here is an excerpt from page 117 to 122 of my book ‘Indentured, Behind
the Scenes at Gupta TV’ about this meeting. | solemnly affirm that the

account given here is true and factual to the best of my knowledge.

25,1  ‘The second meeting with President Zuma happened in July. ‘He feels
good if we give him the feeling that he is moulding the news station. If is
always good fo have the head of stale on your side. He will give us some
suggestions. We do not have fo follow all his suggestions, but we will

make polite noises and we will follow the suggestions that are acceptabie

fous,’

25.2 Alul told me before the meeting, reiterating a point his brother and he had
made many times before. Like the previous one, this mesting took place
on a Sunday moming. Ashu Chawla came in his car o pick us up from the
Midrand office. He was mostly silent during the rids to President Zuma’s

residence in Pretoria. He seemed preoccupied and kept checking -his: ...

phone for messages as he drove. ‘Have you lived here fo;r_ fong; Mr
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25.3  'So you are a regular South African then?’ Arun asked. ‘Yes,” Ashu replied,
curtly. He then played a CD with raunchy Hindi Bolfywood songs referred
to in India as ‘item numbers’. ‘So you have a taste for “item numbers”, Mr

Chawla. Now that's a facet of your personalily that we never knew about,’

Arun feased Ashu.

254  He smiled sheepishly and continued driving. Arun had run out of topics to

strike up a conversation, and Ashu was silent throughout the remaindsr of

the journey.

25,5  As we reached the security gate at the president’s residence, the security
guards recognised him and waved the car in. We wenf to the same room
we had been waiting in the iast time and sat in exactly the same places.
Ashu - went to check on the president's availability. Nazeem, Moegsien,
Atul and Ajay arrived about half an hour later. Ashu sprang to his feet-and

fouched the brothers’ feet

256  The sealing arrangement was identical fo that of the last meeting. ‘Rajesh,
foday | will ask President Zuma fo give us a broad overview on editorial
policy and also some suggestions on who we should hire as presenters,

¥

. We will hear what he has fo say, but we will only do what we think suits

vision,’ Ajay Gupta fold me.

A ‘lzjng as it was just a formality and we were not bound by what he was

L)

4,

S, 'f'ng, I was happy to play the game they were playing with the president
" | nodded. The video logo montage or the ‘channel 1D’ for ANN7 had been
= i e

(-v-—- L3

[ -
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made by a graphics designer in India and had reached us just a few days

before the mesling.

25.8 Atul wanted me fo load a copy on my laptop so we could show it to the
president. ‘Rajesh, we will show it fo the president foday. We can make a
million presentations on paper, but he will know the project is progressing
fast only when he sees videos. He is a simple man. | am sure he will be
very happy fo see if,” Atul said. ‘Sir, the president has many visitors from
his family foday. | have sent a message that you have arrived, and he will

Join us very shortly,” Ashu toid Ajay.

25.8  The president arrived shortly thereafter. He was shown the channel ID, He
asked to see it again and again. ‘Sir, If you like this montage, we wilf give i
the final go-ahead,' Aful said. ‘it looks good. If is impressive,” President
Zuma said, asking fo see it one more time. He had the copy of the

presentation we had given him in the fast meeting with him. ‘| have a few

suggestions.

25.10 We must not convert this into a publicity channel for the ANC and me. if
we do fthat, we will have no credibility. You must present the views of the

., Opposition and my rivals in the ANC as well. The push in our fa vour should

subtfe. You are a seasoned journalist You know how that van be

.. eNCA only presents the govemment and me negatively. We need

/ A2 ghannel that presents the positives that the government is -doing,” Zuma

//éérd looking af me.

\J;:’i”
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25.11 Despite Atul’s constant reminders that we'd only do what 'suits our vision’,
President Zuma's directives on ediforial policy puzzied me. ‘I will be in
Mpumalanga next week, and I will meet people in the local communities
and announce measures for their welfare. But | am sure eNCA will not
cover that. Their reporier will seek out opposition supporters and do a
negative story on how the iocals hate me and feel | have done nothing for

them,” Zuma seid. ‘Sir, we will have a reporfer and camera operator

affached to you at all times.

25.12  You will have lo ensure that they are accommodated in the plane that you
fravel on. We will do a live telecast of all your engagements. We have
oulside broadcast vans,” Ajay said, almost cutfing in. ‘Yes, that can be
easily arranged. But your coverage will be shallow if you come with me.
Qur teams must move in two days ahead of me and do background
reports that fell viewers how our policies are helping the people, so that
they get the full picture and nof the distorfed one they get now. Is that

possible?’ Zuma asked. ‘Sit, we will make it possible.

25.13 We have the technology fo go live from anywhers in the country, and we
have bureaus in every province. We can send reporiers with you, and we

will also send reparters in advance. The positives of the government wilf

re!y be highlighted,” Ajay answered, with folded hands. ‘If newspapers i
A

= AGWE
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hovs the government is changing lives. That way we keep the credibility
and we also show the government in a positive light,’ Zuma said. ! am
sure you will have the best intermational standards of production. That is

very important. The news bulletins should be slick,” he added.

25.14 Nazeem then asked him {o recommend joumnalists and presenters. It was
at this meeting that Jimmy Manyi's neme first came up. ‘He will be most
suited for your talk shows. If you want, | will speak with him as well,’ Zuma
offered. ‘| am sure there are many preseniers available. Just do lef me

know if there is any high profile journalist you may have selected,’ he

added.

25.15 The conversation was now beginning fo sound like an internal HR
meeting. He had allocated two hours of his time on a Sunday, while his
family was waiting, to ANN7. The intensity of his interest in the project was
like that of a full shareholder. President Zuma was happy to sif for hours
getting briefed and giving input on minute aspects of the venture. The fime
he spent helping out with the ‘commercial’ aspects was most intriguing.
‘Sir, the DA has a very effective PR machinery, and they churn out press

releases very day, twisting facts and furning them against the government.

ws reports. We have lo keep such journalists out’ Nazéem said this to

W
; l}wdfate nods from President Zuma and the Gupta brothers. | exited the.
I

WeS—r
>
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prasident,

25.17 I later asked Nazeem why President Zuma insisted on lecturing us on
editorial and personnel matters. ‘Don’t you know? Hasn’t Laxmi ji told you
already? He has a big say in this venture. His son Duduzane hoids 30 per
cent in the company. His involverent is very crilical for the first year of our
operations. If we are able fo get government advertisements, we will be
able io break even in the first year,” he told me. If this were true, it would

explain a Jol, and it felt as though everything was falling into place.

25.18 The news channel | was heading would be a pro-ANC, proZuma channel
that was promoted and run by not only people close fo President Zuma bui
by President Zuma himself If Nazeem had his facts siraight and Zuma
held the shares through his son, he would be projected positively in the
news bulletins. In this scenario | could see how he would use his position
as president fo ensure government aaveitising for the station. |t also
seemed, If this was the fruih, thaf there was a clear confliet of interest as

his son had a stake in not just the Gupta-owned newspaper but also the

proposed television news channai.

{'\X:O per cent stakeholder, his son would get 30 per cent of the profits .

d from the revenues the president was helping them generats.’

The third meeting with President Zuma took place in the first week of

/EDL\ ‘
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August 2013. | do not remember the exact date. This meeting too was
held at the president's residence at Pretaria, However, unlike the first two
meetings, this meeting was in the evening. The meeting was attended by
the same people, except for Mr. Williams, who was travelling and Mr.

Aggarwal. Nazeem Howa had given instructions that Mr Arun Aggarwal

would not attend the meeting.

27. The meeting was held in a larger room to the left of the main entrance.
This meeting was attended by Mr Duduzane Zuma. The first and last

meeting | saw him attend. His interventions in the meeting were not

serious,

28. Below are excerpts from page 129 to 133 —— of my book ‘Indentured,
Behind the Scenes at Gupta TV' which has details about this meeting. |

solemnly affirm that the account given here is true and factual to the best

of my knowledge.

28.1  ’The Third meeting with the president happened a few weeks later, in the
first week of August. We had starfed producing news using a very basic

PCR that was not fully integrated with the newsroom systems and the

re days away from our amended launch date of 21 August; and the

fér}kfcal team was nowhers close to handing over the studio or a
1]

D\." "“oofhfy.funcﬁoning PCR or even integrated video editing systems fo the
S '
——

editorial feam.
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28.3 ! wasinthe PCR overseeing the rolling of a bulletin when Atul sent word
that | must meet him af the cafeferia immediately. ‘We have an
appointment with President Zuma this evening. He wants a quick review of
the project, and | would like you io take the builetins we have produced
over the last few days. We have to make him happy, so make sure we
take bulletins where a majority of the stories-show him in a good light. | do

not want a bulletin filled with Malema,’ he said

284  Fommer Zuma loyalist Julius Malema had just founded a new opposition
party to the ruling ANC called the Economic Freedom Fighters. The
bulletins we had produced at that time were, unsurprisingly, full of
fechnical glifches and were anchored by a group of modeis hired by Alul

and trained by Gerry Rantseli-Efsdon.

28.5 The young women were very raw, clueless about the news they were
reading and very unfamiliar with a studio setfing. ! was not comfortable
showing these bulletins to anyone outside of the newsroom. They were

produced as practice or dry runs, nothing more.

28.6  The plan was fo take a chip reader to President Zuma’s Pretoria house

and connect it to a monitor for him to see the bulletins. | went back to the
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28.7  Ashu and Ajay were going fo meet us there. Nazeem fravelled with me in
Atul's chauffeur-driven car. ‘Has someone informed Arun?’ | asked
Nazeem. ‘Don’t bother with Arun. He is not going fo this meeting,’ Nazeem
replied. Moegsien was in Cape Town and was unable {o join us. We must
discuss the IEC issue with him foday. | am fold the IEC is sef to run a
major advertising campaign in all the big newspapers. It is unfair for them
not to advertise in The New Age,” Nazeem lold Atul. ‘Ajay bhai has already

briefed him about this. We will get some action today,” Atul replied.

28.8 At had organised a chip reader and a 14-inch broadcast quality monitor
fo be sent fo Ashu earlier in the day. He was fo bring these for the
meeting. We were ushered info the same walting room where we had
been before. Soon Duduzane Zuma walked in and greeted us before
proceeding lo hug the Gupia brothers. ‘We have a surprise for you today,
Dudu. We will show you the bullefins we have been producing,” Afjay
Gupta sald with an animated movement of his hands. '‘Good, so we should

move lo the next room. It has a large TV.’ He starfed moving out, and all of

us followed him.

28.9  This was a much larger living room that had various seating arrangements
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table and connected the cables. President Ztima walked into the room and
wanted to know abouf the equipment. ‘We want to show you a few

bulletins that we have produced,’ Duduzane said.

28.11 This was the first ime Duduzane was seeing the bufletins. He had no clue
about the process and effort that had gone into producing these. He had
never aitended a single meeting or even bothered fo visit the studio and
learm about the problems there, but today in front of his father he had no

gualms about taking credit for the bulietins.

28,12 The Gupta brothers smiled indulgently as he spoke. ‘Sir, we want
feedback on this foo. We want you fo fell us if we are on the right track.
Our equipment is not fully here, and this is not 100 per cent of what we will
look like when we launch. This is maybe 50 per cent’ Ajay said with a
broad smile on this face. Ashu pressed the play bufton, and the first
bullefin started with the channel 1D followed by the headliines. The anchor

made a few fumbles, but that did nof seem to bother the president.

28.13 He watched the first 15 minufes with rapt attention. ‘Sir, we can fast
forward the bullefin, so that you can see the others foo,’ Ajay offered. ‘Let

.f*""‘“*\\ it go on, | want fo see some more,’ President Zuma said. ‘Daddy !ﬂ:es fheiﬁl

ROTAR)

j :

nichor, his eyes light up every time she comes on. s that why yau want lo

/2
f % &QURAJ SINF GR - some more?’ Duduzane joked.
DELHY }ﬁ
o) REGD. No.i556 /.

£veryone in the room broke into laughter. ‘See the visuals we are-using for.

[@)
NZOF )

Malema? it is of him getting out of a helicopter. He iooks corrupt, does he

‘f//#i;;gégzilllééif:*’“""“?
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nof? We always use these vistals when we falk about Malema. This is a
subtle way of teliing the people he is corrupt without saying a word,” Ajay
said, poinfing to the screen. President Zuma smiled. Ajay knew nothing

about the conlent.

28.15 The editorial leam used these visuals because these were the only visuals
available in the archives bought from the SABC. He had just made that up
to please the president and from the ook on his face it seemed he was
happy. President Zuma watched all the bulletins. You have a good thing
on your hands. This is much better than the bulletins on the SABC. Those
are horrible. | like the way you have used the graphics. It reminds me of
the international channels. If this is what you will look like on launch day

you will be a hit,” President Zuma said with a smile.

28.16  The SABC had launched its 24/7 news channel a few days before, on 1
August 2013. This was the endorsement the Guplte brothers were looking
for. They had softened President Zuma before their meeting on
commercials, and they could hardly hide their glee. ‘So you say the final
product will be much better than this?’ President Zuma asked, looking at

me. ‘Sir, it will surely be much better, as we will have completed the

~.integration by then and will have much more equipment at our disposal fo

ﬁe the bulletins slicker.

not very happy with these bulletins; they are just practice runs,” |~
7 plied. ‘I am happy with even this. You guys keep this up.’ President

Zuma was beaming. ‘Sir, you must come and press the -button" fo
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inaugurate the channel on the 21st. | know you have declined before, but
you must inaugurate the channel. We will have our editors do an exclusive
inferview with you at the venue,” Atul said with a broad smile and his
hands folded. 'That will not send the right message. It will nof do your
credibility any good. | am part of the project, and | am always ready fo give

an interview after a few weeks,” Zuma replied fimly.

28.18 Al this point Ajay asked me to go back to the office while Atul, Nazeem
and Duduzane met him for discussions about the newspaper and
commercial issues. | was toid the next day by Nazeem and Atul that they
had secured 20 million rand’s worth of business the previous evening. By
this time, | had decided fo resign as edifor at ANN7 and go back to India
after the launch. It was happening without the extensive training | had
suggested. It was happening without fest runs with all systems and
equipment in place. But what really pushed me to resign was the violation

of editorial integrity and the dubious commercial dealings that | had seen

with my own eyes. *

FOURTH MEETING

29. The venue of the fourth meeting was the Midrand office of ANN7, on the
Pt Ej\@th of August 2013. Just two days before the ANN7 was to go on air.

- \Ije?g is an account of the meeting from page 151 to 153 ...of my book
A

oo Y .
DE{ 1 2 ;Rdﬁntumd, Behind the Scenes at Gupta TV'. | solemnly. affirm that the

01555 ;?:éunt given here is true and factual to the best of my knowladge.,

WS
s
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30. Apart from the usual atiendees, the meeting was also atiended by Mr
Laxmi Goel and Mr Duduzane Zuma. President Zuma toured the studios,

newsroom and technical areas at the ANN7 office and also met the staff

during this visit.

30.1  ‘My last meeling with President Zuma happened just 48 hours before
ANN7Y launched. | was told that the president would make a quick trip to
the studio lo take a look for himself, and he was expected to stay on to

see the rolling of a news bulletin.

30.2 fwas part of the team that would show him around. This was a critical time
as | was virtually camping in the office, sleeping for a few hours in a
femporary rest area created for a few members of the core team on the

first floor of the New Age office.

30.3 I was in the moming ediforial meeting when | got a call from Aslam fo
come and receive the president. ‘He is expected anytime now; Laxmi and
Atul ji want you here immediately,” Astam said. Qutside, | found Nazeem,
Laxmi and Atul were already there. With them was Duduzane Zuma. |

greeted them and waited with them for the presidential convoy fo arrive.

30.4 it was cold that day and | had forgotien to take my jacket with me as |

mshed out. Atul fook the scarf he was wearing and wrapped it around my
o
Df:? ! J! =* paullit. me later and subject me fo humiliation and bslitflement at the hands

GD' Na. j35n !@e man who made it L /
P SF W

. { couldn’t know at that fime that this gesture would come back fo

—
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30.5  Atthat time, Karun Shawney, the head of production, sent a news camera
feam out to record the president's visit. The cameraman positioned himself
fo record the president getting out of his car. There were other crews he
had set up inside the studio fo record the president visiting various
depariments. ‘We do not want any record of the president visiting the
studio. Can you please ask the cameramen o go away. Also please fell
everyone that there will be no recording of any of Presidenf Zuma's

movements inside the studio... not even with cellphone camaras,” Afuf

whispered into my ear.

30.6 ! called Karun and asked him to move the camera crews away. Aful
wanted fo keep the visit a secret, he was so suspicious and distrusting of
evenyone, but with over a 100 joumalists in the studio, it was almost
impossible. The presidential convoy arrived and was taken to Laxmi's
office. ‘Sir, would you like to give an interview o our news feam?’ Aiul
asked. ‘We will air it on launch day.’ ‘I have already said | will give ANN7

an interview later, after a few weeks.

30.7  Any association with me at this time will be bad for the both of us,’

President Zuma answered. | led the team out of Laxmi’s office, into the

am member and shaking hrs or her hand. He waved to the

e;ﬁfa!é&ees who were not within hand-shakmg reach. We then fook the

N 5/
AN KC?‘“ ‘ qv%ffs and moved into the newsroom.

< ¥t
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30.8  His presence created a; flutter on the floor. He waved to those working
there. A live bulletin was being rofled at that time, and he waited for a
while as the young anchor read her piece from the teleprompter. He
waved to her and moved into the corridor that housed the technical
departments. He first enfered the PCR. Things were smooth in the PCR
when he arrived. The systems were working fine. We had cut live to a

reporier outside the courthouse where the Qscar Pistorius trial was

happening.

o
-

30.9  He wanted to know from me what the exact function of each of the people
‘in the PCR was. He éfso asked me about the audio panel, the vision mixer

and outputs coming from various sources on the screens in front of him.

30.10  He stayed there for about 20 minutes. -He then moved to.the server room,

the graphics room, the master controfl room and the video editing bay.

30.11 He was shown a few of the promos produced by the team in the graphics
room. He asked to see a few of the promos: again. On his. way out he
quickly slipped back into the PCR. This time there were technical gliiches,

the on-air graphics. system collapsed, and the live sources started failing.

He stood af the PCR for another 15 minutes and then moved fowsards the
door. Laximi, Atuf, Nazeem, Duduzane and I saw him off. Ha said he was

happy before he left. Atul assured him that the station would be run ‘as per

his guidance and wishes’,
\At( \/_{
/
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31 All the information contained in this affidavit are true and factual to the

best of my knowledge

€ e
=
Jesh Sundaram

NOTARY PUBLIC
DELHI (INDIA)

29 APR 2019

VALID OUT SIDE INCI&

Commission Expiry
on 10 Feb. 2020
Seat No. 26

. Near Treasury Gate
‘l:f‘s Hazari Couxts, Delhi
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Infinity Media Networks Proprietary Limited

Annual Financial Statements

for the year endec 28 February 2018

independently Audited in zerms of Secuon 30 of the
Compar s Aet

Prepared by: Vidya tyor
Financial Manager
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Infinity Media Networks Proprietary Limited
(Rez. No, 2011/003219/07)

Aanusi Financial Statements
for the year ended 28 February 2015

Cotitents FPage
Directors’ responsibility statement 7
Directors’ report -4
Independens auditor's report 5§
Stateroent of financial position 7
Statement of comprehensive income g
Statement of changes in equity 9
Statemen( ol cash Dows io
Notes to the financial statements -3
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Infinity Media Networks Proprietary Limited
Directors’ responsibitity statement

The dirzciors are responsible for the ~repareion and fair presentation of the armugl financiat
statentents of Infinity Media Newworks Propnewary Limited, comprising the stalement of finarcial
pasition st 28 February 2015, and the staterevs of canprchensive income, changes in equity angd
cashi fiows for the year then ended, and th= rotes fo the finangiat statements, which include 2
swrinary of significant accounting oolicies 2-d other explanatory notes, iz azcorcance with
International Financial Reporting Standands 13 “he requirements of the Companies Act of Sauth
Africa. In ddition, the directors are respongitiz for preparing the dircctors® repon.

Vhe dwecturs are 8o resosible for suck iniengl control as the direckars deteaning 8 necessary in
eable the yeparation of fnanciel stateients a2 sre frog fram material misseateitent, whather dise 1n
fraud o gror and fin maimaining slequere tirvunting records and an cilectve Lystem of risk
manageme,

The directzs® have mode an assessizent of the 2 npany’s abikity 1o continue as & poiry concern and
have 10 rezson to believe that the butingss wili rat be g going concem in the year abead

The sudizer is responsible for reporing oo woetrer the financial satemients are precer g Taiely in
secordance with the applicable finencial reptric 2 famework

Directars’ approval of the annual financial statements

Fhe annug! financial statcments of Infinity Mez 1z Networks Proprietery Lisniled, as ides1ified iy the
first pasagraph, were appraved by the daard of 2irestors on 14 August 2015 end are sigred by

e —7«4 Tt L //i‘%f-(
/ AK Gugia N Hawa
Aurhnrived Sireeror Awitoriced Diveeros
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Infinity Media Networks Proprietary Limited

Directors’ report
Jor the yeer ended 28 February 2015

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report for the year ended 28 February 2015,
Nature of business

The compary produces and broadeasts an indepeident news chansel.

Review of activities

The results of the company and the state of its sffairs are set out in the altached financial sigtements and
do nat, in our opinion, require any further comuient.

Share capitul

No changes have been made to the authorised or issusd ahare capital during the currert of prior year,
Dividenils

No dividend was deciared and paid to sharsholders during: the current o Prios year.

Directors

The directers in office dusing the current and prior year and up to the date of this repor were as follows:
~ AK Gupta

-~ Gupta

«~ N Howsa

- A Cosl

-~ LN Goyal

Business address Postal address

52 Lechwe Bvenue PO Boa 5728

Corporate Fard; Halfx sy House

Midrand 1685

Cootrolling shareholders

The compary is a 35% held subsidiary of Oakbay investments Propristary Limited.
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Infinity Media Networks Proprietary Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the yesr ended 28 February 201§ (continued,

19.
19.8

9.9

20.

X

Financial instruments (conrinne.)
rrevest rate risk feoninied)
Serzivity anulpses

A szange of 100 basis points in interest tate on the reporting dawe would bave sercased: [decreased)
peotitor loss as follows:

100 bp 180 bp
increase decrease
s R R
{De=rease)/inerease profit after taxation (712 026} 2026
160 by F bp
tnctease devrease
2014 R i
{Jeeregse)linerease profit afier taxation {92 270 92237

Fa:z «elue analysis

The mamying value of short term financial nssets and liabilities and Interest-beanag borrowings
apeeicimates their fair values at year end.

Esnmation af fair values

The 2mpany has no assets or liabilities measured at fair value, by valuation method, which requires.
fair salue hierarchy disclosure,

The ollowing sommarises she major methods and assurptions used in ostemating S values of
fransial instruments reflected in the table.

Interest-bearing hoerowings
Fair éslue is caloulated hinsee on discountig the expected Riture principal avd ierest cush Hows,

Trads and other veceivables/payables

Forimccivables/payables with a romaining ket of less than one year, the potigns? armount 35 deermed
1t zrpeoximale the fair value, All gthee seceisables/payahles are discoumed 1o disernune the fan
valug

Mon-zerivarive finuncial labilives -

Fair ~abue, which is detérmincd for diselosure putposes, 1y caleulated based ot the present value of
furire principal and interest gastk fiows, discounted at the murket rate of interest 2t the reporting date

Relptad party transactions Number of
shares % halding

ldenziy of related panies

Ths wumpany's share capital 1 kedd by:

=zoay Investments Proprietary Limited 350 5%
s3] Media 350 5%
~Jow.viz Proprictary Limited 9k 9%
= Mabengela Investments Proprietary Fimited — 1] 2%
I 040 18%

28
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Infinity Media Networks Proprietary Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor e vee ended 28 Febrary 200 5 (continue 31

20.  Related party transactions jcontinies)

ADD-INFO-031

0.2

Directors amd prescrbed officers

Dieevtrs' and prescribed gtficers  empiutments paid by Infinity Media Networks Proprictary

Lirvted

Directors

i1 B

AN Gupla
A (oel
1N Gayal
N Howa
AoLipty

X4

AR Gupks
A Gel
N Coyal
N Heowa
Y Gupta

Bagic salary

Pepsioa gpd
aad ather medica| aid

tenefits cantributiony Total
R R R R

Allowsnees

= - -

Directors ' and prescribed officers emoluments paid &y related company

Allowancesy Pension and
and other medical 1id
Mirectors Basic salsny benefive contriburons Total
R R R R
2015
N Hona® 3658 151 - - A b2 241
M{_ Cupta* 1 OBO 08 - - 1 D8O 00D
V Glugiaees 631 000 - £33 846
§308 284 - 5 368 181
2014 o
N Howaz® 3651 1% : J 452251
AK Gupta** 84¢ 200 = - 840 000
V Gupta®s B1& iy - - 516 000
5 DR 22 5 X 28]

¥ Emolunens paid by TNA Media Proprictan Toocied 1 feflow subsid iary}
** Emctumens paid by fslandsite Inveniments | 0 Propmetany Limited ¢ultsmate hoidir 2 TIPTeAIR
W+ Eaoluments pad by Shive Uraniem Limited fsfiow subsnirary)

A Gotl and LN Goyal are not remuanerated 15+ senices rendered (214« no per_oczanon)

‘The company has no prescribed officers for sne currest year {2014 - none),

Loan Tom the shareholder is disclosed innoe | 2

2%
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b ) MABENGELA INVESTMENTS Sl 601, Watervion 2, Watorsion Close, Contry

City

(2008/014606/07)

Website: hitps:ffwww.searchworks.ce.za

SEARCH
WORKS  CIPC Company

SEARCH INFORMATION

Summary

Search Type CIPC COMPANY

Search Description MABENGELA INVESTMENTS (2008/014606/07)
Reference 20190212

Date 12/02/12019

COMPANY INFORMATION

Summary

Name MABENGELA INVESTMENTS
Registration Number 2008/014606/07

Tvoe PRIVATE COMPANY (PTY) LTD
Suatus IN BUSINESS

Registration Date 17/06/2008

Average Age of Director 41

5ARS VERIFICATION MATCHES
Trading Name VAT Registration Number Area

No inf ikable.

ACTIVE DIRECTOR(S)

Director Name ID Number Status Type Appolnted
REMONA GOVENDER 8004240105084 ACTIVE DIRECTOR Q104206
MDUDUZA HOSEPH MTSHALI 140413551084 ACTIVE DIRECTOR 25/08/2016
-w..actor Name ID Number Status Appointed  Resigned
ABDUL WAHAB AFFER 531275098081 RESIGNED 17/06/2008 -

RAJESH KUMAR GUPTA 1208056345087 RESIGNED 08/07/2008 /03/206
DUBUZANI ZUMA 8205205254086 RESIGNED 08/07/2008 07/04/2016

DECEASED DIRECTOR(S)
Director Name ID Number Status Appointed

No information available.

Fage 1 of 11
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DIRECTOR TIMELINE

£P1G7.2100 ADD-INFO-058

DIRECTOR GENDER

Gender Breakdown [%}

o
b4

mm Mile e Femelk

AUDITOR(S)

Auditor Name Profession Code Status Start Date
CAJEE RAZAK & ASSOCIATES CA CURRENT 10/03/2009
S AHMED AND CC CA RESIGN -

S AHMED AND CO CA RESIGN

Page 2 of 11
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COMPANY INFORMATION
Summary
Name
Short Name
Translated Name
Registration Number
Old Registration Number
Type
Short Type
CIPC Company Act Type
Status
Tax Number
Type Date
Registration Date
Start Date
™ *tus Date
Principal Description
Details Withdrawn From Public
Standard Industriat Classification
Financiat Year End
Financial Effective Date
Registered Address
Postal Address
Region
Country of Origin
Country
Authorised Capital
lssued Capital
horised Shares
Issued Shares
Form Received Date
Date on Form

Conversion Number

FP-JGZ-2101

MABENGELA INVESTMENTS

MABENGELA INVESTMENTS {2008/014606/C7)
2008/014606/07

PRIVATE COMPANY (PTY} LTD

{PTY}LTD

COMPANY {REGISTERED ACCORDING TO QLD CO ACT)
IN BUSINESS

9048659180

17/06/2008

17/06/2008

17/06/2008

GENERAL AND PROPERTY INVESTMENT BY PRINCIPAL.
NG

REAL ESTATE ACTIVITIES

FEBRUARY

17/06/2008

JIC HOUSE, 106 16TH STREET, MIDRAND, 1685

P O BOX 1501, HALFWAY HOUSE, 1685

GAUTENG

1000
100
1000
100

Fage 3 of 11
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PROVIDED BY GOOGLE

DIRECTOR(S)
Director1of 5

First Name
Surname

D Number

Date of Birth
Gender

Age

Residential Address

Postal Address

Type
TS
Appaintment Bate
Resignation Date
Member Contribution

Member Size

Director 2 of 5

First Name
Surname

ID Number

Date of Birth
Gender

Age

Residential Address

Postal Address

Type

ABDUL WAHAB

JAFFER

5311275098081

27/MN953

MALE

65

278 SATRI AVENUE, CLALIDIUS, 0037
P O BOX 784, PRETORIA, 0001
DIRECTOR

RESIGNED

17406/2008

0%

0%

RAJESH KUMAR

GUPTA

7208056345087

05/081972

MALE

46

5 SAXONWOLD DRIVE, SAXONWOLD, JOHANNESBURG, 2193
P O BOX 1501, HALFWAY HOUSE, 1685

DIRECTOR
Fage 4 of 11
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Status RESIGNED
Appointment Date 08/01/2008
Resignation Date 01/03/2016
Member Contribution 0%
Member Size 0%
Director 3of &
First Name DUDUZANI
Surname ZUMA
ID Number 8205205254086
Date of Birth 201051982
Gender MALE
Age 36
Residential Address 6-7TH STREET, KILARNEY WILDS, KILARNEY, 2193
*+ stal Address P O BOX 1501, HALFWAY HOUSE, 1685
Type DIRECTOR
Status RESIGNED
Appointment Date 08/07/2008
Resignation Date 07/04/2016
Member Contribution 0%
Member Size 0%
Director 4 of §
First Name REMONA
Surname GOVENDER
ID Number 8004240105084
Drate of Birth 24/04N580

wer FEMALE
Age 38
Residential Address 128A BISHOP BIRD STREET, ROCIHUISKRAAL MORTH, CENTURION, GAUTENG, 0157
Postal Address PRIVATE BAG X180, HALFWAY HOUSE, MIDRAND, 1685
Type DIRECTOR
Status ACTIVE
Appointment Date 07/04/2016
Resignation Date 07/04/2016
Member Contribution 0%
Member Size 0%
Director 5 of 5
First Name MDLUDUZA JOSEPH
Surname MTSHALI
IC Number 7404135511084

Page 5 of 11
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Date of Birth
Gender

Age

Residential Address
Postal Address
Type

Status

Appointment Date
Resignation Date
Member Contribution

Member Size

AUDITOR(S}

ADD-INFO-062

: FP-JGZ-2104
13/0411974
MALE
44

10 NAGTEGAAL ROAD, DAGGAFONTEIN, SPRINGS, 1573
PO BOX 25145, EDELWEISS, SPRINGS, 1559

DIRECTOR

ACTIVE

25/08/2016

07/04/2016

0%

0%

Auditor 10f 3

Auditor Name
Aession Number

Frofession Code

Business Address

Postal Address

Type

Status

Start Date

End Date

Form Date (CM1 Date)

Expiry Date

Registration Entry Date

Form Received Date

Details Withdrawn From Public

ALT_IND_MPY_NO_SP

Fine Letter

Reference Number

Auditor 2 of 3
Auditor Name
Profession Number
Frofession Code
Business Address
Postal Address
Type

Status

Start Date

End Date

Form Date (CW1 Date}

CAJEE RAZAK & ASSQCIATES

00273453

CA

1ST FLOOR SALEY HOUSE, 81 CROWN ROAD, FORDSBURG, 2092
P O BOX 101, CROWN MINES, 2025

AUDITOR

CURRENT

13/03/2009

10/03/2009
10/03/2009
13/03/2009

S AHMED AND CO

9297iE

CA

SUITE 106 LAUDIUM PLAZA, TANGERINE STREET, LAUDIUM, 0037
P O BOX 13200, LAUDIUM, 0037

AUDITCR

RESIGN

10/03/2009

Page 6 of 11
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Expiry Date

Registration Entry Date

Form Received Date

Details Withdrawn From Public
ACT_IND_MPY_NO_SP

Fine Letter

Reference Number

Auditor 3 of 3

Auditor Name
Profession Number
Peofession Code
Business Address
Postal Address

" e

Status

Start Date

End Date

Form Date (CM1 Date}
Expiry Date
Registration Entry Date
Form Recelived Date
Details Withdrawn From Public
ACT_IND_MPY_NO_SP
Fine Letter

Reference Number

APITAL INFORMATION

S AHMED AND CO

9297N9E

CA

SUITE 106 LAUDIUM PLAZA, TANGERINE STREET, LAUDIUM, 0037
P O BOX 13200, LAUDIUM, 0037

AUDITOR

RESIGN

18/06/2008

ype
AUTHORIZED ORDINARY

ISSUED ORDINARY

CHANGE HISTORY

Capltal Amount Capital Premium Number of Shares  Parri Value
R100 0 1000 0
R 1,00 ¢ 100 ¢

History 1 of 27

Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

History 2 of 27
Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

291062017
CO/CC ANNUAL RETURN
COMPANY / CLOSE CORPORATION AR FILING - WEB SERVICES : REF NO. : 575900542

28/07/2016
DIRECTORS/MEMBER CHANGE/SECRETARY/TRUST/BOTH DIR AND OFFICE
CHANGE RECORDSURNAME = ZUMAFIRST NAMES = DUDUZANISTATUS = RESIGNED
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CHANGE HISTORY

P1C7.2106 ADD-INFO-064

History 3 of 27
Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

History 4 of 27
Effective Date
Change Type

Memao

History 5 of 27

Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

History 6 of 27

Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

History 7 of 27

Effective Date
Change Type

Merno

History 8 of 27

Effective Date
nge Type

Mermo

History 9 of 27

Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

History 10 of 27
Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

History 11 of 27

2810712016
DIRECTORS/MEMBER CHANGE/SECRETARY/TRUST/BOTH DIR AND OFFICE
ADD RECORDSURNAME = MTSHALIFIRST NAMES = MDUDUZA JOSEPHSTATUS = ACTIVE

28/0712016
DIRECTORS/MEMBER CHANGE/SECRETARY/TRUST/BOTH DIR AND QOFFICE
ADD RECORDSURNAME = GOVENDERFIRST NAMES = REMOMNASTATUS = ACTIVE

20/06/2016
CO/CC ANNUAL RETURN
COMPANY / CLOSE CORPORATION AR FILING - WEB SERVICES : REF NO. : 535457986

06/05/2016
DIRECTORS/MEMBER CHANGE/SECRETARY/TRUST/BOTH DIR AND OFFICE
CHANGE RECORDSURNAME = GUPTAFIRST NAMES = RAJESH KUMARSTATUS = RESIGNED

18/06/2015
CO/CC ANNUAL RETURN
COMPANY / CLOSE CORPORATION AR FILING - WEB SERVICES : REF NGO, : 527328242

NN212014
DIRECTORS/MEMEER CHANGE/SECRETARY/TRUST/BCGTH DIR AND OFFICE
CHANGE RECORDSURNAME = GLIPTAFIRST NAMES = RAJESH KUMARSTATUS = ACTIVE

23/07/2014
DIRECTORS/MEMBER CHANGE/SECRETARY/TRUST/BOTH DIR AND OFFICE
AUTHORISING DIRECTOR DETAILSDIRECTOR FULL FORENAMES=RAJESH KUMARSURNAME=GUPTAID

NUMBER=7208056345186CUSTOMER DETAILS DIRECTOR FULL FORENAME S=MARISURNAME=ROUXID
NUMBER=7704140014085

231072014
DIRECTORS/MEMBER CHANGE/SECRETARY/TRUST/BOTH DIR AND OFFICE:

AUTHORISING DIRECTOR DETAILSDIRECTOR FULL FORENAMES=RAJESH KUMARSURNAME=GUPTAID
NUMBER=7208056345186
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CHANGE HISTORY

Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

History 12 of 27
Effective Date
Change Type

Memao

Histery 13 of 27
Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

"~tory 14 of 27
Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

History 15 of 27
Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

History 16 of 27
Effective Date
Change Type

no

History 17 of 27
Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

History 18 of 27
Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

History 19 of 27
Effective Date

Change Type

P1G7.9107 ADD-INFO-065

19/06/2014
CO/CC ANNUAL RETURN
COMPANY / CLOSE CORPORATION AR FILING - WEB SERVICES : REF NO. : 53092900

04/06/2014
POSTAL ADDRESS CHANGE
P QO BOX 1501HALFWAY HOUSE1685

04/06/2014
REGISTERED ADDRESS CHANGE
MONUMENT OFFICE PARKBLOCK 5 SUITE 5-10279 STEENBOK AVENUEMONUMENT PARKO1)

1470112014
CO/CC ANNUAL RETURN
COMPANY / CLOSE CORPORATION AR FILING - WEB SERVICES : REF NO. : 51912070

1212/2013
LOCATION OF COMPANY RECORDS

18/04/201
REGISTERED ADDRESS CHANGE
MONUMENT OFFICE PARKBLOCK 5 SUITE 5-10279 STEENBOK AVENUEMONUMENT PARKOI81

18/04/2011
POSTAL ADDRESS CHANGE
P O BOX 1501HALFWAY HOUSE 1685

10/03/2009
AUDITOR/ACC OFFICER CHANGE
P O BOX 101ICROWN MINES20255TATUS : ADDRESS CHANGE

10/03/2009
AUDITOR/ACC OFFICER CHANGE
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CHANGE HISTORY

Memo

History 20 of 27
Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

History 21 of 27
Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

History 22 of 27
Effective Date
“ange Type

Memo

History 23 of 27
Effective Date
Change Type

Memoc

History 24 of 27
Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

History 25 of 27
Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

History 26 of 27
Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

History 27 of 27
Effective Date
Change Type

Memo

P.1C7.2108 ADD-INFO-066

S AHMED AND CO REPORTED MATERIAL IRREGULARITY ON ; 10 MARCH 2009 STATUS : RESIGN

29/07/2008
REGISTERED ADDRESS CHANGE
JIC HOUSEI06 16 TH STREETMIDRANDIGBS

291072008
POSTAL ADDRESS CHANGE
P O BOX 1S01HALFWAY HOUSE1685

08/07/2008
DIRECTORS/MEMBER CHANGE/SECRETARY/TRUST/BOTH DIR AND OFFICE

SURNAME=JAFFERFULL FORENAMES=ABDUL WAHARID NO=5311275098081STATUS
:RESIGNEDNATURE OF CHANGE=RESIGNED

08/07/2008
DIRECTORS/MEMBER CHANGE/SECRETARY/TRUST/BOTH DIR AND OFFICE

SURNAME=GUPTAFULL FORENAMES=RAJESH KUMARID NQ=72080563451865TATUS :ACTIVENATURE
OF CHANGE=NEW APPOINTMENT

08/07/2008
DIRECTORS/MEMBER CHANGE/SECRETARY/TRUST/BOTH DIR AND OFFICE

SURNAME=ZUMAFULL FORENAMES=DUDUZANND NO=82052052540865TATUS :ACTIVENATURE OF
CHANGE=NEW APPOINTMENT

01/07/2008
NAME CHANGE
SANDUST TRADING

01/07/2008
NATURE OF BUSINESS CHANGE
62

18/06/2008
AUDITOR/ACC OFFICER CHANGE
S AHMED AND CO REPORTED MATERIAL IRREGULARITY ON : 18 JUNE 2008 STATUS : RESIGN
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£P1G7.2109 ADD-INFO-067

REPORT INFORMATION

Date of Information 12/02/2018 08:31
Print Date 12-02-2019 08:31
Generated By INVESTIGATOR 1
Reference 20190212

Report Type CIPC COMPANY

The data displayed above is provided by owr data suppiers and is not altared by Searchidoks, Terms of Use are applicable 1o this informaton and can be found on hitps:ffapp. scarc hwerks.co 7l
SearchWorks is not llabls for any damages caused by Lhis Information.
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P1G7.2110 ADD-INFO-068

Suite GOV, Waterview 2, Waterview Close, Cenlury

'Q 2011/003219/07

Tel: +27 860 340 000
SEARCH CSl Company Trace Wabsite: hitps:/vwww, searchworks.co.za

WORKS

SEARCH INFORMATION

Summary

Search Type CSI COMPANY TRACE
Search Description 201/003215/07
Reference NS

Date 24104/2019

COMPANY INFORMATICN

Company Details

Name INFINITY MEDIA NETWORKS
Registration Number 2011/003219/07

Twpe PRIVATE COMPANY (PTY} LTD
suatus IN BUSINESS

Registration Date 08/02/201

ACTIVE DIRECTOR(S)

Director Name ID Number Director Status Appointment Date
UNATHI MGUYE 7402200879089 ACTIVE 02/07/2018
SIFISC EUREKA MTETWA, 8302075806085 ACTIVE {2/07/12018

RESIGNED DIRECTOR(S)

Director Name ID Number Director Status Appointment Date
ARPIT GOEL £2552504 RESIGNED O1/07/2013
CHRISTIAN GOUWS 5908285147087 RESIGNELD 09/02/20m
LAXMI NARAIN GOYAL £2067688 RESIGNED 0140712013
JL KUMAR GUPTA 5806145105080 RESIGNED Q0712013
VARUN GUPTA 8607146112184 RESIGNED 01710/2012
NAZEEM HOWA 6210295101082 RESIGNED Aoz
ZAMASWAZI MANDELA 7903130331083 RESIGNED 02/07/2018
MZWANELE JIMMY MANY! 6401205536083 RESHGNED 012017
PHUTI SAMUEL MOSCMANMNE 8401025343080 RESIGNED 14/nms2oe
GARY NAIDOO 8609015158084 RESIGNED 07/04/2016
MOEGSIEN WILLIAMS 5206055218083 RESIGNED 07/04/12016

DECEASED DIRECTOR(S)
Director Name 1D Number Director Status Appointment Date

No information available.
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-

AUDITOR(S)
Auditor Name
LSG INTEGRATED

MXOLISIWISEMAN MTHIMKHULU
SIZWENTSALUBAGOBODO INC

DETAILED INFORMATION

ADD-INFO-069

FP-JGZ-2111
Profession Code Status Start Date
SAICA RESIGN -
IRBA RESIGN
IRBA RESIGN

Entity Detalls

Name

Short Name

Translated Name

Registration Number

Old Registration Na.

Type

Short Type

CIFC Company Act Type
Us

Tax Number

Type Date

Registration Date

Start Date

Status Date

Principal Description

Details Withdrawn From Public

Standard Industrial Classification

Financial Year End
Financial Effective Date

Physical Address

£al Address
Region
Country of Origin
Country
Authorised Capital
Issued Capital
Authorised Shares
Issued Shares
Form Received Date
Date on Form

Conversion Number

DIRECTOR(S}

INFINITY MEDIA NETWORKS

2011/003219/07

PRIVATE COMPANY (PTY) LTD

(PTY} LTD

COMPANY (REGISTERED ACCORDING TO OLD CO ACT)
IN BUSINESS

9987105153

09/02/201

0g/oz/20m

08/02/20M

TELEVISION BROADCASTING AND TELEVISION MEDIA . PUBLISHING PRCDUCTION, DISTRIBUTION,
ASSET AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT

NO

FEBRUARY
08/0212011

15‘:_|28I§E{3H'-.r'|.'E STREET, CORPORATE PARK SOUTH, OLD PRETORIA MAIN ROAD MIDRAND, GAUTENG,

PRIVATE BAG X180, HALFWAY HOUSE, MIDRAND, GAUTENG, 1685
GAUTENG

1000
100
100
100

Director 1 of 13

First Name

ARPIT
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FP-JGZ-2112

ADD-INFO-070

DIRECTOR(S)

Surname

ID Number

Date of Birth

Age

Residential Address

Postal Address

Type

Status

Appointment Date
Resignation Date
ttember Contribution

Member Size

Director 2 of 13

t Name
Surname
ID Number
Date of Birth
Age
Residentlat Address
Postal Address
Type
Status
Appointment Date
Resignation Date
Member Contribution

Member Size

Director 3 of 13

First Name
Surhname

1B Number

Date of Birth

Age

Residential Address

Postal Address

Type

Status
Appaointment Date
Resignation Date

Member Contribution

GOEL
Z2552504
01/061984

ESSEL HOUSE, MANDI ROAD, SULTANPUR, MEHRAUL!, NEW DELHI 10030, INDIA, 0000
ESSEL HOUSE, MANDI ROAD, SULTANPUR, MEHRAULI, SULTANPLIR, MEHRAULI, NEW DELHI 110030,

0000
DIRECTOR
RESIGNED
ova/2013
05/04/2016
0%

0%

CHRISTIAN

GOUWS

5908285147087

28/08N959

59

329 ANCHELLA STREET, FAERIE GLEN, 0043
P O BOX 35465, MENLO PARK, 0102
DIRECTOR

RESIGNED

09/02/20N1

09/02/20M

0%

0%

LAXMI NARAIN
GOYAL
22067688
194021953

ESSEL HOUSE, MANDI ROAD, SULTANPUR, MEHRAULI, NEW DELRI 110030, INDIA, 0000

gggl{i)L HOUSE, MANDI ROAD, SULTANPLIR, MEHRAULIL, SULTANPUR, MEHRAULI, NEW DELHI 110030,

DIRECTOR
RESIGNED
010112013
05/04/2016
0%
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DIRECTOR(S)

Member Size

Diroctor 4 of 13

Flrst Name

Surname

ID Number

Date of Birth

Age

Residential Address

Postal Address

Type

Status

Appointment Date

Resignation Date
tamber Cantribution

Member Size

Director 5 of 13
First Name
Surname
ID Number
Date of Birth
Age
Residential Address
Postal Address
Type
Status

yointment Date
Resignation Date
Member Contribution

Member Size

Director 6 of 13
First Name
Surmname

I Number

Date of Birth

Age

Residential Address
Postal Address
Type

Status

FP-JGZ-2113

0%

ATUL KUMAR

GUPTA

6806145105080

14/06/1968

50

5 SAXONWOLD DRIVE, SAXONWOLD, 2196

PRIVATE BAG X180, HALFWAY HOUSE, HALFWAY HOUSE, MIDRAND, 1685

DIRECTOR
RESIGNED
01/07/2013
07/04/2016
0%

0%

VARUN

GUPTA

8607146112184

14/07/1986

32

5 SAXONWOLD DRIVE, SAXONWOLD, 2001
PRIVATE BAG X180, HALFWAY HOUSE, HALFWAY HOUSE, 1685
DIRECTOR

RESIGNED

MHGI2012

032016

0%

0%

NAZEEM

HOWA

6210295101082

201101962

56

27 GREENFIELD ROAD, GREENSIDE, JOHANNESBURG, 2000
RIVATE BAG X180, HALFWAY HOUSE, HALFWAY HOUSE, 1685
DIRECTOR

RESIGNED

Page 4 of &
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DIRECTOR(S)
Appotmtiment Date
Resignation Date
WMember Contribution

Member Size

Director 7 of 13
First Name
Surname
ID Number
Date of Birth
Age
Residential Address
Postal Address
Type

Fetus
Appointment Date
Resignation Date
Member Contribution

Member Size

Director 8 of 13

First Name

Surname

ID Number

Date of Birth

Age

Residential Address
1al Address

Type

Status

Appointment Date

Resignation Date

Member Contribution

Member Size

Director 9 of 13
First Name
Surname

D Number
Date of Birth
Age

Residential Address

£P.1G7.2114 ADD-INFO-072

01A0f2012
15A0/2016
0%
0%

ZAMASWAZI

MANDELA

7903130331083

13/03h979

40

FIRST FLOOR, 103 HOUT STREET, BUITENGRACHT CAPE TOWN, WESTERN CAPE, 8001
FIRST FLOOR, 103 HOUT STREET, BUITENGRACHT CAPE TOWN, WESTERN CAPE, 8001
DIRECTOR

RESIGNED

02/072018

0810/2018

0%

0%

MZWANELE JIMMY

MANYI

6401205536083

20/0111964

55

172B FORBES ROAD, ZONE 4 MEADOWLANDS, SOWETOQ, GAUTENG, 1852
172B FORBES ROAD, ZONE 4 MEADOWLANDS, SOWETO. GAUTENG, 1852
DIRECTOR

RESIGNED

oim2o7

011212018

0%

0%

UNATHI

MGUYE

7402200875089

20/02n974

45

2 ARABIAN CRESCENT, LEEUWENHOF ESTATE, SILVERLAKES, GAUTENG, 0002

Page 5 of 8



DIRECTOR(S)

Postal Address

Type

Status

Appointment Date
Resignation Date
Member Contribution

Member Size

Director 10 of 13
First Name
Surname

1D Number

Date of Birth
Age

lagidential Address
kostal Address
Type

Status
Appointment Date
Resignation Date
Member Cantribution

Member Size

Director 11 of 13
First Name
Surmame
ID Number

e of Birth
Age
Residential Address
Postal Address
Type
Status
Appointment Date
Resignation Date
Member Contribution

Member Size

Director 12 of 13
First Name
Surname

1D Number

CPIG7.0115 ADD-INFO-073

2 ARABIAN CRESCENT, LEEUWENHOF ESTATE, SILVERLAKES, GAUTENG, 0002
DIRECTOR

ACTIVE

02/07/2018

0%

0%

PHUTI SAMUEL

MOSOMANE

8401025343080

02/011984

35

79 MOOCR STREET, 4622 KAALFONTEIN, MIDRAND, GAUTENG, 1685
79 MOOR STREET, 4622 KAALFONTEIN, MIDRAND, GAUTENG, 1685
DIRECTOR

RESIGNED

14/11/2016

0810/2018

0%

0%

SIFISO EUREKA

MTETWA,

8302075806085

07/0211983

36

107 GRETEL STREET. LINMEYER, JOHANNESBURG, GAUTENG, 2150
107 GRETEL STREET, LINMEYER, JOHANNESEURG, GAUTENG, 2130
MRECTOR

ACTIVE

02/07/2018

0%

0%

GARY
NAIDOO
6609015158084
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ADD-INFO-074

; FP-JGZ-2116
Date of Birth 01/09/1966
Age 52

Residential Address
Postal Address

Type

Status

Appointment Date
Resignation Date
Member Contribution

Member Size

Director 13 of 13
First Name
Surname

* Number
Date of Birth
Age
Residential Address
Postal Address
Type
Status
Appocintment Date
Resignatian Date
Member Contribution

Member Size

AUDITORS(S)

Auditor Name

vea INTEGRATED
MXOLISFWISEMAN MTRIMKHULU
SIZWENTSALUBAGOBODO INC

CAPITAL INFORMATION

24 OLYMPUS CRESCENT, MYKONOS ESTATE, LONEHILL, GAUTENG, 2191
24 OLYMPUS CRESCENT, MYKONOS ESTATE, LONEHILL, GAUTENG, 2191
DIRECTOR

RESIGNED

07/04/2016

08h10/2018

0%

0%

MOEGSIEN

WILLIAMS

5206055218083

05/06/1952

66

107 HEADINGLEY COURT, 1 JACOBE AVENUE, ILLOVO, GAUTENG, 2195
107 HEADINGLEY COURT, 1 JACOBE AVENUE, ILLOVO, GAUTENG, 2195
DIRECTOR

RESIGNED

07/04/2016

281002018

0%

0%

Profession Code Status Start Date
SAICA RESIGN -

IRBA RESIGN -

IRBA RESIGN

Type Number of Shares Parmi Value Capital Amount Capital Pramium
AUTHORIZED ORDINARY 1000 (0] R 1.O0 0
ISSUED ORDINARY 1000 0 R1.00 0
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P1G7.2117 ADD-INFO-075

REPORT INFORMATION

Date of Information 24/04/2019 1018

Print Date 24-04-2019 10219
Generated By CONSULTANT 2
Reference NS

Report Type CSI COMPANY DETAILS

The dala displayed abova is provided by cwr data suppliers and is not alierad by SearchiWorks. Terms of Use are apphcabls to this information and can be found oo tps:ffapp. searchworks.co.zaf.
SearchiWorks is not Jiable for any damages caused by Us Information.
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